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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Tian
Cheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 May 2023 (the “Year”).

The Group is principally a Hong Kong-based marine construction works
subcontractor specialising in reclamation works and supplemented by vessel
chartering services and other civil engineering works. During the Year, the
Group continued to focus on marine construction projects as subcontractor
and actively sought after main contractor opportunities since the Group
was admitted as an approved contractor under Group B (Probation) of the
port works category in the List of Approved Contractors for Public Works in
October 2019. During the Year, the Group had successfully tendered and
been awarded with two marine construction project as main contractor
with total contract sum of approximately HK$261.4 million. Comparing
with traditional reclamation methods, the Group'’s patented reclamation
approach is able to increase cost effectiveness and efficiency while decrease
environmental impact.

The Group’s revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$198.0
million, representing a decrease of approximately 6.7% from that of the
previous year. Loss for the Year was approximately HK$87.1 million.
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As the impact of COVID-19 to the local economy has been diminishing, the
Group will continue to explore other suitable business opportunities. In
June 2023, the Group has started to explore new business activities, with
a primary focus in the research and development, manufacture and sale of
class [l medical devices controlled and administered under the Regulation on
the Supervision and Administration of Medical Devices (22 /& 23 B5 & & 12
15:171), as well the operation of medical care and wellness centres in the PRC.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deep gratitude
to our Shareholders, investors and business partners for their continuous
trust and support. We will continue to identify and seize suitable growth
opportunities in the coming years.

Zheng Yanling
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 August 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE BT im B 94T

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is a Hong Kong-based marine construction works subcontractor
specializing in reclamation works and supplemented by vessel chartering
services and other civil engineering works. Since October 2019, the Group has
also been admitted as an approved contractor under Group B (Probation) of
the port works category in the List of Approved Contractors for Public Works.
During the Year, the Group was awarded two marine construction projects as
main contractor, with a total contract sum of approximately HK$261.4 million.

Marine construction works

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from marine construction works was
approximately HK$60.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
56.7% compared to that for the year ended 31 May 2022 (i.e. HK$138.9
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease of sizeable
marine construction projects undertaken by the Group during the Year as
there was a downturn in the reclamation works sector and a significant
reduction in public and private tenders. Out of four projects on hand as at
31 May 2023, two of them were in their later or initial stage of construction.

Gross loss of marine construction works for the Year was approximately
HK$42.3 million, representing a significant decline compared to the gross
profit of approximately HK$25.9 million for the year ended 31 May 2022. The
overall gross profit margin of marine construction works experienced a sharp
drop, turning into a gross loss margin. The turnaround of result from profit
to loss was mainly attributable to i) the lowered tender price as a result of
keen competition in the Hong Kong construction market; ii) idling of several
vessels specifically modified for one port work project in Shatin district
due to severe disruptions in material delivery for fabrication, leading to
additional costs; iii) the expected completion date of a project in the Lamma
Islands has encountered a series of disruptive events resulting slippage in
the progress as the main contractor failed to hand over the working area on
time according to the schedule and provide sufficient working area to carry
out construction works; iv) increased rental cost of vessels, costs of labour,
construction material costs and subcontracting fees due to inflation and
market price fluctuations; v) the commencement of two newly awarded
projects with aggregate initial contract sum of approximately HK$261.4
million in the third quarter of 2022 incurred a gross loss for the Year due to
the high costs incurred during the initial stages of construction, coupled with
the limited revenue recognized as a result of the type of work involved in
accordance with the working program; and vi) the drop in revenue in marine
construction works resulting in a decrease in the gross profit to cover the
fixed cost incurred.
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Other civil engineering works

During the Year, the revenue derived from other civil engineering works
amounted to approximately HK$122.1 million (year ended 31 May 2022:
HK$60.0 million), accounted for approximately 61.7% (year ended 31 May
2022: 28.3%) of the Group’s total revenue. The increase in revenue from
other civil engineering works was primarily due to the Group’s participation
in one other civil engineering project in Tuen Mun, which contributed
approximately HK$99.5 million in revenue for the Year. During the Year,
the Group was awarded two new other civil engineering projects with total
initial contract sum of approximately $41.2 million. And as at 31 May 2023,
the Group had three other civil engineering works projects on hand.

The Group recorded a gross loss on other civil engineering works of
approximately HK$22.5 million for the Year, as compared to gross profit of
approximately HK$2.3 million for the previous year. The shift from profit to
loss was mainly attributable to unanticipated issues such as complicated soil
strata for which the Group had to reconsider the design, double handling of
excavated material, acquisition of more materials, relocation of temporary
scaffolding and working platform and instruction to subcontractors to
rework.

During the Year, the Group had undertaken 14 projects and the aggregate
initial contract sum amounted to approximately HK$596.1 million. Out of the
above 14 projects, eight projects have been completed during the Year and,
based on the information available and barring unforeseen circumstances,
it is expected that four projects will be completed during the year ending
31 May 2024, one project will be completed during the year ending 31 May
2025, and one project will be completed during the year ending 31 May
2026. Set out below is the information of the projects undertaken by the
Group during the Year:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE BT im B 94T

Status as at

Site Location/Project Role Segment Type of Works 31 May 2023
R=ZB=-=F
FA=+—H
823 B T8 B AR pan:i] IRRER B B8
Tung Chung Subcontractor Marine construction works ~ Reclamation works Completed
L DER BREETIR HETE [
Tung Chung Main contractor Marine construction works  Atrtificial reef trial works Completed
R BEERE BEREETE AL EHRTIZ B TERK
Shatin Subcontractor Marine construction works  Construction works for Completed
rowing boat launching
facilities
WH DER BEEETIR XM T KR ML T A2 [
Tai O Subcontractor Marine construction works ~ Repair and modification Completed
works of seawall
KR DB HERETRR TSRS RN B TR ETeAK
Lamma Island Subcontractor Marine construction works  Excavation and lateral Completed
support (the “ELS") and
marine works for intake
chamber
AYS DER HERETRE ERANZHEEAIRAE  B7%K
( TZEREARARE] )
KMEgETR
Sha Chau Main contractor Marine construction works ~ Repair works at jetty Completed
structures
DN HBAGER BERETIR RIZGEBMEETIZ [0
Sai Kung and Tai Po Main contractor Marine construction works ~ Reconstruction of piers In progress*
aE kA AR BEEETIR s T
Lantau Island Main contractor Marine construction works ~ Reconstruction of piers In progress*
AU L AR BEEETIR iR ER T
Three-runway system at Subcontractor Marine construction works  Supply of sand fill material ~ In progress*
Chek Lap Kok Airport (the for the north runway
“3RS") reconstruction project
TR A5 = 8 DER BEREETIR AItEEEIE R HE T
& ([=ERSE] ) LI VE
Tung Chung Subcontractor Other civil engineering ELS works Completed
works
7 DEE Hth+ AT 2 kAR AL (w154
North Point Subcontractor Other civil engineering Slope upgrading, site Completed
works formation and ELS
b DEE Hfb+RITHE RIFEFR - AR FEAM E5eRK
123 Rl m AT
Tuen Mun Subcontractor Other civil engineering ELS and pile cap works In progress
works
P paNakE] Hth+ AT 248 & Al AFERIE R HEITHR
Ti2
3RS Subcontractor Other civil engineering Excavation and backfilling  In progress*
works works
=S EES DB Hib+RTHEE ZH & OET R T
Kai Tak Subcontractor Other civil engineering Civil works In progress*
works
R DEE Hfh KT TARTHEE T
* Newly awarded during the Year RARFERERT
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Vessel chartering services

During the Year, the revenue derived from our vessel chartering services
amounted to approximately HK$15.8 million, representing a growth of
approximately 17.9% compared to previous year of approximately HK$13.4
million. The rise was primarily due to the additional chartering of one vessel
to an existing customer, resulting in an increase in revenue of approximately
HK$3.1 million. During the Year, no new vessel chartering services contract
was awarded. The gross profit margin for vessel chartering services remained
stable, at around 15.8% for the Year and 15.7% for the year ended 31 May
2022, respectively. This was due to the new vessel chartered helped to reduce
the overall overhead costs, which offset the impact of increased fuel and
subcontracting fees.

As at 31 May 2023, there were two vessel chartering arrangements in
progress with aggregated initial contract sum of approximately HK$37.6
million. Out of the above two vessel chartering arrangements, one vessel
chartering arrangement is expected to be completed during the year ending
31 May 2024 and one vessel chartering arrangements is expected to be
completed during the year ending 31 May 2025.

Other income

The Group's other income increased from approximately HK$ 1.7 million for
year ended 31 May 2022 to approximately HK$2.5 million for the Year. This
increase was primarily due to (i) a significant rise in bank interest income
from time deposit and pledged bank deposits, as the Hong Kong interest
rate continued to increase during the Year; and (ii) the increase in income
from providing online technical services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

General and administrative expenses

The general and administrative expenses of the Group for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$14.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
23.9% compared to approximately HK$11.7 million for the year ended 31 May
2022. Such increase was mainly attributable by the staff costs, office rental,
depreciation, and travelling expenses of our newly set-up PRC subsidiary
during the Year.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

The Group sustained a loss for the year ended 31 May 2023 with net
operating cash outflow, which the management considered to be an
indicator of potential impairment that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment and right of use assets of the Group may not be fully
recovered.

Total comprehensive expense for the Year

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company amount to
approximately HK$87.0 million as compared with profit attributable to equity
shareholders of approximately HK$16.7 million for the corresponding prior
year. Basic loss per share was HK3.91 cents as compared to earnings per
share of HK0.75 cent for the corresponding prior year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group has funded its liquidity and capital requirements primarily
through internal cash resources.

As at May 2023, the Group has cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$33.7 million (including cash and cash equivalents) (31 May 2022:
approximately HK$75.2 million). The year-on-year decrease was mainly due
to payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$11.1 million, and cash used in operation of approximately HK$29.7
million. There is no interest-bearing borrowing for the Group as at 31 May
2023. The Group may seek to issue debt or equity securities or obtain credit
facilities or other sources of funding, to optimize our capital structure.
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Final dividend

The Board resolved not to recommend any dividend for the Year (31 May
2022: Nil).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 May 2022, the Group had deposits placed with a bank of HK$10.0
million for the surety bond issued by the bank in favour of provision of marine
construction works to one customer. As at 31 May 2023, the pledged bank
deposits were being released and no other pledged bank deposits are noted.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and most of the operating
transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Directors
are of the view that the Group's risk in foreign exchange is insignificant. The
Group has not engage in any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk during the year.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 May 2023, the Group employed 88 employees (31 May 2022: 62).
Total staff costs including Directors’ remuneration for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$36.4 million (year ended 31 May 2022: HK$30.9 million).
Individual performance is rewarded through the Group’s salary and bonus
system. The Group conducts annual review on salary increase, discretionary
bonuses, and promotions based on the performance of each employee.

Capital commitments

The Group has no capital commitments as at 31 May 2023 (31 May 2022: Nil).
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Contingent liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company do not
consider it is probable that any claims will be made against the Group and
the surety bonds are expected to be released in accordance with the terms
of the respective contracts.

Material acquisition and disposals

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

Significant investment held

As at 31 May 2023, except for investment in subsidiaries, the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

Future plans for material investment

The Group did not have other plans for material investments and capital
assets as at 31 May 2023.

Events after the reporting date

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group or the
Company after 31 May 2023 and up to the date of this report.

HREE

RBERR - ARBEFTRAANKE TS HBKE
AIERR - BB RESES QN RTRRRE
@ o

EXRBWERHEE
RAFE » AEBEYW B ERERRER L ENE

AT BEANRABLE .

BREEARE
RZEZ=FAA=1T—0H  BRWBLAFNIRKR
B - AREYENTAEM AR RET R
EREAKE -

ERRENRREE
RZZB_=FHAA=+—R0  AEEREXKE
RERNEEYWEHMEE -

BERPREH

KRB _=FAA=1T-HERREEAREH
By AEBHARRLEETEARREN -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 3§

13



8]

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering

The net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) of the share offer received by the
Company in relation to the listing (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited were approximately HK$84.0 million,
after deduction of underwriting fees and commissions and expenses.
The original proposed application of the Net Proceeds was set out in the
paragraph headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 23 November 2020 (the “Prospectus”). And as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2022, the Board
resolved to change the use of the unutilised net proceeds. The table below
sets out the proposed applications of the Net Proceeds and usage up to 31

BRAMBEMSREAR

RINGEHE M hkAXR  ARERRE
BHARXSMAR AR R EM (T £ 1) FTUHER
MR EEMSREFR(HERRFRDOR
840BE BT - TSR FHANRTHEREH
FIRAARABA—T_TF+—A=-+=HK
ARER(RRER]) [ KRR ERAEFEA
wI—B - BBNARFRRMR —T - —F+—
AZBHNRAEMEE  EFQCREFIRGH
PRISFOEFENAE - TREJIEE T _=F
A=+ HOMGERIBFERERERERE

May 2023: o
Revised allocation
of the unutilised Utilised
Net Proceeds amount of
as setout in the Net Proceeds
Original Actual usage announcement from Unutilised
allocation of up to the dated 1 May 2022 to amount as at
Net Proceeds 30 April2022 3 November 2022 31 May 2023 31 May 2023
—E-C
AfA=3-—% TA-HE
+-A=A2 —E-=F
BE-¥--F  DERRABA  EAST-8  Wo®ozF
FremE RN MA=THN  FEHETEN FEFEFEN  HEAST-HM
REDE BEBRERER BBTIE EHReHE ABALH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T FHT THT
Expanding fleet of vessels and site equipment 56,762 36,925 9,837 9,837 -
BRI R R
Recruiting additional full-time staff to operate additional vessels 11,961 6,262 5699 5699 =
and site equipment to be acquired
ERENZBE TRIETUBENEIME RitER
Recruiting additional full-time staff 3,758 3,758 - - -
ERENERET
Acquiring performance bonds and/or placing tender deposit 7118 7118 10,000 10,000 -
EREORES R/ A TERZTS
General working capital 4,360 4141 219 219 -
AE2EER
83,959 58,204 25,755 25,755 =

14 \ Tian Cheng Holdings Limited & F 1B PR A &)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zheng Yanling (¥5%#%%) (“Ms. Zheng”), aged 48, is the Chairman and
executive Director of the Company and is responsible for managing the
overall operation of the Company. Ms. Zheng graduated from the Suiling
Technical School in Hailun County, Heilongjiang Province, the PRC (7 B 2
BT A 8RB & T ER), majoring in finance and accounting in July
1994. In May 2013, Ms. Zheng obtained the qualification of professional
physiotherapist from the Chinese Medical Doctor Association. Prior to 2012,
Ms. Zheng had been engaged in personal business. In December 2012, Ms.
Zheng served as the general manager of Jilin Zanjia Tiancheng E-commerce
Co., Ltd. (HMIBRAKEFR#E R A F]), mainly engaged in internet
technology development and information services. Ms. Zheng's extensive
experience in e-commerce and internet technology and information services
will help the Company to explore new business in the future.

Mr. Heung Yue Wing (E#7K) (“Mr. Edwin Heung”), aged 33, is the
Company’s executive Director and is responsible for overseeing the
operational management and quality control of the Group’s projects. Mr.
Edwin Heung completed his Bachelor of Aviation from the University of
South Australia in December 2015. Mr. Edwin Heung has completed his
Master of Business Administration of the City University of Hong Kong on
part-time basis in October 2021.

Mr. Edwin Heung has approximately ten years of experience in providing
technical support to the Group. In 2016, he was designated as the Group’s
technical support officer and was primarily responsible for supporting the
3RS construction works. He also led and participated in the patent application
of the Group's special enclosed deposition method in the PRC and Hong
Kong. He was further promoted as the Group’s project technical manager
in May 2018 and was subsequently appointed as the Company’s executive
Director on 24 May 2019.

Mr. Ouyang Jianwen (Bif5%EX) (“Mr. Ouyang”), aged 27, is the Company’s
executive Director and is responsible for exploration and development of
potential business opportunities in the e-commerce sector with a view
to diversify the Group's business scope, broaden the income base and
enhance the value for the Group and its shareholders as a whole. Mr. Ouyang
completed his economics degree in International Economics and Trade
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in July 2019. Mr. Ouyang
has previously served as an executive director of Beijing Digital Weilai
Technology Company Limited* (3t REF 5 R EHE B R A 7)), a company
principally specialized in software development, data processing and along
with big data and artificial intelligence technology.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Luo Hao (£87%) (“Mr. Luo”), aged 39, is the Company's executive Director
and is responsible for assisting in the development of e-commerce sector.
Mr. Luo obtained a master’s degree in Electronic and Communication
Engineering from Harbin University of Science and Technology in March
2014. Mr. Luo has accumulated extensive experience in internet software
development. From October 2013 to January 2014, he worked as an intern
trainee for Hithink Flush Information Network Co., Ltd.* (4T T i ¥ Rt/
4= B BD B PR A F)). He then worked for Weimeng Chuangke Network
Technology (China) Co., Ltd* (& BIRI 484 R (RE) AR ) from
January 2014 to August 2015 as an android software engineer. Later on, he
worked for Beijing Mexue Technology Company Limited* (1t Z K &R A
[R /2 A]) from December 2015 to December 2017, as an android manager.
Subsequently, he worked for Beijing Black Bear Network Technology Co.,
Ltd* (bR BARALE AT B PR A F) from January 2018 to July 2018 as a
technical director. Mr. Luo then worked at Beijing Miaoyijia Information
Technology Co., Ltd.* (It R B E(F BB R A 7)) from August 2018
to August 2019 with his last position as technical director. In September
2019, he joined Beijing Digital Weilai Technology Company Limited* (1t
HFEIREH AR A B]) as chief technology officer and held this position
until April 2022.

Mr. Wong Yuk (E/B) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 52, is the Company’s executive
Director and is responsible for financial management and assisting to
manage the day-to-day business operations. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1996. He was admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in January 2004 and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in August 2005. Since
December 2019, Mr. Wong has been serving as company secretary of
XXF Group Holdings Limited, an established automobile rental service
provider. In addition, since December 2019, Mr. Wong has been serving as
an independent non-executive director of Hygieia Group Limited, a cleaning
service provider listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 1650), where he has been primarily responsible
for providing independent opinion and judgement to the board of directors.
From 31 May 2023, Mr. Wong Yuk been appointed as executive director
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8238), a publications and
advertising provider.

Mr. Wong started his career in KPMG Hong Kong in September 1996 and
left the firm as a senior accountant in April 1999. Mr. Wong also worked in
various financial, accounting and compliance related roles for a number of
Hong Kong and Singapore listed companies from October 1999 to October
2019, including subsidiaries of the Swire Group, Hong Kong and China
Gas Company Limited, Lung Kee Metal Ltd., China Oilfield Technology
Services Group Limited, Yuanda China Holdings Limited, Success Dragon
International Holdings Limited and Huanian Xinxing Chanye Jituan Company
Limited respectively.

*-For identification purpose only
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Mr. Zhao Dongquan (H3R#) (“Mr. Zhao”), aged 53, is the Company’s
executive Director.

Mr. Zhao was graduated from Wuhan University majoring in Industrial
Automation. From September 2008 to December 2011, Mr. Zhao has served
as an executive director and the general manager of Chengdu Jiaweijia
Technology Company Limited* (A #EEZEHY AR Q). Mr. Zhao
has served as the general manager of Sichuan Junquan Environmental
Technology Company Limited* (FO)I|B#RAEREBRAAF]) from
December 2012 to October 2019. Mr. Zhao has been working as the chairman
of Oukaida Life Sciences (Chengdu) Company Limited* (Bt 4 dpfl i

(FX#B) APBR/AT)), a company principally engaging in manufacturing
electronic equipment, since April 2023.

Mr. Zhao is currently the deputy director of the health technology
products promotion department of the UN International Collaboration
and Coordination Agency’s Institute of Life Sciences; a director, a first-level
professor and a research fellow of the Thailand Royal Board of Astronomical
and Agricultural Sciences; a distinguished national scientist of Cambodia; a
national health ambassador of both Malaysia and Hawaii; a visiting professor
on Chinese medical and healthcare of China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences; and the deputy director of Sichuan West China Research Institute
of Chinese Medicine.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (R #7#8) (“Mr. Wan”), aged 49, was appointed as
the Company'’s independent non-executive Director on 1 November 2022.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of both of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Wan obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1996. He was admitted as a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
2002. Since May 2022, Mr. Wan has been serving as company secretary of
Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited. He has been the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group
Limited (Stock code: 00556.HK) since 2007. Mr. Wan has more than 20 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Oriented
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01871.HK) on 1 March 2023.

Mr.Zhang Wenyong (& 3 B) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 48, was appointed as the
Company'’s independent non-executive Director on 31 May 2023.

Mr. Zhang was graduated from Renmin University of China School of
Continuing Education majoring in Business Administration. From February
2009 to September 2019, Mr. Zhang has served as the general manager of
Harbin Choice Industry Company Limited* (%5 F /& 12 B %4 [R A 7). Mr.
Zhang has served as the general manager of Heilongjiang Kexiankelu Eco
Technological Development Company Limited* (82T A] ff A] 4k 4 RE Rl
%R G BR A 7)) from October 2019 to December 2021. He has been working
as the chief operating officer of Beijing Huakai Technological Development
Company Limited* (& 5 T & 1 2% &2 5 IR A F), a company principally
engaging in the operation of internet information services, technological
development, technological consultation and technological services, since
June 2022. He was awarded the Certificate of Senior Online Marketing
Specialistissued by Electronic Technology Intelligence and Research Institute
of Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China in November
2013.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Mr. Luo Sheng (%8 &%), aged 27, was appointed as the Company’s independent
non-executive Director on 31 May 2023.

Mr. Luo Sheng was graduated from Sichuan University majoring in
Engineering and Automation in June 2018, and obtained a master’s degree
in Applied Statistics from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in
June 2022. Mr. Luo Sheng has been working as the account manager of the
securities business department in Guangzhou Avenue Middle, Guangzhou of
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd since August 2022. He has passed the examination of
Financial Accounting Committee of the Securities Association of China and
obtained the qualification to conduct securities business in July 2022. Mr.
Luo Sheng has passed the Hong Kong Licensing Examination for Securities
and Futures Intermediaries (Paper 1 and Paper 2) in December 2022, and
has passed the Examination for Securities Investment Advisor Business of
the Securities Association of China in March 2023.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Kwok Cheong (2] &) (“Mr. Leung”), aged 48, was appointed
as the Group’s project manager on 1 August 2018 and promoted as project
director on 1 August 2021. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Group'’s projects, daily monitoring of operation and
supervision of sites.

Mr. Leung obtained a degree of Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001.

Mr. Leung was elected as a chartered professional engineer member of
Engineers Australia in the Civil College in January 2008. He was also admitted
as a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers in June 2008 and registered
as a chartered engineer by the Engineering Council UK in August 2008. In
October 2009, he was elected as a member of The Institution of Highways and
Transportation. In December 2018, he obtained a Certificate of Accreditation
from the Institution of Civil Engineers of the United Kingdom for completion
of the NEC3: Engineering and Construction Contract Project Manager
Accreditation and is eligible for inclusion on the Register for Accredited NEC
professionals held by the Institution of Civil Engineers.

Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in the construction industry.

Mr. Wong Chi Ching Calvin (&) (“Mr. Wong"), aged 48, is the Group’s
project manager. Mr. Wong joined the Group as a project manager in March
2022.He is primarily responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
projects, daily monitoring of operation and supervision of sites.

Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the construction industry. Mr.
Wong obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts from University of Winnipeg in
1996 and Higher Diploma in Civil Engineering from Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education in 2002 and Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering
from Leeds Metropolitan University in 2013. Mr. Wong completed training
course for risk assessment and job safety analysis at the Occupational Safety
and Health Management Institute in 2014. He also completed the training
courses conducted by the Occupational Safety and Health Council for
accident investigation, safety inspections and hazard identification activity in
2014,2015 and 2016. He is also the holder of certificate of Works Supervisor.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Chi Wing (&%) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 45, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 1 November 2022.

Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Hons.) (major
in Accountancy) from The Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Chow was the company secretary and an authorised representative of
Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited (stock code: 8030), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, as an external service provider from 1
November 2020 to 23 February 2023. Mr. Chow was the chief financial officer,
company secretary and an authorised representative of Flying Financial
Service Holdings Limited for the period from 16 July 2015 to 31 October 2020.
From 16 April 2021 to 8 August 2022, Mr. Chow was the company secretary
and an authorised representative of Asia Television Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Mainboard of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 707).
Mr. Chow has over 20 years of experience in auditing, financial management
and accounting as well as extensive experience in the company secretarial
field and dealing with corporate governance and compliance matters for
listed companies.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in marine
construction works, other civil engineering works and provision of vessel
chartering services in Hong Kong. The Group also commenced its operations
in the research and development, manufacture and sale of class Il medical
devices controlled and administered under the Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Medical Devices (E&8/& 23 1 B5 & & F2 {£:(51)), as well the
operation of medical care and wellness centres in the PRC. Besides that, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities
during the Year. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The business review and outlook together with an analysis of the Group'’s
performance using financial key performance indicators of the Group for
the Year are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 14 of this annual report.
The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties, and risk management

The Group’s business and operations is exposed to the following principal
risks and uncertainties:

Failure to guarantee new contract

The Group's revenue mainly relies on successful tenders of or acceptance of
tenders/quotations for marine construction works, vessel chartering services
and other civil engineering works which are non-recurring in nature. In the
event that the Group is unable to secure new contracts with successful
tenders or acceptance of quotations, or receive invitations for quotations
or tenders, the business and results of operations and financial performance
may be adversely and materially affected. The management shall continue
to seek new opportunities and develop the Group’s existing business.
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Failure to diversify customer base by obtaining new projects from
existing and new potential customers

A significant portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from contracts
awarded by a limited number of customers and any significant decrease in
the number of contracts with major customers may materially and adversely
affect the financial condition and operating results of the Group. In this
connection, the Group shall continue to diversify and broaden its customer
base, where appropriate.

Project cost overruns

The actual time and costs incurred in a marine construction or other civil
engineering projects, which partly form the basis of the price determination
of tenders/quotations, may deviate from the estimated time and costs to be
involved in such project due to unexpected circumstances, thereby leading
to cost overruns and adversely affecting the operations and financial results
of the Group. As such, the Group will closely monitor and manage its project
costs in an effective manner.

Outbreak of COVID-19

In the previous years, the Pandemic has affected many businesses, both
locally and aboard, to different extents. Based on the currently available
information, barring unforeseen circumstances, the Directors consider
the Pandemic would not have a prolonged material impact to the Group’s
operations having taken into account the past experience and ongoing
circumstances. However, given the unpredictability associated with the
Pandemic and the contingency measures that may be implemented by
the relevant governments and corporate entities from time to time, the
impact of the Pandemic, if any, on the Group’s operations in future could
be significantly different from the aforesaid expectation depending on how
the situation evolves. The Group will closely monitor in this regard and act
prudently with a view to minimise the possible uncertain impact arising
from the Pandemic.

Industry risks

It is expected that during the forecast drop in the gross output value of
the marine construction works industry in Hong Kong between 2022 and
2026 (the “Forecast Downturn”), the Group will undertake significantly less
marine construction works due to the temporary decrease in reclamation-
related marine construction projects during the Forecast Downturn, the
result of which will also contribute to a change in project mix and revenue
contributions for the Group in the short term. Given the comparatively lower
gross profit margin of other civil engineering works as compared with that
of marine construction works in general, the expected change in project
mix by undertaking more other civil engineering projects may cause the
Group's overall gross profit margin to decrease and may adversely affect its
financial performance.

For further details of the risks and uncertainties of the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of protecting the environment and
strives to minimise the impact to the environment by reducing use of
energies and other resources. During the Year, the Group did not record any
material non-compliance with applicable environmental requirements that
resulted in prosecution or penalty being brought against the Group. During
the Year, the Group was not subject to any environmental claims, lawsuit,
penalties or any disciplinary action. For further information in relation to the
environmental policies and performance of the Group, please refer to the
Group's Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 53 to 105.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that had a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or the
Group after 31 May 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group recognises its employees as its valuable assets and the key to
business growth and success. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package and benefits to employees to attract and retain competent
employees. The Group also provides on-the-job training and development
opportunities to employees to enhance their career development.

The Group endeavours to develop and maintain long-term relationship with
customers by delivering excellent works and quality services to them. The
Group holds regular meeting with customers to receive customers’ feedback
to understand their needs and expectation.

The Group has strong and stable relationships with suppliers and
subcontractors in order to ensure that quality goods and services are
provided to the Group. Suppliers and subcontractors are assessed on
their performances, safety records, non-compliance track records and
environmental awareness on an on-going basis.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are included in the section headed
"Financial Summary” on page 204 of this annual report. Such summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 114 of this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend a payment of a final dividend to the
shareholders for the year ended 31 May 2023 (2022: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 6 October 2023 to
Wednesday, 11 October 2023, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible for attending
and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”), non-
registered shareholders must lodge all duly completed and stamped transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant shares certificates with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 pm on Thursday, 5 October 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATION
The Group did not make any charitable donations during the Year (2022: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 May 2023, the Company had no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders. Under Section 34 of the Companies Act (2022 Revision), Cap
22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distributing or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its articles of association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 114 of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 54.6% (31 May 2022:23.7%) and 92.5% (31 May 2022:75.1%)
of the Group'’s total revenue, respectively.

During the Year, the largest subcontractor and the five largest subcontractors
of the Group accounted for approximately 33.3% (31 May 2022: 24.6%) and
43.1% (31 May 2022: 54.3%) of the Group'’s total direct costs, respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 2.0% (31 May 2022: 2.9%) and 7.6% (31
May 2022: 8.4%) of the Group's total direct costs respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major customers, subcontractors or
suppliers above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Zheng Yanling (Chairman) (appointed on 22 March 2023)
Mr. Heung Che Kan (Chairman) (resigned on 22 March 2023)

Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade (resigned on 3 January 2023)
Mr. Heung Yue Wing

Mr. Ouyang Jianwen

Mr. Luo Hao

Mr. Wong Yuk

Mr. Zhao Dongquan (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Du Min (appointed on 15 February 2023 and resigned on 31 July 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chiu Tai Shing (resigned on 28 April 2023)

Mr. Fung Hoi Fung (retired on 12 October 2022)

Mr. Wan Wai Wing (resigned on 31 May 2023)

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (appointed on 1 November 2022)
Mr. Zhang Wenyong (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Mr. Luo Sheng (appointed on 31 May 2023)

In accordance with article 108 of articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Further, according to articles 111 and 112 of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board or by ordinary resolution in general meeting either
tofill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following AGM of the Company. The Directors to retire
at an AGM of the Company shall not be taken into account in determining
who are to retire by rotation at such AGM.

At the forthcoming AGM, Ms. Zheng Yanling, Mr. Zhao Dongquan, Mr. Wan
San Fai Vincent, Mr. Zhang Wenyong, Mr. Luo Sheng will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years which may be terminated by either
party serving to the other party not less than three months’ written notice
of termination.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years which may
be terminated by either party serving to the other party not less than two
months’ written notice of termination.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANCE
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transaction disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the year.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Oriented
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01871.HK) on 1 March 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or in
existence during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited K 5% 1% 8% 5 BR 2 &)

N
@

EERFBAH
SRTEFELRNARIRB B - BE=
F - YA REF—ARS—AEETLR=M@EA
RIEEERM T AL -

ERUIFNTESZTERLEARFR L RG H#
SB=F  YAAEM—TRs—HELTIR
B AR IEEFEEAT AL -

BREERFAFAS LESENERfENR
RABXEEAHBRARGTIARBEE—FAT
AABAREORTERERS) MR LRSS
# o

EFREREEEERE

EERAEESREEENEEFBFHANAFR
[EERSREREREFE & -

EEREXEZS  RERSWPHER

Brir e M ISR M 25 A B R S X B 51
BEEENARFAXEEMHEARRNFRARE
MEAREXRBREEATENTARS - THk
BATHEERIMEREEEANEES -

EEEHETE

BY T EREBELEN S =F=A—
BEZ T AR T BERERAR QB ARD AR
01871.HK) B JEHITEE -

THEW

RAFE  AEEYERBENETAEELDE
BHEE M TR T SFEEMAH

EFMeRiuSEHMAL

EEME RANSZSEHMNA LTHFHED RSN
B IS RARMFEIR10 ©



SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for the Year falls
within the following bands:
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Number of person(s)

Band of remuneration & E AE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z251,000,00078 7T 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7T %2 1,500,000/ 7 2

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
As at 31 May 2023, the Group did not hold any investment property.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief
executives' interests and short positions in Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures” below, at no time during the Year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or the
Company's subsidiary or holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement has been entered into during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Articles provide that every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses and liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a director in the execution of his/her duties or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to such Director.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

RAMR
RZZE_=FRAA=+—0 ZREEVERKAFE
AIREME -

EEMARMRRGZET

BRTIXEEREBTHRAEBRKND - HEKD
REFTFHEDELRE | —BAREEI KA
FERNEARRE  SEEFNEEFIRESE 2R
BERM185 T X ER AT FEE AR R R ZB M
ERNm BN - RENETETAEREER
HARA  RAREZHER R FIER AT K
RRABZERARZHBAR MRS BT ERIR
B BEESAESNMEAEMEABE G
&R -

B S 4 S0 150 ik
B P AT ST S O SR AR T TP R A
e -

EFEMFURESR

AMAZIR - SEEHEARNRREEER/BER
& ERERRAERERESRITARBRE
HENEMEEELXBENOMERAREAL -
HERZRIE R B A TR EE il E E ) IEF T
HEAENEREZE -

ARBEREZFRARASABELHEENE
EhEBBBRERBIRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

29



30"

®
DIRECTORS' REPORT EE&#H &

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which the controlling shareholders of the Company or an
entity connected with the controlling shareholders had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
written resolution of the Company’s then sole Shareholder on 13 November
2020. The terms of the Scheme are in accordance with Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules and other relevant rules and regulations. Further details of
the Scheme are set forth in the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme since its adoption on 13 November 2020 and there is no outstanding
Share option as at 31 May 2023.

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-
time), directors, consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the Group and
to promote the success of the business of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may
think fit, grant options to any employees (full-time or part-time), directors
(including independent non-executive Directors), consultant, or advisor,
substantial shareholders, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer,
business partner or service provider of the Group, who have contribution or
potential contribution to the Group. Each grant of options to any director
of the Company, the chief executive officer or substantial shareholder of
the Company must first be approved by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of the Shares issuable upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date i.e. 222,400,000 Shares.

The 10% limit may be refreshed at any time by obtaining approval of
Shareholders in general meeting provided that the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit.
The Company may seek separate approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting in granting options beyond the 10% limit provided the options in
excess of the 10% limit are granted only to grantees specifically identified
by the Company before such approval is sought.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted to any participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme and any other option scheme of the Company
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine but shall not exceed
ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Minimum period
The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be

exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the
time of grant.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable by
the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an option is HKS$1.
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Subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing from
13 November 2020 and shall expire at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless terminated
earlier by Shareholders in general meeting.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling shareholders or the Directors of the Company and
their respective associates is interested in a business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s business during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 May 2023, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 May 2023, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company which fell to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Mr. Ouyang Chengguo Beneficial owner 315,540,000 11.82%
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Note:

1. Mr.Ouyang Chengguo is the father of Mr. Ouyang Jianwen, executive Director
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 May 2023, none of the substantial or
significant shareholders or other persons, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SECURITIES

No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities was made
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
35 to 52 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Thereis no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the Laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Group had not entered into any non-exempted
connected transaction which requires relevant disclosure pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund prescribed by the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). Save as the aforesaid, the Group did not participate in any
other pension scheme for the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited resigned as auditors of the Company with effect
from 25 May 2023 and Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 25 May 2023 to fill
the vacancy following Crowe (HK) CPA Limited’s resignation. A nomination
proposal will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited
Zheng Yanling

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 August 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1t 3

The Board recognise the importance of achieving the highest standard of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of its
businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The Board believes
that high standards of corporate governance provide a framework and solid
foundation for the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency,
and achieve high standard of accountability and protect stakeholders’
interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. During the Year, the Company has
complied with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The summary of their
work during the Year is as follows:

. developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

. reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Group;

. reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and the
Directors; and

. reviewed the Company’s compliance with CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the guidelines for the
Directors’ dealing in the securities of the Company. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Ms. Zheng Yanling (Chairman) (appointed on 22 March 2023)
Mr. Heung Che Kan (Chairman) (resigned on 22 March 2023)

Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade (resigned on 3 January 2023)
Mr. Heung Yue Wing

Mr. Ouyang Jianwen

Mr. Luo Hao

Mr. Wong Yuk

Mr. Zhao Dongquan (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Du Min (appointed on 15 February 2023 and resigned on 31 July 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chiu Tai Shing (resigned on 28 April 2023)

Mr. Fung Hoi Fung (retired on 12 October 2022)

Mr. Wan Wai Wing (resigned on 31 May 2023)

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (appointed on 1 November 2022)
Mr. Zhang Wenyong (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Mr. Luo Sheng (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has submitted a written
statement to the Stock Exchange confirming their independence and
has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if
there is any subsequent change of circumstances which may affect their
independence prior to their respective appointment. The Company has
also received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence for the Year. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are being considered
to be independent with reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules
during the Year.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed

“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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Procedure for seeking independent professional advice by
Directors

The Company has agreed to provide separate independent professional
advice and sufficient resources to Directors and all Board Committees to
assist them to discharge their duties. The Company has developed a written
procedure to enable Directors, and members of all Board Committees, upon
reasonable request, to seek and be provided with independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on
13 November 2020. The Company embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board, as such, the Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to
maintain diversity of the Board. A summary of the Board Diversity Policy,
together with the measurable objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and the progress made towards achieving those objectives
are disclosed as below:

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will consider
board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, experience,
cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.
All Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, experience,
cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how. The
Company will use its best efforts to maintain not less than 20% female
representation in the Board by the end of 2024, subject to Directors (i) being
satisfied with the qualification and experience of the relevant candidates
after a reasonable review process based on the relevant criteria; and (ii)
fulfilling their fiduciary duties to act in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole when making the relevant appointments. The
Company will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting
staff at mid to senior levels such that the Company will have a pipeline of
female senior management and potential successor to our Board in a few
years' time in future.
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Monitoring, Reporting and Review

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the Board
annually in the corporate governance report and monitor the implementation
of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) on 13
November 2020 in respect of the selection and appointment of Directors
with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives suitable for the Company’s business.

Selection Criteria as the Measurable Objective

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration to
criteria including but not limited to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(@) Skills, knowledge and experience which are relevant to the operations
of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(b) Diversity to compliment the existing composition of the Board
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how;

() Commitment to ensure the devotion of sufficient time to carry out
their duties to attend board meetings and to participate in induction,
trainings and other board associated activities, and reasonable
consideration against the numbers of their services on other listed
and non-listed companies;

(d) Integrity and character that satisfies the Board and the Stock Exchange;
and

() Independence in particular for independent non-executive Directors
as required under the Listing Rule.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited K 5% 1% 8% 5 PR 22 &

B ERKkmE
REZECHEEFECEEAREIFES SRS
R - WEERABUERHEAIT ©

i3

RAZEEKEEE
B - ARERET

RixmIESTENEZ T
TZHBR °

REBE
EFEN-_T-TF+— A+ ARBERES

EERM-BAREBR(TREBEEK]) - §EER
BESeRNEEARAEHNKE - 8RNIZTE
BEHISTE -

BREEERATIENEE
%%%%%iﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁ‘iﬁ?‘%f’ﬁﬂjﬂﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ L7}

ERRNESSHBESERBENEREA - BEET
R (a2 ]):

@ EARFREMEBA
PIESEEE

BIH) S EARRE AL

(b) ABAEEEHRAABBRNZ T @ 1
BARRRER - Fik - &%  XEERHE
BE - BERE&R - SEERAHE

(0 HFEmERRARAKEEBEITHELEESZES
ANBE NS EE B REMESEE
BERE  UNMSHEREM ERRIELETA
ANRB BB ETEEEE

@) ATEERRMIFAEINDERES
&

(@ LEMRAMRELCEMBIIFERNTESM
BRI o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ B8 &

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following respective
procedures and process:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

For the appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee
may take measures that it considers appropriate in connection with
its identification and evaluation of a candidate. Upon compilation and
interview of the list of potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
will shortlist candidates for consideration by the Board based on the
Criteria and such other factors that it considers appropriate;

For the re-election of Director subject to retirement obligations
pursuant to the Articles at general meeting of the Company, the Board
shall consider and, if consider appropriate, recommend such retiring
Director to stand for re-election at general meeting; and

For the appointment through nomination by Shareholders to stand
for election as a Director at a general meeting, a Shareholder circular
containing, among others, biographical details of such nominated
candidate, must be lodged with the company secretary of the Company
within the lodgment period, thereafter, a supplementary circular
containing particulars of the candidate so proposed will be sent to all
Shareholders for information.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board has the final authority on determining
suitable candidate for appointment as Director.

Monitoring, Reporting and Review

The Nomination Committee will assess and report annually, in the Corporate

Governance Report, on the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
revisions that may be required and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 7
December 2020 which does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. According to the Dividend Policy, in considering the payment of
dividends to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future growth, the Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
. the general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

. the expected working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans of the Group;

. the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the other members of the Group;

. the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio and return on equity as
well as financial covenants to which the Group is subject to;

. the Group's liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividends;

. the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject to
from time to time;

. the general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group; and

. any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, including the laws of Cayman Islands and Articles. The
Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time. There
can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operational and financial performance of the Company. Other Board
meeting has been held during the Year for appointing of Directors of the
Company, etc. Such Board meeting involve the active participation, eitherin
person or through other electronic means of communication, of a majority
of Directors. The Directors make every effort to contribute to the formulation
of policy, decision-making and the development of the Group’s business.

During the Year, a total of thirteen Board meetings were held. Various

meetings of the Remuneration committee, Nomination committee and
Audit committee have also been held. The Chairman has had a meeting
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the

executive Directors.

Directors’ Attendance at the Board/Board Committee/General

Meeting

The individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, Board committee meeting and general meeting during the Year are

set out below:

ESEREAEER
EESRESFRETRIOAEHERE KO8
F—IR - AFmAR AR RS RES A RS E M
BRR - AFEENFGRTHBEEEEH - UZ
EARRERSE - RKEDEZB BRI HFERE
MEFBASAEEL2EFHE=TSSE EF
REIEHRR ~ FHARRAKREEBERELR
Bh - TNERRT o

RAEE  BEERLRTEHTZREE - A2
ANMERTZAFMNEEE RRZEENEX
ZECe%  IRCEBYUFNTESFTRTULE
HTEFHENEE °

Rl
m
bl

EERESEeR ESEEEEE KRR
KRR
SEBNAERHREERES ESEASE
%R AR AR BT -

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

LR/ BEEAY
Annual  Extraordinary
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General General
Board Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
Name of Director BEEfN2 EEEeR ENZES §MzEe REZEE RREFAE® RREMNAS
Executive Directors: HTES !
Ms. Zheng Yanling (Note 1) garit (M) 212 = = = = =
Mr. Heung Che Kan (Note 2) mEHEE (H2) 10/10 = = 5/5 171 0
Ms. Lee Ming Chu Jade (Note 3) FR%ET (H3) 6/6 = = = 171 0
Mr. Heung Yue Wing By St 13/13 - - - n 7
Mr. Ouyang Jianwen BB 13/13 = = = 7 7
Mr.Luo Hao (Note 4) BiEEAE (M) 1/ - - - n n
Mr. Wong Yuk (Note 5) ThaksE (Fisks) 10/10 = = = = =
Mr. Zhao Donggquan (Note 6) HRELE (fiFt6) 0/0 = - - - -
Non-Executive Director: FHTES:
Ms. Du Min (Note 7) ezt (W) 33 - - - - -
Independent BUEHTES:
Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chiu Tai Shing (Note 8) LN ¥ k) 1/ 33 7 6/6 11 10
Mr. Fung Hoi Fung (Note 9) BERLE (o) 4/4 22 33 - 11 -
Mr. Wan Wai Wing (Note 10) BREALE (o) 13/13 6/6 8/8 Vi N n
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (Note 1) B#1BEAE (HzE11) 8/8 44 44 n - n
Mr. Zhang Wenyong (Note 6) FXELE (Hiite) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 = -
Mr. Luo Sheng (Note 6) ZRFEE (Mie) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 - =
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Note 1:  Appointed on 22 March 2023

Note 2:  Resigned on 22 March 2023

Note 3:  Resigned on 3 January 2023

Note 4:  Appointed on 20 July 2022

Note 5:  Appointed on 15 August 2022

Note 6:  Appointed on 31 May 2023

Note 7:  Appointed on 15 February 2023 and resigned on 31 July 2023
Note 8:  Resigned on 28 April 2023

Note 9:  Retired on 12 October 2022

Note 10: Resigned on 31 May 2023

Note 11: Appointed on T November 2022

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending regular
and other board or board committee meetings. Meeting agendas and other
relevant information are provided to the Directors in advance of board or
board committee meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional
matters in the agenda for such meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
with a view to ensuring that board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes will be sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of board and board committee
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

All Directors are also entitled to have access to board papers and related
materials. These papers and related materials are in a form and quality
sufficient to enable the board to make informed decisions on matters placed
before it. Queries raised by Directors shall receive a prompt and full response
by the management.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited X A i 3R B BR 2

a1 RZZE_=F=A-+_HEZE

Mizk2: R-T-—=F=-A=-+=ABT

Mz M-TE-—=F— A=A

fifEs : R-T-_—_FEA_THEZRE

MizEs : W-E-_—FN\ATHBEEZT

fizte : W-ZB-_=FRA=1+—HEZE

Miz7: R _=F_ATHAEZERN_FT_
=F+A=+—HEE

fizts : N-ZT_=FMWA-+/\BEHE

fizte : M-ZTE_—_F+A+-HRME

fizEi0: R-ZE-=FRA=+—HEHE

Mg : R —F+—HA-BHEZRE

PREFCNEFEHRREMEESERRES
§§Ea§§é§§§ﬁﬁﬁ§§§ EELAEN  g@mEELE
MAEENERESETANESRET AN
EREE - 2REFCEALN - ARHRBINFR
SINBREZRRE

EZPRRFARANENER NERERE -
NHERESSIEFANMBERRL MR NIEE

—n

Tj— )

RLENRERREREEEZL2RES
HEZREBANGCEZA - EFECRRES
*i@gu%uﬂﬁm"ji%é{%ﬁ HAEEAES
BHABERAEN Mg HAHSRCHRHER
SRR AR -

BESTERRFESTS X RME@AME - M
*ﬁEﬁXFF)SﬂHF'*‘EJMHE’JH/K&’EZEEM**%%A
BAREEENEEFHABERE - EEERE
2EEERESRHNER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ B8 &

Role and responsibilities of the Board and management

The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, to discharge their duties in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. The Board is responsible for the overall
management of the Group’s business and affairs by establishing the overall
strategies, setting objectives and business development plans.

The Board has delegated its powers to the management for day-to-day
management of the Group’s operations. Under the leadership of the
executive Directors, the management is responsible for implementing the
strategies and plans established by the Board and the implementation of
the risk management and internal control systems.

Directors’ training and continuous professional development

All Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, there was in-
house training conducted by external consultants for the Directors on their

EFeREEENRERER
E=EMMARASHETRSG  FERE - A1
UMARBRERRORENGZBTRE - EF 9
BBHIFTRERE - RERRREBERREE
BEAEENERREBNERERE -

EFEEHAKENEH AR EENENRT

BEE  EEEGEHNTEEFNEET  BEEE
B2t KBRS YERAREERA

HERAL o

ESNEIIRBEEXER

2REZEDEFETETR LM E T E A
T BE ﬁEﬂ%Eﬁi%@f’Eﬂj‘x‘ﬂ%&*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁ °
MRAFE - ARRERESFN LM AR BIAREAME
BIROERBETHORY - BENEBR/BRELTAEIN

duties, responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and other law TERER B NIIET - 2RESHDLEIFETE
and regulations. All Directors have participated in continuous professional BR - RRAFEREINSES Z @RS s
development and the individual training record of each Director received during ™
the Year is as follows:
Attending Reading
seminars materials
HEWE R R
Executive Directors: BITES:
Ms. Zheng Yanling ER W3S 17 1 v/ v
Mr. Heung Yue Wing MK E v/ v
Mr. Ouyang Jianwen BRES X S v v
Mr. Luo Hao RIEgEE v/ v
Mr. Wong Yuk FrBsE v v
Mr. Zhao Dongquan RS v/ v/
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFEHITES !
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent IRETE A v v
Mr. Zhang Wenyong KX BE v v/
Mr. Luo Sheng BRTE v v/

During the year, each of the Directors complied with code provision C.1.4 of
the CG Code.

RAFE  FEZELETLEBRTAZTANEX
FECI14F -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed by the Company
for a fixed term of three year, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles, which may be terminated by either party serving
to the other party not less than two months’ written notice of termination.

As disclosed the announcement of the Company dated 12 October 2022, Mr.
Fung Hoi Fung had retired as the independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 October 2022. Following the retirement of Mr. Fung Hoi
Fung, (i) the total number of the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company had been reduced to two, which represent less than one-third of the
Board under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (ii) also less than three independent
non-executive Directors under 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company failed to
comply with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the number of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Board were reduced
to two and fall below the minimum number required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

On 1 November 2022, the Company appointed Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 November 2022.
The Company then re-complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10, 3.10A
and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed the announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2023, Mr. Chiu
Tai Shing had resigned as independent non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 28 April 2023. Following the resignation of Mr. Chiu Tai Shing, (i)
the total number of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
had been reduced to two, which represent less than one-third of the Board under
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (ii) also less than three independent non-executive
Directors under 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company failed to comply with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the number of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Board were reduced to two and fall below
the minimum number required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited K 5% 1% 8% 5 BR 2 &)
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On 31 May 2023, the Company appointed Mr. Zhang Wenyong and Mr. Luo
Sheng as independent non-executive Directors, the members of the Audit
Committee and member and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 31 May 2023. The Company then re-complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Company still failed to comply
the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

On 31 July 2023, Ms. Du Min had been resigned as non-executive Director of
the Company. After the resignation of Ms. Du Min, the Company had complied
with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Except the matters mentioned above, during the Year, the Company had three
independent non-executive Directors which represent more than one-third of
the Board members, and that at least one of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1)
and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and the Company has reviewed and considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.

MNZZB-_=FRA=1+—H  ARFIREIEXEL
ERBREEBBNIIENTES  BEREZESKE
RFMEZEEEXERER BT -_=FAA="1
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees on 13 November
2020, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee specific aspects of the Group's affairs.
Each of the Board Committees has its own terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code relating to its authority and duties. All Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, including
access to management or professional advice if considered necessary. The

ESZRE

EXgR_ZT_TF+—AT+=AXZ=@EE

=Z8g  HBEZREZES

g8 MU

BRABTTERSR -

BE 5%

oo 7N

HENZ 8

ABREXER - RARERH - KE8

composition of each of the Committees as at the date of this report is as AT -
follows:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EENSR EREER FMEEE REZEE
Executive Director BITES
Mr. Heung Che Kan MEEEE (RZTZ=%F
(resigned on 22 March 2023) =A-+—H&T) = = Chairman
FE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFEHITES
Mr. Chiu Tai Shing BRESEE (RZE=F
(resigned on 28 April 2023) A=+ /\B#ft) Member Member Member
g & B
Mr. Fung Hoi Fung BEREE (RZE=Z=F
(retired on 12 October 2022) +A+=HiRE) Chairman Member =
*FE 4=
Mr. Wan Wai Wing (resigned on 31 May ~ JBEf&L4E (R-ZT =4
2023) AA=+—HET) Member Chairman Member
& *E K8
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent BEmTEEE (M2
(appointed on 1 November 2022) +—FB—BHEZE) Chairman Member Member
*FE K E KE
Mr. Zhang Wenyong RXBEAE (RZTEZ=F
(appointed on 31 May 2023) RA=+—HEZE) Member Member Chairman
D4 K8 FfE
Mr. Luo Sheng BREE (RZEZ=%F
(appointed on 31 May 2023) RAA=+—HEZT) Member Chairman Member

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited X A i 3R B BR 2
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members who are all independent
non-executive Directors and is delegated with the authority from the Board
primarily to oversee the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, and the adequacy of the external and internal audits. Details of the
authority and duties of Audit Committee are set out in the Audit Committee’s
terms of reference which are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held six meetings. Details of the
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee in the said meeting
are set out under the sub-heading “Directors’ Attendance at Board/Board
Committee/General Meeting” above.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year:

. reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems and its accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions;

. reviewed the external auditor’s independence;

. discussed the scope of 2023 audit with external auditor and approved
the audit fees;

. met with the external auditors, reviewed and made recommendations
for the Board's approval on the annual and interim reports of the

Company;

. reviewed, with external auditor, the key audit matters as included in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report”;

. reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems including the internal audit function;

. made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor; and

. met with the external auditor, in the absence of the management.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, which comprises
three independent non-executive Directors and is delegated with the
authority from the Board to establish, review, and make recommendations
to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and practices. Details of
the authority and duties of Remuneration Committee are set out in the
Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference which are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held eight meetings. Details
of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee in the
said meeting are set out under the sub-heading “Directors’ Attendance at
Board/Board Committee/General Meeting” above.

The summary of work of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is
as follows:

. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group’s remuneration
policy and strategy;

. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors, independent non-executive
Directors and senior management during the Year; and

. assessed performance of executive Directors and approving the terms
of executive Director’s service contract.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, which comprises
(i) one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors
or (ii) three independent non-executive Directors and is delegated with
the authority from the Board to formulate and implement the policy for
nominating Board candidates for election by Shareholders and assess
independence of independent non-executive Directors. Details of the
authority and duties of Nomination Committee are set out in the Nomination
Committee’s terms of reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held seven meetings. Details
of the attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee in the said
meeting are set out under the sub-heading “Directors’ Attendance at Board/
Board Committee/General Meeting” above.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited K 5% 1% 8% 5 BR 2 &)
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The summary of work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is as
follows:

. reviewed the existing Board's structure, size and composition;

. reviewed and made recommendation on the appointment of an
executive Directors;

. reviewed and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and

. made recommendation on the retiring Directors at the 2022 AGM of
the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the Year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group in accordance with the
statutory requirements, accounting standards and other financial disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules. The financial results of the Group
are announced in a timely manner in accordance with statutory and/or
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, Prism Hong
Kong and Shanghai Limited, in respect of their audit and non-audit services
for the Year was as follows:

REZEENAFEZTHEHRENT :

- RARKEFSHRE - ABRKEA

- REATESRNEH  ARMFELERR

=
X

- R RAHMEBMLIFRITESELL &

. RARB B —_FREBAFAL EHRT
EEEHEEESE -

o5 B B %
B FE ER 3R

EZemAEUNRIBEERLK L&A
rn%EEJJTEI’\J/\mﬂﬂ‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁzéﬁﬁgﬁﬁém.:l
g mEK - WEEMITHEFNAEEEBEMR

MEL - AEBNMTHLACRRET R RE
ERTEG MG o

EEUVIMBEMBEESHHIBEANERTHETE
EE - ATREH AR RIFEL S B EARRR
i o

ARESNER IR ZRED 0 B AR DN R A F I BIL =
BB S | — & -

T e
RAFEE AR BZEE E2BEH et =R

PTER A AR ET KIER
HFEBMEIT

ARSI 21 2 pE

HK$'000
TAT

FEEIRG

Annual audit services

730

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the level of
fees paid/payable by the Company to the Company’s external auditor for
annual audit services is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement
between the auditor and the management of the Company during the Year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr.Chow Chi Wing has become the company secretary of the Company since
1 November 2022. Mr. Chow has confirmed that he has taken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year and has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The biography of Mr. Chow is set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit,
convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of
one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board. Such enquiries can be
addressed to the Company Secretary in writing by post to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Rooms 506-507A, Empire
Centre, 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or by email to
info@tianchengholdings.com.cn.

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the AGM.

Procedures to put forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting

The Company is not aware of any provision in the Articles or the Companies
Law of Cayman Islands for shareholders to propose new resolution at a
general meeting. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph headed “Procedures for
shareholders to convene general meeting”.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
AGM and other general meetings. At the AGM, Directors are available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

The Company adopted an amended memorandum and articles of association
of the Company (the “Constitutional Documents”) during the Year. Details
please refer to the Company’s circulars dated 9 September 2022 and 17
November 2022, respectively. Besides that, during the Year, there were no
change to the Constitutional Documents of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and level of risk tolerance of the Company, establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board is committed to oversee and review the design,
implementation and monitoring of such risk management and internal
control systems through the Audit Committee on an ongoing basis so as to
safeguard shareholders’ interest.

The Group established the risk management and internal control systems
with aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and provided reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatements or losses caused by judgment in decision
making process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to establish an internal
audit function during the Year. The external consultant has assisted the
Audit Committee in carrying out an independent review on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, and has reported the status of its review to the Audit Committee on
aregular basis. The Group has formulated an internal audit charter to define
the scope and duties and responsibilities of the internal audit function and
its reporting protocol.
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The Group has also conducted an annual risk assessment for the year
to identify potential strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and
compliance risks of its major business. Each of potential risk was rated at
different level under the consideration of internal and external risk factors.
Respective internal control measures were proposed to mitigate the
consequences of the potential risks to the Group.

Based on the risk assessment results and following a risk based audit
approach, a continuous three-year audit plan was proposed which prioritised
the risks identified into annual audit projects. An annual audit project was
performed by the external consultant according to the audit plan with a view
to assisting the Board and the Audit Committee to evaluate the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has also formulated policies on handling and dissemination
of inside information in accordance with “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” under the Securities and Future Commission, which set out
procedures in handling inside information in a secure and proper manner as
well as those aimed to avoid mishandling of inside information of the Group.

The Board has discussed and reviewed its risk management and internal
control systems with the review covered the effectiveness of material
controls (including strategical, financial, operational and compliance
controls) at entity and operational levels. Based on the result of the review
performed by the Company’s Audit Committee and the external consultant,
the Directors considered that the Group has maintained adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the Year.
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About This Report

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) along with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is pleased to present its Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Report (the “Report”) for the year ended 31 May
2023 (the “Year”), prepared in accordance with Appendix 27, Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide, of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This Report aims to disclose relevant ESG information, including information
on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group, as well as environmental and social key
performance indicators (“KPIs”), to the stakeholders of the Group.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in marine construction works, other civil engineering
works and provision of vessel chartering services in Hong Kong. Unless
otherwise stated, the reporting boundary of this Report covers the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong and the Company’s office in Hong Kong.

Statement From The Board

The Group understands that good ESG governance is the key to the long-
term development of an enterprise. The board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of the Company upholds its primary leading role and
management responsibilities in the ESG aspects, including:

. overseeing the Group’s assessment of relevant environmental and
social impacts;

. understanding the potential impact of ESG issues on the Group's
business model and associated risks;

. aligning with the expectations of investors and the requirements of
regulatory authorizations;

. improving materiality assessment and reporting processes to ensure
that policies are implemented and enforced decisively and consistently;
and

. promoting a top-down culture to ensure that ESG considerations are
integrated into the business decision-making process.
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The Group has specifically formed an ESG governance team consisting of the
Directors, company secretary, management and external consultant, which
updates the Board on a regular basis regarding the reporting progress. The
main responsibilities of the team are:

. to formulate the Group's ESG strategy;

. to identify and assess the Group’s ESG related risks to ensure an
effective ESG risk management and internal control system, thereby
enhancing the ESG performance of the Group;

. to review, recognize and report to the Board on the Group’s ESG
framework, standards, prioritization and objectives;

. to supervise and implement the ESG strategies on the Group’s level;
. to monitor, review and evaluate the Group’s ESG performance; and

. to review and advise the Board on the Group’s reporting to the public.

Department heads are responsible for overseeing their respective ESG risks
and objectives, and reporting regular updates to the ESG governance team
and the Board of on relevant progress and challenges encountered.

The Group continues to monitor and response to the public’s expectation
of the Group's sustainable development and disclosure of ESG information.
Stakeholders expect to understand the Group’s ESG policies and non-
financial risks more thoroughly. The Group aims to strike a balance between
optimising business opportunities and mitigating environmental and social
risks.

In this Report, the Group has measured and reported various environmental
and social KPls. The measurement and reporting of KPIs is an ongoing and
consistent process, allowing for meaningful comparisons of ESG data in in
the future.

When preparing and compiling this Report, the Group has reviewed its
existing policies and achieved a better understanding of the values of
ESG reporting. During the reporting process through the approach of
measurement, management and changes, the Group hopes to drive
improvement and innovation while minimizing the Group’s non-financial
risks. The Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social
activities which benefit the community as a whole.
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Communication with Stakeholder & Materiality
Assessment

Communication is an important aspect of our daily operations. Stakeholder
engagement and communication are crucial in understanding the
expectations and priorities of our stakeholders. The Group values the
opinion of our stakeholders and has thus set up and maintained various
communication channels for different stakeholder groups. Comments and
suggestions are welcomed as they represent an opportunity to improve the
Group and its services.

Stakeholders

Key Communication Channels
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Shareholders . Announcements and circulars
. Interim and annual reports
. Shareholders’ meetings
. Company website
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Suppliers and subcontractors . Business correspondences
. Procurement contracts and letters of undertaking
. Performance appraisals
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Government and regulatory authorities . Compliance inspections
. Due submissions
. Conferences and seminars
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Community and public . Press releases and news
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Apart from regular communication channels, the Group has also conducted
an environmental, social and governance survey to collect opinions from
employees, management and external stakeholders, so that the Group can
better assess the materiality of various environmental, social and governance
aspects.

The implementation of materiality assessment has been divided into three
main phases:

i.  identifying the potential material ESG aspects that may have impacts
on the Group's business or stakeholders based on the Group’s actual

development and industry characteristics;

ii. inviting internal and external stakeholders to complete questionnaires
to understand their level of concern for each aspect; and

iii.  analysing the results of questionnaires to determine the priority of the
potential material aspects.
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The following matrix diagram is prepared by the Group to illustrate the REBBBUATEEBEFBASEZEERFNER
significance of various issues to our stakeholders and business: EENEZEM

Significance to stakeholders
HEHENSEEY
Mid
h

Low
{158

Significance to business

HEBHERME
Low Mid High
(3 a3 =

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§ 57



58\

Environment
RIE

1.  Environmental
compliance
BEAR

2. Vehicle emissions
management

B E R

3. Vessels emissions
management
iaRiiake 9 =P L

4.  Civil construction works
management
TARBETEER

5. Marine construction
works management
BERETREER

6. Greenhouse gas emission

BE RN
7.  Waste management

FRRYEE
8.  Energy consumption

gERfEE

9.  Use of water resources
KERERA

10. Green office
HBEWNE

11.  Responding to climate
change

R RARE L

&

Labour Practices

BIESR

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Employment compliance

EREH
Employees’ remuneration
and benefits

BEFMEAER
Employees’ working
hours and holidays

e 8 TIER B REA
Diversity and equal
opportunities
LTSRS
Occupational health and
safety

BEREELE
Training and
development
IR R
Prevention of child labour
and forced labour
BrIEE T RaaH|ss T
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Operating Practices

EEES

19.

20.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Community Investment

HERE
Operational compliance  30. Charity work
EEEH BETE
Management of 31. Promotion of community
environmental risks in the development
supply chain
EIRHEEAIRIE R R HEBT R
Management of social 32. Poverty alleviation

risks in the supply chain
ERHEEEN TR

Procurement practices

KBTI

REEH

Quality management

m'E B

Client health and safety

FRREERERTE
Protection of intellectual
property

REMBERE

Research and
development
DAk

Information security
Bilks

Client privacy protection
P ILRBRE

Anti-corruption

REB
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Based on the above materiality assessment, 10 material aspects has been
identified for the Group’s business and stakeholders. The Group has spent
more effort to assess, control, monitor and report the material aspects to
meet stakeholders’ expectations.

Material Aspects
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1. Environmental compliance 14. Employees’ working hours and holidays
REAR 18 8 TIER B RE

4.  Civil construction works management 16. Occupational health and safety
TARBETRER BEREELE

5. Marine construction works management 19. Operational compliance
BERETIRER EEAR

12. Employment compliance 23. Quality management
ERER mEEE

13. Employees’ remuneration and benefits 29. Anti-corruption
1’ 8 % B Kz 7 R&5

Our Environment

The Group is principally engaged in marine construction works, other civil
engineering works and provision of vessel chartering services in Hong
Kong. We understand that our operations may impact the environment
and different stakeholders expect an environmentally friendly culture in
the corporate landscape. An Environmental Management Plan (the “EMP”)
has been adopted to assess, control and monitor various environmental
nuisances arising from our operations.

During the Year, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. The relevant laws and regulations include but not limited
to: Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance, Dumping at Sea Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance
and Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance in Hong Kong.
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Environmental Management

When acting as main contractor, subcontractor or vessel chartering
service provider, the Group is committed to implement and maintain an
environmental management system by following the EMP. Protecting the
environment is the responsibility of every staff in the organization. The Group
is committed to sustainable operation and minimizes any adverse impact
on the environment resulting from our business activities. The principles of
our environmental policy are as follows:

. focus on prevention of pollution, waste minimization and resource
conservation as critical considerations within our core management

processes;

. comply with applicable legal requirements and other requirements to
which the Group subscribes which relate to its environmental aspects;

. provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation of
environmental nuisance abatement and environmental management;

. obtain and renew the necessary environmental licenses registrations
and permits and comply with relevant statutory requirements and

licensing standards;

. conduct regular performance reviews to ensure that environmental
objectives and the requirements of interested parties are met;

. prevent pollution within and outside of the site;

. minimise environmental nuisances and generation of construction and
demolition materials in execution of the works;

. provide of staff training to all levels of persons involved in the works
to ensure understanding, implementation and development of these

principles throughout our business; and

. make continual improvement.
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Protection of Marine Ecology

During the Year, one of our projects was to deploy a number of artificial reefs
in The Brothers Marine Park to provide artificial habitat for the purposes of
marine and fisheries resources enhancement. The Group hopes to tender
for similar projects in the future to contribute to the protection of marine
ecology. Regarding other marine construction projects, in order to minimize
its impact to the marine ecology, the Group has adopted marine travel routes
and management plan for construction and associated vessels and marine
activities plan. The plans can reduce disturbance to corals and cetaceans
due to vessel movement.

Promoting Environmental Awareness

To promote environmental awareness of our staff, the environmental
policy statement is effectively communicated to our staff and a mandatory
induction training for new workers and subcontractors are conducted by
the environmental officer/supervisor (the “EO/ES”). Environmental bulletin
boards are available for display of posters, signs and statistics. The EO/ES also
regularly conduct site inspection, communicate with workers and promote
environmental practices.

Apart from the induction training, the workers receive regular training on
environmental nuisance abatement and waste management. The content
of the training include suitable topics relevant to the trade of the workers.
The topics include:

. construction dust, air emission and suppression;

. construction noise and suppression;

. wastewater handling, discharge and treatment facilities;

. waste collection, handling and disposal;

. resources and energy saving;

. site plant and machinery (operation and maintenance);

. maintenance of site access, site boundary and haul roads;

. marine travel route and management;

. loading, unloading and transfer of material; and

. loading and unloading and transfer of heavy or metallic materials.
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Environmental Policies and Control Measures

Policies and control measures with continuous effort are required to
minimize environmental impacts and promote efficient use of resources.
The Group has adopted various policies and measures in the EMP to tackle
different kinds of potential impact to the environment. The policies and
measures are regularly reviewed by the project team/EO/ES to monitor
the effectiveness and efficiency. In case the policies or measures cannot
effectively minimize the nuisance or promote efficient use of resources,
project team/EO/ES shall advise other measures to further control the
impacts. In addition, the Group considers the efficient use of resources on
site or in the office, such as electricity and water, is of equal importance to
emission policies. Efficient use of resources not only can reduce waste and
emissions from the sources, but also reduce operating expenses, which is
mutually beneficial to the Group and the environment. Since the Group’s
operation do not include any production of packaged product, the disclosure
for total packaging material used for finished products is not applicable.

Through the implementation of the policies, measures and monitoring
of their effectiveness, the Group hopes to reduce its carbon footprint by
controlling the amount of emissions, waste produced and resources used.
Various emission reduction and energy efficiency initiatives have been
implemented, which are set out in the EMP, environmental policies and
control measures.

Regarding the Group’s emission reduction targets and energy use efficiency
targets, the Group shall continue to optimize the policies and measures
in order to control or reduce the intensity of emissions, wasted produced
and resources used. The Group shall analyse our emission and energy use
patterns based on a 3-year timeline and consider implementing more
specific targets.
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The highlights of policies and measures are as follows: BUR RIEHEHENT -
Aspects Policies and Measures
B BERRIEH
Dust, air emissions and greenhouse gas emissions . appropriate screens, enclosures and water spraying systems
EER - BERPEIN R E RES RN are deployed to minimize construction dust;
- WMETBEENRES  IRAEKES  URERSHEIS
EE ;

. ultra-low-sulphur diesel are used in all diesel-operated
construction plant on site to minimize emissions;

- PTAIMSRIEEMZERBEABE WA AR B
)

. engines of construction equipment, private cars and vessels
during idling are switched off to minimize emissions;
EHENEBRRERE  AREAMENEDRINES
A BER

. regular maintenance are conducted to ensure equipment,
private cars and vessels are operating in good condition in
order to minimize noise and emissions;

- ETEHERE  BERRE  LRERMERFEENRD
R E MR

. only regulated machines with exemption/approval label
under Regulatory Control on Emission from Non-road Mobile
Machinery (NRMMs) shall be adopted for the projects;

- BEERERAAEFERBHEMREINEETEG TAEHR
SRR B E WS

. encourage employees to use their best endeavours to take
public transport during business trips;

- BEESELHEHRREERAHLE

. encourage employees to reduce unnecessary overseas
business trips, thus reducing indirect carbon emissions;

- HEEERDTBEEINEE - femB A BRI

. consider energy efficient products when procuring and
replacing equipment, e.g. replacing incandescent lighting
with LED lighting;

- REBLRERREREZERRYGEERD - HI2ALEDIREFER
BHEa

. turn off electrical appliances or switch them to standby
mode when they are not in use, thus reducing the amount of
electricity used;

- BRTERRERSGEEEIRERAAE - (R PTREE

. turn off all unnecessary lighting, air conditioning and electrical
appliances before leaving the office;

- BERMAERIBEMATLERRE  SRKLES

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§
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Aspects Policies and Measures

fEmE BERR ik

Noise generated use quieter plant — Quality Powered Mechanical Equipment
EENRS (QPME);

Water consumption and discharge into water

FEKE R [AIZKEES

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited X A i 3R B BR 2

EAREHRE - EERIRE
install silence/noise enclosure/acoustic shed where practicable;
EA{TOER TRERS REE TBEM
turn off idling plants and equipment;
AR EMEE MRE
regular inspection and maintenance of water supply outlets
are carried out to avoid water dripping;
KRR EETTE IR R E AR 2 RIS
promote water conservation awareness among workers
through training;
FHRFIIRE T ASLORKER
provide sufficient portable toilets on sites and vessels;
T R ER M R S BRI P
cover open stockpiles of construction materials or waste with
impervious sheeting during rainstorm in order to prevent
washing away of materials or waste;
ERRERE A NE KRN S BRI EREM B S EEY) -
VAR LA R SRR O AE
adopt proper control in chemical and chemical waste storage
to prevent spillage;
B m A BEREYFRRIUEE B AR IR
prevent barges to be filled to a level which may cause
overflow of materials of pollution of water during loading and
transportation;
07 IEE AR B BB R P AR AT R B BUKS AW E
Sin tH B9IK S
clean excess materials on the decks and exposed fittings of
barges before moving the vessels;
BEMERBTZFR ERBEMINERE FZARYE
overflow or lean material overboard (LMOB) systems are
prohibited

1ES& 7 iz M BHE 7K (LMOB) & 4t
maintain adequate freeboard on barges to reduce the
likelihood of decks being washed by wave action;
TEE M ERIF R A TAZ - DUR A BRAR A ROR A F ARl Y

Ablm_:

all vessels shall be sized such that adequate clearance is
maintained between vessels and the seabed at all states of
tide;
FTEMER R T RBREME 75 MEE T EREK 2
R4 2 S fEBa
vessel movements shall be kept to a minimum;

BB RRFERERE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR - %t

Aspects
[Bm

9
=
1
B
L
I

Policies and Measures

BUR K i

Waste generated and disposal of waste

BERYELNERYRE

prevent works from causing foam, oil, grease, litter or other

objectionable matter to be present in the water within and

adjacent to the works sites;

B 1 TA2E T AN AR T a7k AR E 4580 ~ OB~ A ~ 3
TS EAM T ARBREDE

reduction at source, e.g. minimize the generation of

construction and demolition materials, use electronic means

to reduce paper usage and use duplex printing;

WEIREE LR - PIInE SR D ZEMFRM B NES © &
ﬁﬁ%%)‘ifwﬁz%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ W AEFAEMFTED :

encourage employees to recycle equipment such as computers

and communication devices through the recycling programme

of Environmental Protection Department;
SEVEEBBREREZHNEWETE - EIREINERKA
BAERS

reuse office stationaries (e.g. envelopes and folders);
ERBRLEXEAR (PINEHMERRE)

reuse the inert materials produced on construction site;
BERAERSEMRESEMME

recycle paper, aluminium cans and plastic bottles;

BIYAR - tnEEA B

inert waste and non-inert waste must be separated before
disposal;

B RE MBI R ER BRI AD R

encourage workers to use reusable dlshware;

SR TACAAERERNEAR

provide adequate waste skips and garbage bins with proper
cover;

MR AN SR BN A BB R

employ licensed waste collectors to remove general refuse

from the site to licensed landfill sites or refuse transfer station;
2 B R RE D U R P S — AR BRI T E A R hE R R BY
PR EE Y

separate collection and storage for general refuse, construction/
demolition material and chemical wastes; and

HE—REBIR - R R YIRIF L EREY o FIRERETT
&

dispose waste on a regular basis to minimize odor, pest and
litter impacts.

EHRIEREY) - ARERDERK - ERNAIFHOTE -
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Air Emissions

During the Year (“FY 2023"), the Group's sources of direct air emissions
were from gaseous fuel consumption from private cars and marine gas oil
consumption from vessels. The air emissions of the private cars included
10,519 grams (year ended 31 May 2022 (“FY 2022"): 7,194 grams) of
nitrogen oxides (NOy), 286 grams (year ended 31 May 2022: 173 grams) of
sulphur oxides (SOx) and 775 grams (year ended 31 May 2022: 530 grams)
of respiratory suspended particles. The air emissions of the vessels included
26,169 kilograms (year ended 31 May 2022: 29,837 kilograms) of nitrogen
oxides (NOy), 46 kilograms (year ended 31 May 2022: 52 kilograms) of sulphur
oxides (SOx) and 551 kilograms (year ended 31 May 2022: 628 kilograms) of
respiratory suspended particles.

BERHERK

RAFE(ZB-=0&]) A&EENEEE
SHEBURSER B FLR B RALE R R E R AL
R - LRERERBEREREAST(NOK)
105198 (B2 -_—_FRA=+—HILEE
((ZEBE=ZZBFE ) : 7,194%) ~ AW (SO
867 (BE_E-_—_FRAA=Z+—HLEFE:
17352 ) RAIRA B ER T 7752 (BE T - —
HEA=+—HBIFE 530%) - MENERIENR
BEREH(NOK) 26,169 TR (HE-T——
ARA=+—HBILEE :29837T %) ALY
(SO 46FH (BE—_E-_—FRA=+—HI&E
[ :52F %) RATRASBEN F551 FR(HE=
T —FRA=+—HILFEE :628T %) °

KPI A1.1: Private cars emissions and respective emissions data

BRERERALY  AXEHRRAEEREE

. . 775
Respiratory suspended particles

AR AT
530

286
Sulphur oxides

>
mefty I 173

. . 10,519
Nitrogen oxides
it )
7,194
0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000
9
I
FY2022 N FY2023

=Sl - ;- ey <

1 The vehicle emission factors were calculated based on the Hong Kong
Environmental Protection Department’s Vehicle Emission Calculation Model.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited K 5% 1% 8% 5 BR 2 &)
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KPI A1.1: Vessels emissions and respective emissions data

ERANERA  MESRREREREE

551
Respiratory suspended particles

AR AT T
628

46
Sulphur oxides
E=Rlat7) -

_ , 26,169
Nitrogen oxides

0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 30,000 35,000
kg
=

FY2022 | FY2023

—ECBFE ZE=EBF
The vessels emission factors were calculated based on the “Quantification of 2 MERERHTZBEOMNEBEZ B € AEntec UK
Emissions from Ships Associated with Ship Movements between Ports in The lelted?‘ﬁﬁﬁ’]fﬁﬁﬁ“%ﬁﬁi 1jlt BEOZHER
European Community” from the European Commission published by Entec UK FREOMELEREL |5

Limited.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group's direct greenhouse gas emissions of the private cars and vessels
included carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide (N,0). The
carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emission of greenhouse gas from private
cars and vessels were 45,879 kilograms and 1,486,300 kilograms, respectively
(year ended 31 May 2022: 31,375 kilograms and 1,694,634 kilograms
respectively). Our major indirect greenhouse gas emission were: 14,375
kilograms (year ended 31 May 2022: 3,645 kilograms) of carbon dioxide (CO,)
resulted from the generation of electricity, which was used in the office and
purchased from CLP Power Hong Kong Limited. Other minor and indirect
greenhouse gas emissions sources were 7,358 kilograms (year ended 31 May
2022: 1,200 kilograms) of carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emission resulted
from office waste paper.

During the Year, the total carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emission of
the Group was 1,553,912 kilograms (year ended 31 May 2022: 1,730,851
kilograms) and the carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emissions intensity was
7.85 kilogram/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue (year ended 31 May 2022:
8.15 kilogram/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue).

In general, the total air emissions and greenhouse gas emissions for the Year
has slightly decreased. The majority of emissions were from fuel usage by
the vessels. The decrease in emissions from vessels during the Year was due
to decreased usage of passenger boats and tug boats as required by the
projects. The Group shall continue to implement the environmental policies
and control measures with a view to reducing fuel usage of our vessels. The
emissions from private cars have increased during the Year and the Group
shall continue to encourage the use of public transport and switching to
electric cars to further reduce emissions. The emissions from purchased
electricity and paper waste increased was mainly attributable to usage of
one new office and one new construction site office set up during the Year.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited X A i 3R B BR 2

BERREHEML
AEENALREERMEERAER ‘&f?‘i?ﬁﬁlaﬁ_
S1LHR(CO,) ~ Bt (CH,) R EALTA(N,0) ©
RERMERR ﬁ*&%:@tﬁﬁ(coz)%‘gﬁkﬁﬁz
DR A45,879T 72 121,486,300 T R (EHE T =
—HFRAA=T—BHLEFE : D5A31375FTR K
1,694,634T 7% ) - AEERNETEMZARAEREH
WA BHEAMNZE/HR(CO,) 14,375 T = (&
EZ-_—FRA=+—HIEFE: 3645?%)
BRRRAERBERBTEETNERA
HEMEEERERE ﬁtﬁﬁzx/ﬁ%%@ﬁ#“*
7358 TR(BE—ZTE-_—_FRHA=FT—HILF
§ :1,200F %) Z&{thx(CO,) B = HEM -

RAFE - AEEZS/H(CO,) &S FEMAR
B1,5539NFm(EHE—E-_—FHA=+—H
IEFE 1,730,851 F 5 ) R =& bk (Co,) & 25t
WEE A7 TR,/ FTETHE(BE-E—_—F
HEA=+—BILEE :815T% /THExkzE) °

BEEME  AFEMNBEREMNEEREEFEME
EHEHR T o RE DR EMENREHE
AE - NEERAMENTRR D TIBERIBEE Z
K EM RIEMERAER DR - AEBRES
MITIRIZBUR RIEHITEE - DAR DA E R BARHE
AE  -AFERBLREMPERBAAEZEM - &K
EEBEESBFAAERIBTANKASR

B PUE— R HER o INBE D R EEAR BERUG
MEZRANEARAFETZN—EARAE
—EEEMBPNAE
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KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions

BEREMERA.2  RERBHR

Total

1,553,912

4=

7,358
From paper waste
KERER

1,200

. 14,375
From purchased electricity
KBEINEE
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REME

2,000,000

) 45,879
From private cars
REFLRKE
31,375
0 400,000 800,000 1,200,000 1,600,000
FY2022 B FY2023
—E-BF o=

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from private cars was calculated based
on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department
and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from purchased electricity was
calculated based on the emission factor obtained from the “2021 Sustainability
Report” and “2022 Sustainability Report” of CLP Group.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from paper waste was calculated based
on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department
and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from vessels was calculated based on
the Emission Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency.

RRE_ALBEEHRRBEEEREREEZR
EERETRERMKBTEEEY(BE £
F AR R ERBI MR ENRE
HEEDEE -

INEEN @I EEHBBERFTEEEN
021 A FEERERE ) R(022] HFEHRBE)
FTERMBEMASGTE -

BER_ASIREEHIRETERREREZRE
BRETREZEMA(EEEEYN(BE - FxE3k
RHEAE) R ERBIHIRBR N RENRESE
SI)FHE -

WME S E EHMRBEXEBEZRRRRER
VRERBHNEFIEEME
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Discharge into Water and Land, and Generation of Hazardous and
non-Hazardous Waste

During the Year, the Group’s major source of discharge into water was
from use of water in the office and on the vessels. The amount of water
consumption and discharge in the office was not available for collection
since water supply and processing of sewage were handled by the property
management company or relevant local government departments. The
total water consumption on the vessels for the Year was 1,283 cubic meters
(year ended 31 May 2022: 1,428 cubic meters) and the intensity was 0.01
cubic meter/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue (year ended 31 May 2022:
0.01 cubic meter/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue). The decrease in
water consumption during the Year was mainly due to decrease in marine
construction projects.

[EIkR LT  REEREZERYHEL

RAFE @ AEENEBRAKERRIRERBEHA
ERMERK o ARRKMSKEERYEER
AR E EEEAIFEE - BULRHAEAK
MPERAKEEEZNE - NEEMERTEKES
128V FRK(EHE_E-_—_FRA=F+T—HILF
€ 11,4283 7 K) REE B0 K/ TFTHET
Wa(BE—_E-_—_FRA=+—HLEFE :0.01
SR TFAETMKE) KAEERKERLEER
RN EELBEE R -

KPI A2.2: Water Consumption in total
BRENIERA2.2 | BFEKE

1,283

Water consumption

EKE

0 1,200 1,250 1,300 1,350 1,400 1,450
cubic meter
FY2022 MW FY2023
2o CWF T =F

Printer toners were the major sources of hazardous waste in the offices,
the total weight of hazardous waste generated was 7.15 kilograms (year
ended 31 May 2022: 1.95 kilograms) and the intensity was 0.00001 kilogram/
thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue (year ended 31 May 2022: 0.00001
kilogram/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue). The hazardous waste in
the offices was collected and recycled by relevant service providers. The
increase in hazardous waste was mainly attributable to the increase in usage
of printer toners by one new office and one new construction site office set
up during the Year.

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited K 5% 1% 8% 5 BR 2 &)

AR ANEEEEEMNEERR  BEEE
MBEEERIISTR(BE-_E_—_FRA=T—
HIEFE 1.95F 7% ) KR E £0.00001 T2,/ F
BTWR(BE—E-_—FRA=1t—"HIFE:
0.00001F 5%,/ FTHETWE) - WAEHEEEE
YA RS IR R E KB - BEEEDH
BINEERARANEEHRN—EHIAER—E
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KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced
FEREVERA13  ELERERERYEE

Total hazardous waste produced

FIEAEEEEDEE _ 195

7.15

0.00 1.00 2.00 3.00

FY2022

—ECWF

At the construction sites, the main contractor was registered with the
Environmental Protection Department as a chemical waste producer and
followed the relevant guidelines. Good quality containers compatible with
the chemical wastes were used and incompatible chemical were stored
separately. Appropriate labels were securely attached on each chemical
waste container indicating the corresponding chemical characteristics of
the chemical waste. Licensed collectors were hired to transport and dispose
the chemical wastes at the approved Chemical Waste Treatment Centre or
other licensed recycling facilities, in accordance with the Waste Disposal
(Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation.

The major source of non-hazardous waste for the Year were domestic waste
from the office and vessels. The amount of non-hazardous waste generated
was 162,580 kilograms (year ended 31 May 2022: 1,729 kilograms) and the
intensity was 0.00814 kilogram/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue (year
ended 31 May 2022: 0.00814 kilogram/thousand Hong Kong Dollar revenue).
The significantincrease in non-hazardous waste was mainly due to the Group
have been acting as the main contractor and have taken on the responsibility
of disposing of site materials to the public fill during the Year.

4.00 5.00 6.00 7.00 8.00

kg
T%
B FY2023

2 -WF
REEME - LEREENIRBERESIMALLE
ﬁ%?i%l fE+ERETE5| - FAE(LERE Y
ANEERE  MAHETNEERADHAENR -

BECBEME R LEEE WA EENIREE
R CEEMNERBICERE - RE(EVREE
(E2REM) (—RIRH) - FHEEEEHZERE
e B0 B2 R D B TR o 0 Bl HL 1 R () MR e A
BMEE(CEREY -

NEEEEBEZEMNIERRARRAERMED
REEY EANEERZEYE R162,580T %
(BEZZ-_—FAA=+—HIEFE :1,729F
%) REE A0.00814F 2 FHE TR (HEZZ
“—ERA=Z+—HILEE  000814T %, TH
TTHE) - BEEEVMHANEEINEZHAAEER
RARFEE—EETEFER  YTASESHRY

MEATHERE -

KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced

FRENIERA4: IELEERERYEE
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The non-hazardous waste in the office was handled by the property
management company. The construction waste was disposed to public fill
reception facilities and landfills. All vessels were kept free from litter and
general refuse at all times and waste skips and garbage bins with suitable
covers were provided at designated locations. All waste disposal points were
maintained and cleaned regularly.

Energy Consumption and Intensity

During the Year, the direct energy consumption of the Group included
167,162 kilowatt hours (year ended 31 May 2022: 114,316 kilowatt hours)
of energy consumption by private cars and 5,823,023 kilowatt hours (year
ended 31 May 2022: 6,639,222 kilowatt hours) of energy consumption by
vessels. Its indirect energy consumptions included 38,850 kilowatt hours
(year ended 31 May 2022: 9,346 kilowatt hours) of energy consumption
from purchased electricity.

The total energy consumption of the Group was 6,029,035 kilowatt hours
(year ended 31 May 2022: 6,762,884 kilowatt hours) and the energy
consumption intensity was 30.45 kilowatt hour/thousand Hong Kong Dollar
revenue (year ended 31 May 2022: 31.86 kilowatt hour/thousand Hong Kong
Dollar revenue).

MAEHNBEEEZMAMEERARGRIE - 2F
BEYWEE D AR WRELEERR - A
i E T AEAAT RS DR A B3R K — AR BT 3R FE 46 TE M
IR T HEAEE THRIRMMLIRAE o FTA
BEENREH I I THEENBR -

BERFEERZE

REAFE  AEBNEEREREERLELRE
RFEE167 12 TRER(BE_S-__FHA=
+—BIEFE 114316 TER) MMELRESE
582303 FER(EEZE—_E-_—_FAHA=+—H
IEFE 16639222 TRF) c HEEGERHEER
FEINEE SR REE 38,850 T R (B2 T =
ZFERA=ZT—HIFE 9346 T k) o

REBMRLIRAFEE 56,029,035 T FLE(EZE—
T —FRA=1T—BILFE :6762884T
ET) e REE B E 53045 T R /T8 Tk
HBEZT-__FAA=+—HIEFE :31.86
FEE,FHETkE) -

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
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1 The energy consumption by private cars and vessels was calculated based on
the data obtained from the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International
Energy Agency.

Responses to Climate Change

The increase in climate change has led to extreme weather events such as
global warming, rising sea level and drought, which may affect the Group’s
operation indirectly.

The Group has identified increasing risk of head stoke due to extreme
weather and potential technological change in land reclamation work due
to rising sea level as the major risks in relation to climate change, that may
have a significant impact on the Group.

In response to climate change and the above risks to the Group’s operation,
the Group shall continue to control or reduce its impact to the environment.
In addition, the Group has provided relevant training and anti-heat stress
clothing with better breathability, faster sweat evaporation and better UV
protection to site workers. The management shall continue to research
and closely monitor the effect of rising sea level to land reclamation works.

Our People

The Group believes that employee is the most important component driving
the Group's success, thus maintaining a good relationship with employees is
of utmost importance. By regular communication through different channels,
the employees are encouraged to express their opinions on the policies
relating to employment and labour practices. With a view to constructing a
work environment that favours collaboration and cooperation in compliance
with relevant laws and regulation, the Group has placed strong emphasis
on providing training and development opportunities, while maintaining a
safe and healthy work environment.

As of 31 May 2023, the total workforce of the Group consisted of 88
employees (31 May 2022: 62 employees) in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to employment that have a
significant impact of the Group, including but not limited to Employment
Ordinance and various anti-discrimination ordinance.

CEIE

N

1 ARRERMELRERREEEREERER LMK
JE#5 T (Energy Statistics Manual) £t E -

P SmAR 2 1L

RIRE(CNBIBHEIRE(  BFH LT REZE
FhimRAREN - AERRTEARENEE -

&R B R i R RE B R B R BRI AN A K
Ei%‘%@lﬂ’ﬁﬁ:l%‘% EERIMECREERE
RIRB(CHERRR - ATREHARBERERY
@

REMSREE (R PR EAEERLENRAR - A
SEREEES LR DR SIRENTZE o 1o

AR T ARG R AE PR -
S RIBOMAE - ERASRATERE
PEFOKTFE LA WIS TIRNTE -

EMWETL
AEBERBETIRRHAEBR NN TEZNAE
KEn - Bt - HEEBRSRTBERKEEE -
BBTRRENTHER  SEEEREEHAE
PAEEREIERNER - ERER—EEFE
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B T ARER
(FEREBR -—_E-_=FRA=T—"HRER_-Z—
—FRA=+—HKEER)

Composition of the Workforce at a Glance
(This refers to employees of the Group as at 31 May 2023 and 31 May 2022)

By Gender
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By Age Group
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By Geographical Region
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Remuneration and Benefit 3 B E2 58 F

The salaries and benefits of the employees are based on prevailing
local market rate and subject to adjustment based on experiences and
qualifications. Staff performance appraisals are conducted annually to
assess staff's performance, which also serves as an official communication
channel with employees. To attract and retain outstanding employees, the
remuneration packages are subject to review annually.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. During
the Year, the total contribution to the MPF scheme of the Group amounted
to HK$1,109,000 (year ended 31 May 2022: HK$908,000).
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Working Hours and Holidays

Office staff are in general required to work 5.5 days a week from 9:30am
to 6pm, while site works are in general required to work 6 days a week
from 8am to 6pm. Due to operational requirement, employees may be
required to work outside the normal working hours at the discretion of the
department manager for the proper performance of the assigned duties
and that the compensation leave or overtime pay are calculated according
to the employment contract. The Group encourages the management and
employees to maintain a work-life balance, avoid unnecessary overtime and
maintain a good corporate culture.

The Group provides holidays and leaves for the employees including:
. statutory holidays;
. paid annual leave of not less than 7 days per annum;

. sick leave in accordance with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of the Laws of Hong Kong);

. 14 weeks of maternity leave, in accordance with the Employment
Ordinance;

. 5 days of paternity leave, in accordance with the Employment
Ordinance; and

. special leaves including 3 days of marriage leave and 1 to 3 days of
bereavement leave.

Recruitment, Dismissal, Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-
discrimination

In order to standardise recruitment and dismissal procedures and comply
with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the Group has formulated
the Staff Handbook and Human Resources and Payroll Management Policy
and Procedure.

The department requesting recruitment has to fill in a “Staff Requisition
Form” with details of the job description and requirements, which shall be
reviewed and approved by senior management. When recruiting for a senior
management position, the Board’s review and approval are also required. The
major principle of recruitment is the suitability of the candidates in relation
to the positions. Other factors such as required practical knowledge of the
position, the qualifications, attitude, skill, potential and experience of the
candidates are also considered. During recruitment, the Group encourages
to provide equal opportunity to people with different social statuses, races
andgenders, with a view to increasing internal diversity and strengthening
competitivity.
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Upon the employment of an employee, an employment contract which is
prepared in accordance with the Staff Handbook and relevant local laws
and regulations, shall be signed with the employee including terms on non-
disclosure agreement. Probation period is usually 3 months and subject to
the performance review for extension.

The conditions of terminating employment contract are thoroughly
communicated to the employees through the Staff Handbook and their
employment contracts, and the terms and conditions comply with relevant
local laws and regulations.

Employee Turnover Rate

During the Year, there were 33 employees (year ended 31 May 2022: 26
employees) who left the Group, with a total turnover rate of 44% (year ended
31 May 2022: 48%). The turnover rate of male and female employee were 41%
and 71% respectively (year ended 31 May 2022:37% and 100% respectively).
The employee turnover rate by age group was as follows:

. Below age 30: 55% (year ended 31 May 2022: 60%)

. Age30to50: 46% (year ended 31 May 2022: 43%)

. Above age 50: 41% (year ended 31 May 2022: 39%)

The employee turnover rate by geographical region was as follows:

. Hong Kong: 45% (year ended 31 May 2022: 48%)

. Mainland China: 0% (year ended 31 May 2022: 0%)
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KPI B1.2: Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region
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Health and Safety

The Group is committed to provide employees a safe working environment
to protect them from occupational hazards. A Safety Management Plan has
been adopted to manage, control and coordinate the works in order to
protect the safety and health of our employees.

The Group only allows worker with valid Green Card (Mandatory Basic
Safety Training) holder to work on site. Certificate of Mandatory Basic
Safety Training is valid for three years and workers are required to attend
refresher training by recognized training bodies for renewal of certificate.
The project management ensures only employee holding a valid license or
certificate of competency to be assigned to jobs requiring specific license
or training. In addition, management and supervisor should hold relevant
safety certificates. Our workforce holds a number of marine construction,
civil construction and vessels related certificates, including but not limited to:
. Certificate in First Aid;

. Certificate of Training for Works Supervisor Safety Training Course;

. Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate;

. Safe Working Cycle Training Certificate;

. Certificate of Training for Assistant Safety Officer Training Course;

. Certificate of Training for Construction Safety Supervisor Course;

. Certificate of Training for Environmental Protection for Environmental
Supervisors;

. Certificate of Training for Hazard Identification Activity;

. Certificate of Training for Accident Investigation;

. Certificate of Training for Risk Assessment & Job Safety Analysis;
. Certificate of Training for Safety Inspection;

. Certificate of Training for Basic Accident Prevention;

. Certificate of Training for Basic Safety Management;

. ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System;

. Skipper Certificate;
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. Certificate of Training for Shipboard Cargo Handling Basic Safety
Training Course;

. Pleasure Vessel Operator Certificate of Competency;

. Merchant Shipping (Local Vessels) Local Certificate of Competency;
. Engine Operator Local Certificate of Competency;

. Coxswain Local Certificate of Competency;

. Certificate of Training for Works Supervisor Safety Training Course
(Marine Construction) and

. Certificate of Training for Shipboard Crane Operator Safety Training
Course.

In addition, the Group has certificate databases which monitor the status
of various certificates of our vessels and certificates held by our workforce
to ensure any required re-training or renewal are scheduled accordingly.

The Group or the main contractor ensure that all construction activities are
subject to a formal risk assessment prior to the commencement of individual
operations. Job safety analysis are carried out to identify critical tasks and
potential hazards. After evaluation of the risks, the corresponding safety
precautions can be defined and safe working procedures shall be developed.
Provision of personal protective equipment should also be addressed in the
procedures. The safety officer is responsible for regular site inspection. In case
of emergency or accidents, the site management should response according
to the relevant emergency procedures in the Safety Management Plan.

The safety officer or supervisor is responsible for conducting pre-task
meeting prior to commencement of each shift work. The pre-task meeting
encourage the supervision staff and workers to communicate on the
following topics:
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. accident or incident alerts;
. change in the work environment or procedures;

. concerns over safety, health, environment, hygiene and welfare; and

. other matters as deemed necessary.

Apart from pre-task meeting, task hazard briefing are also carried out on
a regular basis to ensure workers acknowledge the job instructions, the
approved and safe methods of working, the inherent hazards and how
they should be avoided. The safety officer or supervisor is responsible for
monitoring the safety instructions given during induction and job training
are deliberately followed up to ensure that the instruction remains effective.

To safeguard health of employees during COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has implemented a series of precautionary measures to ensure a hygienic
and safe working environment for our employees to achieve long-term
sustainability of the Group.

During the Year, there were 7 lost days due to workplace injury. During the
past three years, there were no work-related fatality incidents in the Group.
The Group has secured employees’ insurance policies in accordance with the
laws of Hong Kong. The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to health and safety that have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited to Employees’
Compensation Ordinance and Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance.

Development and Training

The Group values employees’ development of skills and knowledges,
believing that talent retention can drive innovations and business
development. The Group expects to grow and create values together with
its employees.

All new employee on sites must undergo induction training so that they
are able to discharge their duties in a safe manner. The induction training
includes but not limited to:
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. responsibilities and duties;

. safety policy statement and objectives;

. project organization - key personnel;

. general safety rule and personal protective equipment (PPE);

. accident reporting procedure;

. emergency procedure — evacuation route and assembly point;

. location of facilities (first aid station, drinking machine and etc.);

. site environment - potential hazard; and

. working over/near water.

Apart from induction training for new workers, on sites tool box training
are usually conducted once per week to enhance safety and environmental
awareness of our workers. The training attendance records are kept and
reviewed to measure the effectiveness and efficiency of training. The training
material include, but not limited to:

. code of practices, guidance notes and guidebooks;

. contractual instruction;

. in-house safety rules;

. emergency and evacuation procedure; and

. tool box training kit issued by the Hong Kong Construction Association,
Occupational Safety and Health Council, and Airport Authority.

The Group has been providing high-quality training for employees to meet
their development needs, and assisting employees to prepare for various
changes brought about by the Group’s active business plans. Employees
are encouraged to discuss with their supervisor or the human resources
department if they have special training requests or want to pursue
continuing education. On the subject of employees’ career prospects, if
vacancies or new positions are available, the Group shall consider internal
promotion or transfer, thus encouraging upward mobility of employees.

In respect of development and training of the Directors and the company

secretary, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” section in the
Annual Report.
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Percentage of Employees Trained and Average Training Hours FI{EEB 7L RTHZINNFIEFE
Completed

During the Year, the Group's percentage of employees trained for male and RAFE - AEB SN ELZUEZIEET L
female employees were 100% and 25% respectively (year ended 31 May D RIAE100%K%25% (BE—E - FhA=+—

2022: 96% and 100% respectively). HIEFE : 9 5/£96%K%100%) °
The percentage of employees trained by employee category was as follows: ZEEBFRESHZIEEBTALLIAT :
Office staff: 48% (year ended 31 May 2022: 88%) .« WREET : 48% (HE—_ZT—_—FHA=*

—HIEFE : 88%)

Site worker: 100% (year ended 31 May 2022: 100%) . HIEET A 100% (BZ-_ZT_-_—_FHA=
T—HLEFE : 100%)

KPI B3.1: The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
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The average training hours completed per employee for male and female BEBMRZMEE TR FEEES B A
employees were 18.36 hours and 9.33 hours respectively (year ended 31 May 1836/ RIZZNK(BE_ZE_ZFHHA="T
2022: 11.75 hours and 32.80 hours respectively). —HIEEE  DBIA11.75/) 8 [232.80/\FF ) ©
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The average training hours completed per employee by employee category

was as follows:

Office Staff: 22 hours

Site Worker: 16.67 hours
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KPI B3.2: The average training hours completed per employee

Total workforce
2REER

Site worker

AT A

Office staff
WAEET

Female

g

Male

%

BRI RESER &S

by gender and employee category

BARAANIERB3.2
 BREETRZ I FIIHH

18.02

13.44

16.67

14.97

220

9.41

9.33

32.80

18.36

11.75

0.00

5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00 30.00 35.00
Average training hours completed per employee
BHEEEXERZINFEITRE
FY2022 W FY2023
—E-BF T =FF

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited X B IZRR B R A Al



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IRiE » #ERE

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the policies and guidelines in the
employment laws of Hong Kong, including elimination of child labour,
forced labour and illegal worker. All operating units have to ensure no child
labour, forced labour or illegal worker is employed. During the recruitment
process, the human resources department requires candidate to provide
identification document to check their eligibility to work legally in Hong
Kong.

Supply Chain Management

The Group continues to monitor closely on its daily operation and encourages
suppliers and contractors to join force in promoting performance of
sustainable development. Suppliers and contractors are bound by contracts
and the laws and regulations of Hong Kong, ensuring their compliance
with laws and regulation relating to environmental and social policies. For
instances, they are forbidden to employ under-age labour or workers without
work visa, and the products supplied must meet environmental standards.

During procurement for the Group, purchase requisition is initiated according
to the requirement of construction projects or administration department.
The Group has maintained an approved list of suppliers by evaluating the
price, quality, time delivery, industry reputation, payment terms and etc.,
to ensure a fair and equal selection. When performing supplier/contractor
background check, the project manager and administration management
are encouraged to evaluate the environmental and social risks of the supplier
and contractors. The industry reputation of the supplier/contractor includes
its environmental risks (e.g. whether the supplier/contractor was previously
fined by the Environmental Protection Department) and social risks (e.g.
whether there was recent occupational accidents occurred). By operating an
1SO 9001:2015 Quality Management System, the Group encourages supplier
and contractors to improve occupational health and safety requirements,
as well as to mitigate their environmental and social risk for continuing
improvement.

The Group also encourage that more environmentally friendly products or
services should be procured when it is feasible, with a view to minimizing
negative impacts to the environment and human health, and also conserving
natural resources. The environmental and social risks of the supply chain
are monitored by the project management and administration manager.
If there are significant changes in environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, they should discuss with other departments and decide on
risk responses.

During the Year, the Group’s number of suppliers engaged by the above
practices by geographical region are as follows:

. Hong Kong: 190  (year ended 31 May 2022: 47)
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Quality Management

The Group operates a Quality Management System which compiles with
the requirement of I1SO 9001:2015 for the provision of port works, roads
and drainage, site formation and waterworks. By implementation of ISO
9001:2015 - Quality Management Systems, we continues to improve,
monitor and review our services to ensure customer satisfaction. The
Group has formulated a Quality Policy and ensure all staff understood and
implement the policy, which aims to:

. exceed the service requirements and expectations of our customers,
to ensure we are their preferred service contractor;

. develop a rigorous work attitude, provide quality service and meet
clients’ requirement;

. instil in staff the right kind of work attitude and professionalism;

. develop procedure and guidelines to regulate the Company’s
operational requirement;

. encourage and support all types of training, regard employees as
important assets of the Company and promote the concept of quality
service and safe work to employees;

. encourage supplier and contractors to improve occupational health
and safety requirements;

. encourage and require, wherever appropriate, our business partners,
suppliers and vendors to adopt equivalent principles; and

. identify the risks and opportunities of the Group, and plan for action
needed to be taken.

Our quality assurance process include but not limited to determining and
reviewing the requirements of services, control of service provision and
nonconforming outputs, as well as monitoring, measurement, analysis and
evaluation of the performance to ensure customer satisfaction. Internal audit
at planned intervals of the quality management system are carried out by
the main contractor or the Group in order to ensure the system conforms to
the requirements and is effectively implemented and maintained.
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With a view to protecting intellectual property rights, clients’ data and
privacy, Directors and employees must comply with the Group’s Code of
Conduct and relevant sections in the Staff Handbook. Disclosure, use or
sharing of confidential information are strictly prohibited unless authorized
or required by law. Each department of the Group should ensure security
measures are in place to protect the confidential information, including
locking sensitive documents in safe and restricting access to confidential
data in computer systems. In addition, the Group has formulated a General
Computer Controls Policy and Procedure, which aims to safeguard the
information assets of the Group including clients’ data. The scope of this
policy includes information technology usage and safeguard, access right
monitoring, system maintenance, protection from virus and malware, and
data protection.

The Group seeks fair and honest competition to gain competitive advantage
through superior performance rather than through unethical or illegal
business practices. It is prohibited to obtain confidential information,
to acquire trade secrets or any other information without the owner’s
consent, or to induce any past or existing employee to make unethical
disclosures. Each employee should respect the rights of the customers,
suppliers, competitors and employees for fair trade. Employees should not
gain an unfair advantage over others by manipulating, concealing, abusing
privileged information, distorting the truth, or any other illegal practices.
Employees must not engage in price fixing, collusion, bid rigging or any
other similar illegal anti-competitive activities. In conducting business, the
Group encourages building reputation and maintaining good relationships
business partners but not to gain any unfair advantage.

To monitor the above practices, employees who observe suspected activities
that are illegal or in violation of the Group’s regulations are encouraged
to report to the Audit Committee by following an Anti-Fraud and Whistle-
Blowing Policy and Procedure. Details may refer to the “Anti-corruption”
section below.

During the Year, the Group's percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons was 0% (year ended 31 May
2022: 0%) and the number of products and service related complaints
received was 0 (year ended 31 May 2022: 0).

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to product responsibility that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group considers ethical conduct is of utmost importance in corporate
sustainable development and long-term success. Directors and employees
must comply with the Group’s Code of Conduct and relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, prohibiting individual and commercial bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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An Anti-Fraud and Whistle-Blowing Policy and Procedure has been adopted
in order to prevent, detect and report fraud into a set of format written
requirements. Any fraudulent activities or violation of the Group’s Code of
Conduct shall be reported to the Audit Committee, which will be fully and
promptly investigated by the Audit Committee. The investigations should
be handled confidentially. The identity of whistle-blower and the suspected
cases will not be disclosed. However, if there is sufficient evidence to suggest
that a case of possible criminal offence or corruption exists, the matter may
be reported to the relevant local authorities.

To help the Directors and the management of the Company to better
perform their governance role, a training on business ethics for listed
companies has been provided to the Directors and the management of
the Company. The training package used, which was published by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption, featured ethical challenges
faced by the company directors and highlights corruption issues, fraud,
conflict of interest, cross-boundary bribery, backdoor listing, insider dealing
and etc. In addition, during the Year, the Company’s compliance adviser has
provided other anti-corruption related trainings to the Directors and the
management. The topics included directors’ duties and obligation, ethics
and integrity. The Group shall strengthen its ethical culture by regular anti-
corruption training or materials to our Directors and employees.

During the Year, the number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees was 0 (year ended 31
May 2022: 0) and the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption that have a
significant impact of the Group.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to create a positive impact on the communities in
which it operates. Employees are encouraged to participate in community
projects and activities.

During the Year, one of our projects was to deploy a number of artificial reefs
in The Brothers Marine Park to provide artificial habitat for the purposes of
marine and fisheries resources enhancement. The Group hopes to tender
for similar projects in the future to contribute to the protection of marine
ecology.

In the coming year, the management shall review policies relating to

community investment and explore the feasibility of increasing community
investment activities.
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Summary of Key Performance Indicators

The Group continually improves by managing, monitoring and reporting its
KPIs. The tables below present a quantitative overview of our performance.

Subject Area A. Environmental

FEHEARE

KPI A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data’

BRERERAL | R ERREREREE

PR IRMIE NI

REEFBERE

C ERMEREBERERIEEDT

Bk - U N RRA/RMANVKRDETEMRAL

Unit FY2023 FY2022

Item BH B “ECICME —F-CHEF

Private cars NO, emissions ARBERE(NOYBEE g 10,519 7,194
7

Private cars SO, emissions ARBEHmE LY (SO HEE g 286 173
=

Private cars RSP emissions FLRE AR A BN THENE g 775 530
7

Vessels NO, emissions fERA Y (NOOHERE kg 26,169 29,837
T

Vessels SO, emissions E AL (SO E kg 46 52
T

Vessels RSP emissions M ERTRABZ R FHEE kg 551 628
Tz
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KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

BRERERAM.2  AERBASHERRE

Unit FY2023 FY2022
Item HE B “ECCSHE —EBE-_BF
Scope 1 - Direct emissions from sources ~ Z8E1 — fERBEE K
CO, equivalent emissions from private FLRE — LI (CO,) EEB B kg 45,879 31,375
cars? T
CO, equivalent emissions from vessels & — S Lk (CO)EEBHHC kg 1,486,300 1,694,631
=
Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions gE2 — BERRIRBER
CO, equivalent emissions from INBE N —E b (CO)EE kg 14,375 3,645
purchased electricity* B T
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions HE3 — HbEEHER
CO, equivalent emissions from paper BER — SR (CO)EEBHM® kg 7,358 1,200
waste’ T
Total CO, equivalent emissions Z& bR (COo,) B 2R B E kg 1,553,912 1,730,851
T
Revenue Yoz HK$'000 198,026 212,285
FAT
CO, equivalent emissions intensity —AEHR(CO) B EHMEE  kg/HK$'000 7.85 8.15
Fr/FET

The Vehicle emission factors were calculated based on the Hong Kong
Environmental Protection Department’s Vehicle Emission Calculation Model.
The vessels emission factors were calculated based on the “Quantification of
Emissions from Ships Associated with Ship Movements between Ports in The
European Community” from the European Commission published by Entec UK
Limited.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from private cars was calculated based
on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department
and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from vessels was calculated based on
the Emission Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from purchased electricity was
calculated based on the emission factor obtained from the “2021 Sustainability
Report” and “2022 Sustainability Report” of CLP Group.

The carbon dioxide equivalent emissions from paper waste was calculated based
on the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department
and Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.
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KPI A1.3 & A1.4: Total hazardous and non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

BREYEFEAIIRAIL: IELEEEREERRZYRERTE

Unit FY2023 FY2022

Item HE B e

Total hazardous waste produced’ FIE4BEREDES kg 7.15 1.95

T
Total non-hazardous waste produced FTEABREREENES kg 162,580 1,729
T3
Revenue Wz HK$'000 198,026 212,285
; THETT
Intensity of hazardous waste produced ~ FTE4ABEEENTE kg/HK$'000 0.00001 0.00001
) Fr/THET

Intensity of non-hazardous waste FIEABREREENTE kg/HK$'000 0.82100 0.00814

produced F5/FHET

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity

BRENIEEA2  RERESNEER SREBERERERTE

Unit FY2023 FY2022

Item EHE B SED=MBFE B ZHF

Energy consumption by private cars? FLR B RERFER> kWh 167,162 114,316

T RBF
Energy consumption by vessels> MERERER? kWh 5,823,023 6,639,222
TFEE

Energy consumption by purchased INEE N EERFEE kWh 38,850 9,346

electricity TR
Total energy consumption R E kWh 6,029,035 6,762,884
TRBF

Revenue eas HK$'000 198,026 212,285

\ FAET

Energy consumption intensity EREERE kWh/HK$'000 30.45 31.86
TR, FHET

KPI A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity

BRENIEEA22  BRKEREE
Unit FY2023 FY2022

Item HHE B —T-=MF —ToMF

Water consumption? FEKE3 m* 1,283 1,428
MK

Revenue Wk HK$'000 198,026 212,285
FHET

Water consumption intensity FEKERE m?/HK$'000 0.01 0.01
SRS FHET

1 The dataonly accounted for hazardous waste produced in the office. 1 BRESFABLREEENEEEEY -

2 The energy consumption by private cars and vessels was calculated based on 2 RRERMERRESREBERERERZZ LN
the data obtained from the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International TR F B (Energy Statistics Manual) R E -
Energy Agency.

3 The data only accounted for water consumption on the vessels. 3 HRESAMENEKE -
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Subject Area B. Social

TEGRBAS

KPI B1.1: Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region
BRERIEREB. | MR ERER - FRANREERSHNESAH

As at 31 May 2023

As at 31 May 2022

R-ZB-=% R-E-Z
FA=+—H FHEA=+—8H
Number Percentage Number Percentage
Category Al 2E BatE £ 4 Aot
Total workforce FEEES 88 100% 62 100%
Gender 4 51
Male S 76 86% 57 92%
Female M 12 14% 5 8%
Employment Type EEER
Office staff MAEET 42 48% 17 27%
Site worker HAET A 46 52% 45 73%
Age Group FHe AR
Below age 30 30 A 6 7% 5 8%
Age 30 to 50 302505% 36 41% 21 34%
Above age 50 505% A £ 46 52% 36 58%
Geographical Region &=
Hong Kong BB 86 98% 62 100%
Mainland China AR B A 2 2% 0 0%
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KPI B1.2: Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

BRENIEREB1.2 | MR FRANRBESR I NEERAKLR

FY2023 FY2022
S5 —g=—pE
Turnover Rate Turnover Rate
Category il MK E Tkt =
Total workforce 2HES 44% 48%
Gender 14 5l
Male St 41% 37%
Female Z 71% 100%
Age Group FHeE Rl
Below age 30 3055 A T~ 55% 60%
Age 30 to 50 30E505% 46% 43%
Above age 50 5055 A £ 41% 39%
Geographical Region &
Hong Kong BB 45% 48%
Mainland China FR A 0% 0%
KPI B2.1: Number and rate of work-related fatalities
BARENIEER2 ELEBEMETHABRLER
FY2023 FY2022 FY2021
“ECCHE ke - 3 “E--BE
Number  Percentage Number  Percentage Number  Percentage
Category Ly Eo4= Bk E4= BOt £ 4 BAOt
Work-related fatalities B TERAEMmSL T 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
KPI B2.2: Lost days due to work injury
BRENEEB2.2  BIBIEATEAR
FY2023 FY2022
—E-=BE —EC_BE
Number Number
Category il A BB
Lost days due to work injury EATIEEAIIERH 7 0
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KPI B3.1: The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

BRENIEER  RUFIRESEANESNZIEEE I

FY2023 FY2022
—g-=pF S5
Percentage Percentage
Category Hhal ERalsd Aot
Gender 7l
Male B 100% 96%
Female gk 25% 100%
Employee Category EEEx
Office Staff WMAEET 48% 88%
Site Worker AT A 100% 100%
Total workforce >HEESR 90% 97%
KPI B3.2: The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category
BEENIEER3.2  RUEFIREEERES  BEEETHZIN TR
FY2023 FY2022
—g-=pF S

Average training
hours completed

Average training
hours completed

FERL S TERL S FIEY
Category kW] TR TR
Gender 4 5l
Male EElEd 18.36 11.75
Female g 9.33 32.80
Employee Category EEEH
Office Staff WAEET 22.00 9.41
Site Worker AR T A 16.67 14.97
Total workforce 2HES 18.02 13.44
KPI B5.1: Number of suppliers by geographical region
FARENIEEB5. | R EE D HWHEREE
FY2023 FY2022
—ECCRHEF —E-CRMEF

Number Percentage Number Percentage
Geographical Region #hE £ gE| Aok £ gE| it
Hong Kong B 190 100% 47 100%
Total 15t 190 100% 47 100%
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KPI B6.1: Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

HRENIEREB.  CERCEXERBRTRALZ2HREERMARNKRNE S

B
L
I

FY2023 FY2022
—EBC-UF —EICMF
Percentage Percentage
Category il BA Ao
Percentage of total products sold or BERCEIEMREFTELEHE
shipped subject to recalls for safety and &2 A MARIUAKI B 5L
health reasons 0% 0%
KPI B6.2: Number of products and service related complaints received
BREENIEEB6.2 | EEBENERNRBEHIRFEE
FY2023 FY2022
—ECZHF Sy -/ 3
Number Number
Category Al A BB
Number of products and service related £ /ERI A E M ARFS RIS FE B
complaints received 0 0

KPI B7.1: Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period

RRENIERB7.  REEHANBRTARHEERHY O EENESHRARFNEE

FY2023 FY2022
—E-=pF —E-—piE
Number Number
Category Al £ 4] S gE|
Number of concluded legal cases REREEREEIT AR ES R
regarding corrupt practices brought EBEANESFARGEE
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period 0 0
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Index of Environmental, Social and Governance EEBASXSMBRATKER -t g
Reporting Guide of The Stock Exchange of Hong REREEESDESI

Kong Limited

Subject Areas and Aspects Page
FTESEERER ¥
Subject Area A - Environmental
FESERA-RIR
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : B
General Disclosure Information on: 59-71
a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—MRBEE BHERIORERBEEMN - FUKRTHMEEDT - BEREZEEDH
EEFH
a) BEE: R
b) EFHBITAREATENERERE LAY
EEF o
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 66 - 67
RSB R IRALT e A KRR B BB -
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions and, where appropriate, intensity. 68 - 69
AR MUIEIRAL2 BRERBHNER (WMER) BE -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 70-71
RS AE R IRA13 FESBEREDEER (WEA) BE -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 71
R ERUIEIRA14 FEAREEEYHAER (WNER) BE -
KPI' A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 59 -64
RS AE R IRALS R PAE] LB E B IR R R E RS L B IR P EREREY 28K -
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a 59-62,65,70-71
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
RS AEUIEIRA16 HI IR A = RBEEEYN L - R FTEI S 80 RRE B 1R R A ES|E L

B EATERER A 225
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page

TEERRER BH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[BHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw 59-65
materials.

—RRIRER EREAER (BIEER  KREMERME) BBER o

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 72

RASRAE R IRA2.1 BB DNBEER SHERREEERTE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 70

RS AE WUIETRA2.2 BREKERTE °

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 59-65
them.

RS E RUIEIRA23 Fas AT MY BEIR(E A e B AR M AE RS Lk B AR PR ER IR 2 5% -

KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, 62,64
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

RS AEUIEIRA24 i 2L SR EGE AR IO _E AT R RE - A KR PRET 2 A7k aas B iR MR ERE

LE B ISP RNV PR
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page

FTEEEREE BH

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with Not applicable to the
reference to per unit produced. Group’s operation

RS AE R IRA2.5 HEmAAABEMHNEENR (WNER) BEESUES - NERRAEE X

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3 : RIERAAREIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and 59-65
natural resources.

—MRBEE BIREIT ABRERRAEREKERTENEE -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and 59 -65
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

RAS AR 1RA3.1 R EREBERE RRRERNEAZEUREHTH -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

[EHA4 : RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 73

which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—fRIEE ISR I )
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page

TEEERER BH

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and 73
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

RS AE IR 1RAA D MRS HB T AEET ENEARGEBEEEAREE 1T

Subject Area B - Social

TEHEB—HE

Employment and Labour Practices

EBRRETIESR

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB : EfE

General Disclosure Information on: 73-76

a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

—MRBEER ERAT LA E BEREM  TERS - R TSEge ok RIE
RRIA R B 5548 Mt Al |y

a) HE: R

b) EBTHETABERFENRBEERAEN

B o
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical 74
FASAE SN IR1RB1.1 g;ﬁsgd* BIRRL - FEAR SRS D HIE B4R -
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
FTEEEREE BH
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 77 -78
RAS A HE1RB1.2 RUR - FEER MRS DR EERAKLLE -
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EmEB2 : REEZE
General Disclosure Information on: 79 - 81
a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
—RBEE FHERFZ2TERERREREEREBELEEN
a) BR: K
b) BETHBITABEATLENHEBERLIRD
BER °
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three 81
years including the reporting year.
AR A E1EB2.1 BE=F (BERSFE) SFEAITHROABBRLE -
KPI1B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 81
RASR A R HE1RB2.2 ETEEATIERS
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are 79 - 81
implemented and monitored.
RAG A HE1RB2.3 R PR R 2 R B 2 248 - ARMEBERTRERTE -
Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEMEB3 : &R R
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at 82-83
work. Description of training activities.
—RBEE BRARTHE S BIT TIERE M AE LR EBUR - iltiEIINES -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. 83-84
senior management, middle management).
AR A E1EB3.1 RERIREERR (NERERRE PREEE) SoXIEERSL -
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
TEEERER BH
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 85
category.
RASR A R HE1RB3.2 RIERIRESRRED - BEE8 TN TR -
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fETEB4 : % T%AI
General Disclosure Information on: 86
a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RBEE BEAP IEE T K& HI%5 T
a) BE: R
b) BETHBEITABEAZENHBERLRD
&R -
KP1 B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 86

FASAE WIE1RB4.1

forced labour.
T R E R B E AR R E T R8s T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

101



Y|
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IBiE » 2R ER

Subject Areas and Aspects Page
FTEEEREE BH
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 86
RASR A FE1RB4.2 IR B RIE N ER B BB PRI 25K -
Operating Practices
EEEN
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
fEmEBs : ERERE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 86
—RRIREE ERHEENRIE R SRREGE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 86
RAS B R HE1RB5.1 iR E o HERRA o
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers 86
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.
RA G AR 513 B5.2 LA I AR AED - mMERITRRESINHEEREE - UREBEH
TREEETE °
KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along 86
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BASE AR WIE1RB5.3 f BB SRR ERENRE R GRRAIED - ARBBERTRE
BIE
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
TEEERER BH
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products 86
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
RSB IR 1EB5.4 R EREH R R R EZ ARRERMREHIED - ARBERTRER
TIE e
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EMEB6 : EMEE
General Disclosure Information on: 87 -88
a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RRIREE BHMREERMBRBNRRERELZS  Bf  BEILBSEEARBRS
ER
a) BEE: R
b) BETHBITABEATZENHEBERLIRD
HEF
KPIB6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and 88
health reasons.
R 4B 515861 EEXREXREMAEHPRELZ T EEREERMARKNA DL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are 88
dealt with.
RA G B 513 B6.2 BRI E o M RIGHIRF B AR EE T -
KPI1B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 88

FAS A IE1RB6.3

property rights.
Fie ot R4 o S ARPE AR EERE R 1B A
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page
FTEEEREE BH
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 87 -88
RAS A IR 1RB6.4 Rt E B BiE MEMEBIKIZFF -

KPI1B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are 88

implemented and monitored.

BB IR 1RB6.5 WIUREEERRERALRBBE - ARBEBERITRERTTX -

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EmEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on: 89
a) the policies; and
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— R FE BRI ILFRER - BR - MEFROEERER ¢
a) BE &
b) BETHBITABEATLENHBERLRD
BER °
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against 89
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
AR B E1EBT.1 RIREBAH BT AR EERRE T EEBENESHARMHEE RFALE
% o
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Subject Areas and Aspects Page

TEEERER BH

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they 89
are implemented and monitored.

RAS A 513 B7.2 P S IE pE R ERRIZ T - LA RABBERI T RER % o

KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 89

RASRAE M E1RBT 3 ftmES & E TIRHHREFIE

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

fEEBS : HEIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 92
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

—MRI%ER BN ESERERETALENEARNFTENBREAEBEHGE R
FLIE M 2R AR ©

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour 92
needs, health, culture, sport).

RAR B 51588 EIEREE (0#E  REFHE STFXR @R e 8B7) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 92

BB A N FE1RB8.2 EFIHRMABAER (NWEHERH) -
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Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited

Units 1903A - 1905, 19/F, 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T:+8522774 2188
www.prism.com.hk

F:+852 2774 2322

L EERE I EBARAR

BB AFERIDIER X EZES5E194£1903A-1905F

T:+852 2774 2188

F:+852 2774 2322

www.prism.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIAN CHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Yue Kan Holdings Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Cheng
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Yue Kan Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 May 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
concerning the adoption of the going concern basis on which the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared. The Group incurred
a net loss of approximately HK$87,050,000 and negative operating cash
flow of approximately HK$29,704,000 for the year ended 31 May 2023.
These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The directors of the Company having considered the
measures being taken by the Group, are of the opinion that the Group
would be able to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
May 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on 31 August 2022.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have determined
the matters described below to be key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

FRBREECEXTHRE.

BMIERBERARAMIEREANTES - NABBF
ARG AEVBRRMKIBEOFELCEER -
HE_TZ_—FFA=-+-—HILFE  E£H
B R E18487,050,0008 TR BKEE S RE
4729,704,0008 T ° Z 1B N E R L&A IR
KM IR HAEMBERATFEEATEE
Mo AR BEEMFECERENELEEARM
B BRRERLERE BEEBEMEDRNER
% RE BEEBERNFELSE - BRMNE
RAVEFE I BIEELEET -

Ht=1R

EERHE T -__FHA=T—HILFENE
AU RE  R-ZE-_—ENA=T—HKHS
—BZEMEZ ERZSRERBH AL ERZ
=8 -

MEEHFER

RIBRFINFRAE - BAREFFTFESBMTZ
AHFENGEVBHRRPREZNSTA - RAE
BEREAVBBRRMMLER B RBRENRE
B MTERLEFEREBERER - BREH
SRR S BEATHEEME —HRRNEEN &K
PMEEE T EFRAERMNRE T FE 2B
EATHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

107



8]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1B M #% BB 3R &

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BESWBREER

Refer to note 4(a) and 5 the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3(n)(i).

1B 2Bk B BTSRRI it 4(a) R 5 R B 3(n) ()Y B 5T ©

The Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMRELENAEERRETEER

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of marine
construction works and other civil engineering works, in
Hong Kong totalling HK$182,262,000 for the year ended 31

May 2023.

BE-_ZT-_=FRA=1+—HILtFE - EEBEEREBIR
HEEEZETEREMEARTIZEHE RS S 182,262,000
/%TE ©

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the output method, based on direct measurements
of the value of contract work performed, which is mainly
reflected by the progress certificates issued by customers.
The customer will provide final account when the whole
project is completed and may have adjustments on the
amount recognised to date according to the actual surveys
of work performed at completion.

BRRERAATENTRENEREENE @ KRAGBLZX
BERREREER  ZEEITERVERPRENEES

£ - BEBEBTKE - BESREME
ERBHEERENTENERAIE
TRELFE -

REKRE - BABERE
HEE B IR

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because it is quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements.
BMERREREANABRETEE  REAH
BHkin s BHEEA -

LET AR A B

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition for
construction contracts included the foIIowing'

BMRA A REES OB EERITETHNETEFBEAT
S

. assessing the design of key internal controls over the
contract revenue recognition processes;

- AHMARKWETERIEF TS E BRBEERRET

. inspecting samples of contracts with customers, to
identify key terms and conditions, and to assess the
Group's revenue recognition criteria with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

- WEREEPAH - BRI EBEFRREGSE - X2E
BT ERNRENE SERENREEREE

. comparing the contract revenue recognised for
construction projects during the year, on a sample basis,
with progress certificates issued by customers;

- HERRBFARERBEREIANSHRAERTPEEN
i TS

. comparing the certified amounts in the final accounts,
for contracts completed during the year, with the
contract revenue recognised to date, to assess whether
adjustments in the final accounts, if any, have been
reflected in the Group'’s accounting records; and

- BEFERETKALN  BERARETHAECHREEHSE
BRIFIERE AW EITH Y - A ERERE F
HAE(INA)RERMRE BEEENGFRETD R

. obtaining confirmations from major customers of
the Group to confirm amounts certified for selected
construction projects during the year and, for
unreturned confirmations, performing alternative
procedures by comparing details with contracts, and
other underlying project related documentation.

. ﬁ EEEIZXPERBERE - UBERFETE

EHEEAMNERLE  UTHRTHEIRERTELER -
BIES L s ?FAmﬁ&EmﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁK#
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Assessing potential impairment of the cash generating units of the Group

it BRERSELEMNEERE

Refer to note 4(b) and 13 the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3(c), 3(d) and 3(f)(i).

BB 2RI B R M 4b) K 136 R B M E3(c) ~ 3(d) R3O BT HE -

The Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMRELENAEERRETEER

The Group suffered a loss for the year ended 31 May 2023
with net operating cash outflow, which the management
considered to be an indicator of potential impairment on
the carrying values of cash generating units.
EREREZE_T_=FAA=T-HIEFERXEERNU
REReFnt  ERERUARCELEURAELZ
BIERERNER -

The management of the Group has prepared the value in
use model to assess the recoverable amounts of the cash
generating units with the independent professional valuer.
The assessment of the value in use model is inherently
subjective as it involves the exercise of significant
management judgement and estimation, particularly in
determining future revenue, future operating expenses and
the discount rate applied.
EEEERECRBEXGEMERERBERE N
EREELEMNAKOSE - EFRBERENTEARE
FEAFRIEMN - DHNESREEEEL R HE &G
At LHEREEARARYE  AKRELERLAAERKR
& o

Based on the impairment assessment, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$11,043,000 and approximately
HK$1,759,000 was recognised on property, plant, and
equipment and right-of-use assets attributes to the cash
generating units for the year ended 31 May 2023.
BERENGE BE T -_=ZFRA=1t—BILFE -
ME - BEMRBAREREEED FIZERREBELDY
11,043,000/ 7T & 491,759,000/ 7T * HIIBEBNIREELE
fiL o

We identified assessing potential impairment of the carrying
values of the cash generating units of the Group as a key
audit matter because management’s assessment of the
recoverable amounts involved significant judgement and
estimation which could be subject to management bias.
BAETE EEERCELASURRENEDRER
FRESAZE  DaNEEEYHAIRE BN ETNE
RAE R B - ARBERERROTZE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
the Group included the following:

B EmE  BERREBARGEREEEMETHE
SEFEFEATEE

. Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional valuer and obtaining
an understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work;

. AMEBUZEEMEMNERE e HMEBEART#
fHERDR TESE

. Obtaining the valuation report from the management
for the calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal and comparing with the carrying amount of
the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets;

- WREEERGHERSAGTEAFEREERAE - I
YR BELRBAREREEENKREEETL
&

. Obtaining the detailed work of the management,
particularly the key inputs to the valuation including
discount rates and revenue during the forecast period
with reference to the respective cash-generating units;

- DISEREMNIFEHE LERGEENTIEHAR
% BEEASENBRRERKS  W2ZEHEERS
EEEN

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer's valuation
approach, accuracy and relevance of key data inputs
underpinning the valuation and assessing the
reasonableness of the key assumptions applied based
on available market data and our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

. HERAIEHTISEIE LB MEEBMITEN T - 5T
MEEMAAAGETZNREN  EEGEMRRKAE
E ABIRAERIE AN - WA AR EER
BHAEMN &

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the cash flow
projections by comparing the actual results of those
cash-generating units to the previously forecasted
results used.

o BB ERELReELBUNERAREEERANB
EIRAER - FHERSTRERANS RN -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

BB BEZESMERRARIED
R
BANERRAERELRAVBHRREBME T
SHEERRREFRERMEMMNEAHERRL -
WHLHARMEENZBEIRS - RERMID
RBGER  AREERNETEREEMEL - K
B2 EREMRE - RPIABEBRARENAR
AEEREERREMEMALTASR -
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BN EBEAREBER TR (A ERE
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RERAE - REZRRRER - HF5
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont‘d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company'’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, to where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont‘d)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Dai Tin Yau.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Dai Tin Yau

Practising Certificate Number: P06318
Hong Kong

30 August 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £r & 1 R Ett 2 MW E %

For the year ended 31 May 2023
HEZZ_=FRA=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKS")

(LGETT ([T ))3R)
2023 2022
—E-=F T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FER FAT
Revenue & 5(a) 198,025 212,285
Direct costs HERAR (260,362) (182,073)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8) =7 (62,337) 30,212
Other income HaA 6 2,464 1,734
General and administrative expenses —RITHAXZ (14,451) (11,709)
Impairment losses of property, plantand  ¥1% - &= LR ERERBE
equipment (11,043) -
Impairment losses of right of use assets FREEERERBE (1,759) =
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FBEAE EEEIEAT
losses model B R E &8 (1,611) -
(Loss)/profit from operations EE(FE) RF (88,737) 20,237
Finance costs BTG RS 7(a) (178) (63)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(EE), SRR 7 (88,915) 20,174
Income tax credit/(expense) Fris#ige, (FAx%) 8 1,865 (3,490)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EE),ER (87,050) 16,684
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk
Item that may be reclassified HignpeE# 748
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmHE
Exchange differences arising from BMEBINETBEE
translation of foreign operations ZERZERR 42 =
Total comprehensive (expense)/income  FRZ2E(HX) WL EE
for the year (87,008) 16,684
HK cents HK cents
4l AL
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(ER) B
Basic and diluted ERNEE 12 (3.91) 0.75

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable
to the (loss)/profit for the year are set out in Note 11.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %4 B i AR R 3/
?‘J’G:;E:EA%%% ga‘???
(Expressed in HKS)

(LOBTLS )
2023 2022
—E=-= —F=-=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B5E FHET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 13 65,012 74,278
Contract deposits BHEE 16 300 410
65,312 74,688
Current assets REEE
Contract assets BHEE 15 20,203 18,098
Trade and other receivables, deposits and & 5 M HiEKRFKIE « 4 K&
prepayments TERTFRIE 16 26,785 49,801
Pledged bank deposits EHEMERITER 17 - 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESEEY 18 33,687 75,181
80,675 153,080
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER IR 19 27,193 23,436
Lease liabilities HEAE 20 2,545 645
Current taxation BNHEARE IR 21(a) - 2,494
29,738 26,575
Net current assets REBEEEE 50,937 126,505
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAEES 116,249 201,193
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 20 4,293 364
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE 21(b) 5,485 7,350
9,778 7,714
NET ASSETS EEFE 106,471 193,479
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EiE
Share capital Pz 22(b) 22,240 22,240
Reserves & 84,231 171,239
TOTAL EQUITY B 106,471 193,479

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 August RZEZ=F N \A=tHLEEESHERRER

2023. T -
Ouyang Jianwen Wong Yuk
B E X oy i}
Director Director
EF EF
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. BN IR ZETBEHRERN—ZH -
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&
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY SR &8RS F R

For the year ended 31 May 2023
HEZZ_=FRA=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HKS)

(LGETST)
Exchange
Share Share Merger  fluctuation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits Subtotal equity
EX
RE  BRORE  AHEE  RBRE BB Nt EEAE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it TAL T TAL TAL T TAL T
(note 22(b)) (note 22(c))
(HizE22(b)) (P322(0))
Balance at 1 June 2021 RZBZ-EXB-AMNEHR 2,40 81,768 - - 97785 179553 201793
Changes in equity for 2021/22: B /CCEEN
BR%8
Profit and total comprehensive FREHR2ANGEE
income for the year - - - - 16,684 16,684 16,684
Dividends declared in respect of FLE-FESRRE
the previous year 1 - (24,998) - - - (24998) (24,998)
Balance at 31 May 2022 and WZB-ZERA=1-H
1 June 2022 R=F-Z%£AA-H
e 22,240 56,770 - - 114,469 171,239 193,479
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - (87,0500  (87,050)  (87,050)
Other comprehensive income FREMZENE
for the year
Item that may be reclassified RERENIBE
subsequently to profit or loss: BnZEE -
Exchange differences arising on BERINEBESE
translation of foreign operations LERER - - - Iy} - Iy} Iy}
Total comprehensive ERREMXAE
expense for the year - - - 42 (87,050) (87,008) (87,008)
Balance at 31 May 2023 R-BZ=£RA=+-AK
3 22,240 56,770 - Ly} 27,419 84,231 106,471
*  The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. ¥ RZEEERIEPN,000 BTSSR o
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. AN BN ZEVEREN—BD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS S8 IRERER

For the year ended 31 May 2023
HE_T-_=FRA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in HKS)

(LGETST)
2023 2022
—EI=H —_F-—
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FER FAT
Operating activities ReEFES
Cash generated from operations LEMENIES 18(b) (27,210) 11,964
Corporate income tax paid B REREH (2,494) (7,446)
Net cash (used in)/generated weESEE (FrA),
from operating activities FERe®E®R 29,704) 4,518
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of property, SNIEEME BER
plant and equipment REER 13(a) (11,126) (28,483)
Proceeds from disposal of property, TEME - BER
plant and equipment R PTIS RIE 361 5
Interest received BEF A 994 299
Net cash used in investing activities rREZHHmAREFE 000 9771) (28,179)
Financing activities mMEES
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEHREERTS 18(c) (1,841) (614)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEERSF EES 18(c) (178) (63)
Dividends paid EIRE 1 - (24,998)
Net cash used in financing activities mEZBHAAReFR 00 @019 (25,675)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERESEEYNFERD
(41,494) (49,336)
Cash and cash equivalents FUHRE R
at the beginning of the year REFEEY 18(a) 75,181 124,517
Cash and cash equivalents FROBRERBESEEY
at the end of the year 18(a) 33,687 75,181

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

TERAM R M T MR — B -
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®

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited (formerly known as Yue Kan Holdings
Limited) (the “Company”) is a public limited company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 24 May 2018 with limited liability under
the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of
the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 December
2020. The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
to the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
marine construction works, other civil engineering works and vessel
chartering services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1 June 2022:

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS") (Cont‘d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not effective:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts’
the October 2020

and February 2022

amendments to

HKFRS 17)

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Supplier Finance Arrangements?
Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and the related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
Model Rules’

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

2. ERMITRESIEFEMGHEE

R(TEFEMEREEA ) (E)

CEMEERERB T REBTEE

Bt 5 4 o 22 R

N E2 [ 30 4 P DA TS B AR AE iR R AR 2 3
AT MRIERT BB S IELER
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FNR(BREEE
BT RS AR

FBI7THRR B -F

+ARZE—_—
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BB RS 2R
F165R 2 IEFT AR
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BB HRE 2R
F7RZAERTA
BRMHIRE LR

F105REB G

AR5 285%

CHE
BB TER

FIRZIERT R
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ERIE 5B
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2 RIERCOF-A-HRZBRARIFESR

AR o

3 REERHH KRR 2 FERRAR

ARRIEFEHEMNE REEFTRSH
BELNK I EEARNRERER P BRRE

REBAFE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

119



8]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories
or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(a)

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Cont’d)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

-  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern assessment

TheGroupincurredanetlossofapproximately HK$87,050,000and
negative operating cash flow of approximately HK$29,704,000
for the year ended 31 May 2023. Notwithstanding the above
results, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of the going
concern basis is dependent upon the success of the Group'’s
future operations. These facts and circumstances indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability.

3. EXEHEGE)

(a)

REMBRRERELE(H)

Lo - M EREmME - AFESE
RIEBABBY QA TEFEZATERIZ
ERBABBHATEIAEERBNEE
MENRE—  B_RE=HK - Mt
LI

- FRABABBRERNGER
HinEE 2 R B ERE ERE
BTISRRECRERE);

- FoRBABBREELRER
BERUREBEMSRARER(E
— R BRERRERIN R

- FERBABBREELREN
TRBRBABIE

FEAETE
HE_ZT-_=—FAA=+—H8I#&F
[§ - A& B E A4 3 E 18 4987,050,000
BT R B EIE S M E£29,704,00078
Lo BER LIMER - HFREVBHmE
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8]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

(a)

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Cont’'d)

Going concern assessment (Cont’d)

In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash flows to
substain the Group as a going concern, the directors of the
Group are taking the following measures subsequent to the
year ended 31 May 2023, including:

- Implementing various strategies to improve the cash flow
status;

- Putting extra efforts on the collection of trade debtors to
improve the debtors turnover days;

- Monitoring and controlling administrative costs and
future capital expenditures; and

- Considering to conduct fund raising exercises, such as
share placement, with a view to increasing the Group’s
capitalisation/equity.

After taking into account the above measures, the directors of
the Group consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and financial obligations as
and when they fall due and are satisfied that it is appropriate
for the Group to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption be considered
inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made in the
consolidated financial statements to restate the values of the
Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities that might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont‘d) 3. EARNBE(H)

(b) Basis of consolidation (b) FREEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity,
has power over the investee and the ability to use its power to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

The Group reassesses whether or not is controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Change in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’ accounting policies.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control in the Group over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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®

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Cont‘d)

(c)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest; and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). Any interest
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative use. Property, plant and equipment, arising
from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment (see
Note 3(d)), are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses
(see Note 3(f)(i)).

Costsinclude any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management, including
costs of testing whether the related asset is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized
in accordance with Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont‘d)

Anitem of property, plantand equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses arising
from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates used for the depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

- Vessels 10%

- Site equipment 20%-33.33%

- Furniture and fixture 25%
— Computer equipment 25%
- Motor vehicles 25%

Over the shorter of 33.33% and
the unexpired term of lease

- Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

3. EXEHEGE)

(c)

M - BERRE(E)

ME - BMEERRBEEBEDEHRRLE
BHEREERZEESTIELRR
RENEEIORER - MEXHED
X BEERBREELZEE @ &
BERMERSREEFRANARER
REECEZR  YRHmEXEERHE
B ER -

FEDRME - BELREBEB KK
WMEFSKEENE)  REMFATER
FHERBRETEMME - WE
B R BREITEMMERNEEF X
T

—ME 10%
— R 20%-33.33%
—FRENETEES 25%
—BISER B 25%
— M B) R 25%
—HERE 33.33% K
K IEm &

FOESES

E-EYE  BEERBEISZIHNE
TRENAERFES  LHEBEHOZ
RARREEERDE - MBI
tE@ERBIATE - EEFAIEREH - Rk
BERTEDEZNSHREH R
B AT EST B IRBNEE
SIfR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

125



&
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont‘d) 3. EAEEE(E)
(d) Leases d) HE

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and one
or more additional lease or non-lease component(s), the
Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease components and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component for all leases.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases site equipment that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXEHBF(E)
(d) Leases (Cont'd) (d) BE(E)

As a lessee (Contd) ERZATA ()
Right-of-use assets RAEEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEEKRANBIE

- the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

- anylease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to trade and other receivables
carried atamortised cost (see Note 3(i)). Any difference between
the initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits
is accounted for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(d) Leases (Cont'd)

Lease liabilities

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments that are
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

- fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the financial
position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate when there is
a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group'’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee. There is a change in the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or the lease term has changed.
The lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the revised discount rate. A corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont‘d)
(d) Leases (Cont'd)
Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

- The modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

- The consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(e)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”).
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(e)

Financial instruments (Cont‘d)
Financial assets

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- Thefinancial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

—  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All otherfinancial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. Financial
assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"), and fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXEHBF(E)
(e) Financial instruments (Cont’d) (e) EWMITEH(HE)

Financial assets (Cont‘d)
(i)  Amortised cost and interest income (Cont’d)

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no-longer credit-impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an
investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected
on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained earnings.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-trading,
or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(e)

(f)

Financial instruments (Cont‘d)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECLs”) model on the following items
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“"HKFRS 9”):

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see Note
3(h)).

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(f) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont‘d)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Measurement of ECLs

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- trade and other receivables and contract assets:

effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition or an approximation thereof.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; or

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(f) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont‘d)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Measurement of ECLs (Cont’d)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the creditrisk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(f)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont‘d)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Significant increases in credit risk (Cont‘d)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- a significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- anactual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 60 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(f) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont‘d)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Credit-impaired financial assets

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty having granted to the borrower
a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or contract
asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is information indicating that the counter party
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

3. EXEstBRGE)
H FEBRREEREE)

(i)

THITAREHNEEZIEERR
(&)
FERELMEE

CREEEERENZEBIEN
TRIBRESEM

— BERALRBREMERE

— ERAZERAHRERG
AVBRBEEHEZRERE
WER  ETEIAEEAM
BRI T eFHNRR

— BRAK  WEHNEHIE
THE

I

— BRARBAEREBRENK
EITHMEBFER X

— R TR EESUARE
FHBEABD - HEBA
ATRIEE -

B R
EHERBTRARY T HBARK
B P IR 2 R B BR D AT U 5k
B AKBEAEME(E HE
MEREEXSNEENHAIK
mE -EZRNEAEZERL(WE
) eEMENeREENAIRE
7K 55 [ B Ui (3] A2 P 48258 I #RLAT o
MESHRB AR LRERE

BE 1 Ui 121 55 AT 4 5 O & 2 R[]
HiR AR AR SRERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

137



®

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(f)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Write-off policy (Cont’d)

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased.

- Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets; and

- Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determinate the extent
of the impairment loss.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

A portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(for example, head office building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable and consistent basis,
or to the smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise. The recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(f) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont‘d)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and contract
assets (Cont’d)

Recognition of impairment losses

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is first allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset, is allocated pro-rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favorable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

3. EXEatB®R(E)
H FEBRREEREE)
() EBMITAREHNEEZIZEER

(&)

R E AR
WEEKBRESELEENM)
A E S BB EHE R EARE
B ZEEIRTELE
37 ) P 10 B B RE 22 L AT e ) <
B EERAE -—BHE
EORERSEEEMHNDE
REESMOLEEE - K
SES—ARTELENZ
RHE(EERIEEZERS
EEENNEREEXRID
TREEZRmE)RZAR
TEABMAKESERA
b o D RRMERIER R
BEEBELES KRR E
mEEnEkEE(Es) -
NERBBEUXRCELE
4B R & & EMREER
EHINEEEMEE - BE
MR EERER NS ERE
RFAER A H E A (RER
B) HEAEBE(NREEE)
REz&RBRE  ARSEE
BEMNREBESBEIZLY
PTEREEBEMNFBRECELEM
AR EMEE - BER
BRI MR FERR

ROl BiE 7R

fief PRV 7 7 AJ Uk [ & BR A 1
SRR EmEmZL - RERE
Fermo -

B 01 0 A (L S R IR 1A B
£ 3 R R B AT
B AEEEE o
1 55 {8 6548 1 HE S 08 I ¢
AT A -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

139



&
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d) 3.

(g) Contract costs

BEAEHER(E)
(g9 BHEA

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.
The Group recognizes such costs as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs.

The Group first assesses whether the costs are qualified for
recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant standards,
failing which it recognizes an asset for these costs only if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify; generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are expected to be
recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing contract or
to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that are
explicitly chargeable to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered into the contract (for
example, payments to subcontractors). Other costs of fulfilling
a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property,
plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as
incurred.

Amortisation of contract costs is charged to profit or loss
on a systematic basis that is consistent with the revenue to
which the asset relates is recognised. The accounting policy
for revenue recognition is set out in Note 3(n).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(h)

(i)

1)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see Note 3(n)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 3(f) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see Note 3(i)).

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

Areceivableis recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
assets (see Note 3(h)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks excluding bank balance
that are subject to regulatory restrictions and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting the short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont‘d)
(j) Cash and cash equivalents (Cont‘d)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-term
borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL accordance
with the policy set out in Note 3(f)(i).

(k) Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

(ii) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
asan expense when employees have rendered the services
entitling them to the contributions.

(iii) Termination benefits
A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefitand when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

All deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and itis probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

)

Income tax (Cont‘d)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- inthecase of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(m) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benéefits is remote.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to
be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability
and it is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision
is recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the reporting period in which the change in probability
occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances where
no reliable estimate can be made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(m) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts
(Cont’d)

(ii) Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net
cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the
net cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it.

(n) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the

same.

Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract;

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(n)

Revenue and other income (Cont’d)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(n)

Revenue and other income (Cont’d)

(i)

Service contracts for marine construction works and
other civil engineering works

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work
on assets under the control of the customer and therefore
the Group'’s activities create or enhance an asset under
the customer’s control.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses
for early completion or suffering contractual penalties
for late completion are taken into account in making
these estimates, such that revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy set out in Note
3(m)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(n) Revenue and other income (Cont‘d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Vessel chartering services

The Group provides vessel chartering services in Hong
Kong, including the hiring of vessels and crews for a
specific period of time. The Group recognises the fee
received or receivable as its revenue over time in the
period in which the customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as services are performed by the Group.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
Note 3(f)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred
for the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXEHBF(E)

(n) WKk AW A (&)
(v) ZZAHAEA

(n) Revenue and other income (Cont‘d)

(v) Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EXEHBF(E)
(o) HhisirE

(o) Translation of foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of transact. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses arising on the settlement
of monetary items and on the retranslation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates and are
not retranslated. The transaction date is the date on which
the Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve.

W%%RM%EI§%ZM%E%

AR EBEBHEEK N E K
Lﬁ%k% TiER 5 B HR IR 1TE
KER © L‘MI\%EHEE’J‘%ZEF&E
& IR ERRRITINEERIRE
%“f%ﬁé&éﬁ#ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%é
A RN H e R ET IR B R TR o

PRONESIRIE LR ANFT B Z IFE B E R
%ﬁ@%i%ﬁﬁﬁ%[[%&
BARREHBRE - XRZAR/EARET
mﬁwkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiE%ZEo
BT EFIRNAINESHEIEEREE
RAENERRFEAFEE BRTIN
[EERBE -

REJNGEEMBHREME - AREE
ENBEENMABRRARSREHRNE
TEXRESAKRENZS S (A
7T) ° Wz MR SOR B IR IR H 1

PERETIRE - RRIFEXRRZHIAL
BARKE - EUBERT - BIERAR

ZEHMEXRBRE - TELNEN Z8
(mB)IREMEEEEAER - B
WREE S IR MRy R RET -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/2023 & 3§

151



®

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’‘d)

(p)

(q)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Any specific borrowing that remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont‘d)
(q) Related parties (Cont‘d)

(r)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Cont'd)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) Theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity orisa member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The significant accounting
policies are set forth in Note 3. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant judgements
and estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy Note 3(n)(i), revenue from construction
contracts are recognised over time. Revenue on uncompleted
projects is dependent on estimating the outcome of the
contract. The Group recognises revenue based on direct
measurements of the value of contract work performed,
which is mainly reflected by the progress certificates issued
by customers. The customers will provide final account when
the whole project is completed and may have adjustments on
the amount recognised to date according to the actual surveys
of work performed at completion. Subject to the adjustments in
final accounts, actual outcomes in terms of total revenue may
be higher or lower at the end of the reporting period, which
would affect the revenue in future periods as an adjustment
to the amounts recorded to date.

(b) Impairment of cash generating units

The management determines the impairment loss if
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of cash
generating units may not be recoverable. The carrying amounts
of cash generating units are reviewed when there are any
indicators of impairment. The recoverable amounts are the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The assessment of the value in use model is inherently
subjective as it involves the exercise of significant management
judgement and estimation, especially in determining future
revenue, future operating expenses and the discount rate
applied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

(b) Impairment of cash generating units (Cont’'d)

()

In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of future revenue, future
operating expenses and discount rate applied. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that
is areasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and financial budgets approved by the management of
the Group. As at 31 May 2023, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
attributes to the cash generating units were HK$60,099,000
and HK$4,913,000 respectively (2022: HK$73,340,000 and
HK$938,000 respectively), net of accumulated impairment loss
of HK$11,043,000 and HK$ 1,759,000 respectively (2022: HKSnil
and HKS$nil respectively).

Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets

The impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
and contract assets of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of these assets as well as
other quantitative and qualitative information and calculated
the lifetime ECLs based on credit loss experience, and on
management’s judgement and assessment of the forward-
looking information. Significant judgement and estimates are
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these assets,
based on the current creditworthiness, the past collection
history and subsequent settlements of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £/ 3% 3% 3% Fff &%
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. &R DEIRE
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
The principal activities of the Group are the provision of marine AREEMFTEEKAIRHEBEEZET
construction works, other civil engineering works and vessel BCEMEtARTIREREMERERS
chartering services. Further details regarding the Group’s EAANEBRTFTEXBHE—FFHBFERE
principal activities are disclosed in Note 5(b). HEEE5(b) ©
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WaEsiE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers EEAAWNBETIERKZIER D
by major service lines is as follows: MR -
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —EB-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAET
Revenue from contracts with customers EEBUMBREERE 155
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEANEFEHIKE
Disaggregated by major service lines REERBED
- Revenue from marine construction works —REBEEETRONE 60,184 138,903
- Revenue from other civil engineering works ~ — R B H A /R TIEA Uz 122,078 59,989
- Revenue from vessel chartering services —REMERERESH W= 15,763 13,393

198,025 212,285

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
information is disclosed in Notes 5(b)(i) and 5(b)(iii),
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont‘d)

(a)

Revenue (Cont’'d)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising

from contracts with customers in existence at the
reporting date

The following table includes the aggregated amounts
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s existing
construction contracts. The transaction price does not
include any estimated amounts of variable consideration,
unless at the reporting date it is highly probable that the
Group will satisfy the conditions of variable consideration.

5.

B 5 aRER S (48)
(a) Wz (%)

(i) TR ARERRIEHRE
FHENEFEXFELZ Kt

TREEARBEARERARES
WNEEHRTROBEETZR5E
RERE - RHSETBIBEMA
BHENGTSE  BRFEERS
BH - RNEBEERAER M e &
HERRT -

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —ET——
HK$’000 HK$'000

FER THETT

Remaining performance obligations expected ~ FBEIEEMNG T BT

to be satisfied

Within one year —FNR 113,249 1,978
After one year —Fi& 103,194 =
216,443 1,978

Except for the aforesaid contracts, the Group has applied
the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15
to its other contracts such that the above information
does not include information about revenue that the
Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts that has an
original expected duration of one year or less.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont‘d)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group'’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

Marine construction works: this segment involve reclamation
works, submarine pipeline works, sediment treatment works
as well as regulation and deposition of sand blanket works as a
subcontractor to the Group’s customers. Currently the Group’s
activities in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

Other civil engineering works: this segment include foundation
works, site formation works and roads and drainage works.
Currently the Group's activities in this regard are carried out
in Hong Kong.

Vessel chartering services: this segment provides vessel
chartering services in Hong Kong, including hiring of vessels
and crews for a specific period of time.

(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. The measure used for
reporting segment profit is gross profit. No inter-segment
sales have occurred during the reporting periods. The
Group’s other income and expense items, such as general
and administrative expenses, and assets and liabilities are
not measured under individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment assets and liabilities
nor information concerning capital expenditure, interest
income and interest expenses is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont‘d)

(i)

5. B RSBEE (K

(b) Segment reporting (Cont‘d) (b) DEPIRE (1E)
Segment results (Cont’d) (i) DEBEE(E)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers BEREAWZEEEEAS NI D
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well asinformation AR E RS R H D 2R
regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided HmMRAAERZESTHEREAES
to the Group’s most senior executive management for RBRENEBEE —_E-_=FK_ZT—
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of —FRA=t+—HIEEBFBEN
segment performance for the years ended 31 May 2023 EER 2HMDEOERIFY T ¢
and 2022 is set out below:
Year ended 31 May 2023 BEZE-—_ZE-_=HA=+—HI1
FE
Marine Other civil Vessel
construction engineering chartering
works works services Total
BERE Hp A nEHE
I I R% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TER TER TEr
Disaggregated by timing of R NFEEHR
revenue recognitionand  REMBEFKFEDE
revenue from external
customers
Over time RERT I HERR 60,184 122,078 15,763 198,025
Reportable segment gross I 232 L
profit/(loss) EX,/(B8) (42,298) (22,520) 2,481 (62,337)
Depreciation for the year*  FRiTE* 9,377 1,948 2,376 13,701
* Included in “Direct costs” in the consolidated statement of * HAGSBEEHEMEmEmkEEE

profit or loss and other comprehensive expenses.

RPAR=EZ NI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 51 % 3R 3% B &
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont’d) 5. i8R E ()
(b) Segment reporting (Cont‘d) (b) o EPERE (&)
(i) Segment results (Cont’d) (i) DEHELE(E)
Year ended 31 May 2022 BE—_Z-_—_F#RA=+—HIt
FE
Marine Other civil Vessel
construction  engineering chartering
works works services Total
R Hi A WERE
I I AR %% 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHET FHET
Disaggregated by timing of IR FRFER
revenue recognition and REMBEF
revenue from external WED¥E
customers
Over time BERs IR R 138,903 59,989 13,393 212,285
Reportable segment gross A 285 HHEFR
profit 25,858 2,250 2,104 30,212
Depreciation for the year FRITE 7,499 70 2,081 9,650
(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss (i) FAI2#7EFEmEAR
Year ended 31 May
BEREA=1+—HILLFE
2023 2022
—E-=f —T_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&IT
(Loss)/profit (E1]),F
Total reportable segment gross (loss)/profit A2F{HBav4E(EE), T (62,337) 30,212
Other income E A A 2,464 1,734
General and administrative expenses —RITHAX (14,451) (11,709)
Impairment losses of property, plant and Y - WE KEEREEE
equipment (11,043) -
Impairment losses of right of use assets EREEERERE (1,759) =
Impairment losses under expected BEEEEEELRT
credit losses model R)JBEE 18 (1,611) =
Finance costs B TSRS (178) (63)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation RERBA(ER),&5F (88,915) 20,174
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont’d)
(b) Segment reporting (Cont‘d)

(iii)

(iv)

Geographical information

All of the Group's activities are carried out in Hong Kong
and all of the Group’s assets and liabilities are located
in Hong Kong. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical
basis is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers during the year contributing
individually over 10% of the Group’s total revenue is as
follows:

5.

Bk S EERE (&)

(b)

7 ER R (4]

(i) EE

AEENMEXBIREBE
17> MAKBNFRAEEERAE
TMIREE ° Fitt - WE|25Z

Mol B DRI DAT

(iv) ZEEFHEH

FARAEEERI T B 10%M0F

P mT

Year ended 31 May
BEAA=+—-HLEE

2023 2022

—E-=F T4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHIT

Customer A’ BEA 108,108 N/ATiEA*

Customer B? EFB? 46,646 =

Customer C' BEC = 50,413

Customer D? BFED? N/AT3E A * 34,400

Customer E2 g2 = 35,020

Customer F2 EPF? N/AT3E A * 23,547

Notes: (T

1. Revenue from other civil engineering works. I REEAM T ARTIRA WS

2. Revenue from marine construction works.

* Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10% of the
Group's total revenue for the respective year

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in Note 23(b).

2. REBFRETREMES -

* REFHAHEPR&ELNAE

B 21z 8710%

KEZEEFNEESTERE

BERHIEE23(b) °
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6. OTHER INCOME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

6. HftulkA

Year ended 31 May
BEAA=1+—-HLHFE

2023 2022
—ED=f T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Bank interest income H|ITHEMA 994 299
Work injury compensation received from a B FGE R ) TGRSR E

main contractor = 990

Government grants (see note below) ERAT R L (R T Bt EE) 784 392

Gain on early termination of leases REPKR EHE RS 36 =

Income from providing online technical services R R IR I H WA 648 =

Sundry income IR A 2 53

2,464 1,734

Note:

receipts of those grants.

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss) / profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs

Government grants represent the government grants of HK$784,000
(2022: HK$392,000) by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund. There are
no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the

BEE

IH o

BT L 2 I8 BB R R T IR BUS R AR B
& E & FTIR 4 89 BT 43 BE 784,000
JTT(—Z = — 4 :392,000/8 7T ) - WELEX
LRHAN BT R EK G REMEASE

7. BRRAI(BGIR), &

BB (B58) O F VSRR AT & 7%

B

(a) MAFERLA

£2

Year ended 31 May
BERA=1T—-HLHFE

2023 2022

—E-= —E-4F

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHEIT

Interest on lease liabilities (see Note 18(c)) HEaENF B (RHFE18(0) 178 63
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont’d)
(b) Staff costs

7. BRBE(BR) & (W)
(b) BITRAE
Year ended 31 May
BEAA=1+—-HLHFE

2023 2022
—EB-=F T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx TET

Salaries, wages and other benefits e  TERHEAMET 35,316 29,945

Contributions to defined contribution A€ FE R IRET EIVE R A9
retirement plans K 1,109 908
36,425 30,853

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevantincome in accordance
with the employment contracts. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Staff costs of approximately HK$29,051,000 (2022: approximately
HK$24,412,000) and approximately HK$7,374,000 (2022:
approximately HK$6,441,000) are included in “Direct costs”
and “General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively.

AREBREBEREEHERTEEF S FRPI
RSNEBRBHROIRE T REAERZ R
EERHEBRHIELABEFE([BEEF
8 - RESFHES—HHABITTEA
BEENEREFRAKEFGE - RIE
BiEDE S BEENERBARERE
BAEXEBREBBBKRANS% AT
BI(EH #FR o mET I H B0 LKA RS
FEESEMN o

8 TR R #729,051,0008 0( — &~ —
F 1 #924,412,00078 7T ) & #77,374,000
BIT(ZEZZF : 46,441,000/87T)E
DA AGZEBREREMEEWRERD
[BEERA R —BRITEAY ] -
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7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont’d) 7. ﬁmﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁ)/fﬁ*U(E)
(c) Other items (c) HAuEH

Year ended 31 May
BEAA=1+—-HLHFE
2023 2022

—E-= T

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BERRETE

(Note 13) (FaE13)
- owned property, plant and equipment —BBEWE - WERERE 13,636 9,945
- right-of-use assets —[PREEE 1,972 608
15,608" 10,553"
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HERE REEREE 177 472
Auditor’s remuneration Gl
- audit services — ZH AR 730 750
Expense relating to short-term leases BEEHEENHS 6,365 13,669
* Depreciation of approximately HK$13,701,000 (2022: * HE4913,701,0008 T( = FE = — 4 :
approximately HK$9,650,000) and approximately HK$1,907,000 499,650,000 7T ) & #491,907,000 % 7T
(2022: approximately HK$903,000) are included in “Direct costs” (ZE = =4 : #9903,000/% 7T ) 2. 5 Bl
and “General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated HALAEXREMEEWSENIE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, BERRA | R — M R S | -

respectively.
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 8. FEBEGREMZEWKEFTTBNMR

OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 51
INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and (@ HLEEmEkEMEEYERFHEIE
other comprehensive income represents: g
Year ended 31 May
BEREA=1T—HILEE
2023 2022
—Eo=f T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FH&TT
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEARLIE — HARFEH
Provision for the year FREAE = 1,732
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEREEE = (10)
- 1,722
Deferred tax ELER R
Origination and reversal of temporary differences B 2= 58 /) = 4 N 0]
(Note 21(b)) (FzE21(b)) (1,865) 1,768
(1,865) 3,490
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, BERSHS REREXHERPE
the British Virgin Islands and the People’s Republic of China, the AR B K AR BOEH - Rz A
Group does not have any assessable profit in these jurisdictions FE  AEERZEAEREAIL &
during both years, and therefore has no income tax charge EAERTOEN - W BERZEER
incurred in these countries. EEMEHAS -
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 8. FEBEGREMZEWKERTBNMR
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE S#R(E)

INCOME (Cont‘d)

(@) (Cont'd) (a)

For the years ended 31 May 2023 and 2022, Hong Kong
Profits Tax of the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under
the two-tiered profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of a qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of other group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at the flat rate of 16.5%.

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting (b)
profit at applicable tax rates:

(&)
HE-_ZT-_=FR-_F-_—_FRA=+
—BIFEE  AEEBREAREENS
RSB TIRIBFSTHMARAGETE -
BIBEFEHMAT  GEREEEE
R E 28 B8 T F1% 8.25% F) 7 2 &4
i MiBE2E BB TSR — R
E16.5% 5T E o A SR
MEMEBRERET SN HEFEER
16.5% M 55— i KEHL ©

PR BB AN R EN g tE
FMEERAT

Year ended 31 May
BEAA=1+—-HLHFE
2023 2022

—E-= i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET

(Loss)/profit before taxation BREEAT(E1R), S5 (88,915) 20,174
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated &% A% Fll 89 % 2= B 58 (3R B

at the rates applicable to the profits in the AVARER BN EARETE)

jurisdictions concerned (14,671) 3,616
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEETRMA Z B & (293) (114)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAMRF S 2 B I 52 2 572 3
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERRIBEE 2 B E 12,527 =
Others Hith - (5)
Over-provision in prior years BT E BRI - (10)
Income tax (credit)/charge TS (B %) Fx (1,865) 3,490
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEM&
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIS AN B 5E383(1) LA KA T35 41
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies FoM(WERESNRENBENEESTHS
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation ;zu‘F 2
are as follows:
For the year ended 31 May 2023
BE-Z-=FHA=t-HLEE
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement
fee in kind plans Total
Eha R
kA= 1 RIKGHE
EZHe REWEHN fEE AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THET
Executive directors PTES
HEUNG Che Kan (iv) A& (v) - 240 - 240
HEUNG Yue Wing (v) K (V) - 606 20 626
LEE Ming Chu Jade (vi) ZBRTR (vi) - 385 13 398
OUYANG Jianwen (vii) B 2 3 (vi) - 440 1 451
LUO Hao (xi) 75 (xi) - 150 3 153
WONG Yuk (xii) T /B (xii) - 593 15 608
ZHAO Dong Quan (i) R (xiii) - - - -
ZHENG Yanling (xiv) BT (xiv) - - - -
Non-Executive Director FHTES
DU Min (x) H8(x) 105 - - 105
Independent non-executive directors BIKHTES
CHIU Tai Shing (i) Nz 170 - - 170
WAN Wai Wing (ii) BT (i) 190 - - 190
FUNG Hoi Fung (iii) 55 i) 44 - - 44
WAN San Fai Vincent (viii) BT (viii) 140 - - 140
LUO Sheng (ix) Z R (i) - - - -
ZHANG Wen Yong (ix) 5K I E (%) - - - -
Total et 649 2,414 62 3,125
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d) 9. EEM&(E)
For the year ended 31 May 2022
BE_Z__FRA=T-HLIEE
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution
fee inkind retirement plans Total
EhaElE
e 2R RIKETE
EEiEa REWRER EH A3 @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL THL THL
Executive directors BITES
HEUNG Che Kan (iv) AHH(iv) = 1,440 = 1,440
HEUNG Yue Wing (v) K (V) - 861 29 890
LEE Ming Chu Jade (vi) ALK (vi) = 656 33 689
OUYANG Jianwen (vii) B 5 322 3 (vii) = = = =
Independent non-executive directors BIKHTES
CHIU Tai Shing (i) BBAB ) 120 = - 120
WAN Wai Wing (ii) BT (ii) 120 = - 120
FUNG Hoi Fung (iii) RS R L Gif) 120 - - 120
Total @5t 360 2,957 62 3379

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable by the
Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals set out
in Note 10 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. Except for disclosed in Notes (v), (vi),
(vii) and (xi) below, there was no other arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

During the year ended 31 May 2023, the directors’ emoluments of
the Company were borne by a subsidiary and holding company of
the Company (2022: by a subsidiary of the Company).

The Company did not have any share option scheme for the purchase
of ordinary shares in the Company during the year and there is no
outstanding share option as at 31 May 2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Chiu Tai Shing resigned as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 28 April 2023.

Wan Wai Wing resigned as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 31 May 2023.

Fung Hoi Fung retired as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 12 October 2022.

Heung Che Kan resigned as executive director of the Company on 22
March 2023.

During the year ended 31 May 2023, Heung Yue Wing agreed to waive
the emoluments of HKS Nil (2022: HK$28,000) as the capacity of an
executive director of the Company.

Lee Ming Chu Jade resigned as executive director of the Company on
3 January 2023. During the year ended 31 May 2023, Lee Ming Jade
agreed to waive the emoluments of HKSNil (2022: HK$4,000) as the
capacity of an executive director of the Company.

Ouyang Jianwen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 24 December 2021. During the year ended 31 May 2023,
Ouyang Jianwen agreed to waive the emoluments of HK$146,000
(2022: HK$182,000) as the capacity of an executive director of the
Company.

Wan San Fai Vincent was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 November 2022.

Luo Sheng and Zhang Wen Yong were appointed as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 31 May 2023.

Du Min was appointed and resigned as non-executive director of the
Company on 15 February 2023 and 31 July 2023 respectively.

Luo Hao was appointed as executive director of the Company on 20
July 2022. During the year ended 31 May 2023, Luo Hao agreed to
waive the emoluments of HK$380,000 (2022: HK$Nil) as the capacity
of an executive director of the Company.

Wong Yuk was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
15 August 2022.

Zhao Dong Quan was appointed as executive director of the Company
on 31 May 2023.

Zheng Yanling was appointed as executive director and chairman of
the Company as 22 March 2023.

EFMe ()

BT -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

BAKNR T _=FMA -+ /\BEHEEA
AIBMIERITES -

BRRN _E_=FHAA=+—HEHEAR
ABMIEITES o

BERR T _—_F+A+_HREARFA
BUIEMITES ©

MEHN T -_=F=A -+ _HBEIARQ
RIMITES -

HE-_TZ-_=FAA=1+—HIEE - AR
KABMERAAATNTESEMNHNTSE
TT(=Z = —4 : 28,0008 7T ) & B -

ZHBKN -_ZE-_=F— A= HHELL T
TEE - HE_T-_=—FRA=+—HIF
E  FPRKEEREEALRAANTESS
MEERT(ZE=F : 40008 7T)F M -

BEEXRA S - —F+_-_A_+NHEZ
FREARFRPITES - BE-_T-_=FAHA
=+—HIEFE - BEEXREREERE
NEIMITEE 517 1146,0008 L (- T - —
F 1 182,00078 70 ) FEM -

BFER T —F+—A-REZERR
NEBIUIFMITES -

BEMRNBR-_Z-_=FRA=1+—HE
RES/RNRRBUIFATES -

HESR S -_=F_A+HAEZTA
ARBFRAITES YN T -_=F+A=
+—BBEARRFIEMITES

BEN_ZE-_—_F+tA-_+HEZTAEAR
AMITESE - HE-_Z-_=FHRA=+—H
IEFE @ BEREREEALRAGNITES
{7 K9380,0008 T( —F = —F : T L)
N -

IR —Z-_—_FN\ATHARZERERR
AMITES -

BRER-_Z_=FRA=1T—HEZER
RABMITESE -

BN _—_E_=—F=A_+_HEZEA
RABIRITESRER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5
10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10. EHFMA L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one is director
for the year ended 31 May 2023 (2022: two), whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect

BE_Z_=FRA=T—HILFE 1%
ReFMALTHE—R2RESR(ZT-—F:
&) REZFHMRERIE - M4

of the remaining four (2022: three) individuals of the Group are as TR ZR)BRaTMA LT ZEHBE
follows: BT ¢
Year ended 31 May
BERZA=1+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-= T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#xT T
Salaries and other emoluments e K H b 3B 3,866 2,685
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 81 109
3,947 2,794

The emoluments of the above individuals are within the following

A THFHBEA THERA

bands:
Year ended 31 May
BEEA=1+—HLLFE
2023 2022
—E-= —EoF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
B 5 S|
ALTEE ATHE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7T % 1,500,000/8 7T 2 1
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. &R
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Final dividend, approved and paid during the F& A E #8172 (- 89 A BAR% 8 &A%
year, of Nil HK cents per share (2022: 1.124 ~ TBII(ZZ = —F : Fi%1.12478
HK cents per share) i) - 24,998
12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SER(GR) RBF
(a) Basic (loss) / earnings per share (a) BRER(EE) BRI
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year BHE-_Z-_="FAA=1+—HILFE
ended 31 May 2023 is based on the loss attributable to ordinary RERER) " BIOFELE
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$87,050,000 (2022 REARARQG) L RESREEGEIE
profit attributable: HK$16,684,000) and the weighted average 87,050,000/ L( —F = —4F : E(5x7
of 2,224,000,000 (2022: 2,224,000,000) shares in issue during 16,684,000 7T ) & B B 1T I 17 &) hn 4
the year, calculated as follows: 19 $02,224,000,00008( — T = —

(b)

2,224,000,000/%) * 5TELT :

2023 2022
—E=-= —ZEZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
(Loss)/earnings (E#8),/&F|
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the ZANAR]#EH AMEML (EEB), afl -
Company, used in basic and diluted (loss)/ F{EstEGRIELR K
earnings per share calculation % (F58), BT (87,050) 16,684
Diluted earnings per share (b) BREHFRER
There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding during the i ——— o G — o et
years ended 31 May 2023 and 2022. Hence, the diluted earnings T—RALEFEYEDBTHEEER
per share is the same as basic earnings per share. o At - BREERFEGRER

AFIMER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 #r & i &F

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - BERERH
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREENYER
Properties
leased for
Site Furniture Computer Motor Leasehold own use
Vessels equipment  and fixtures equipment vehicles  improvements carried at cost Total
BER RRBEN
& B BELE ElRE G EEL] BEXE  ERAIR &3t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThR ThR ThR Thn Thn TAR ThR ThR

Cost: RA:
At 1 June 2021 R-ZE--%

~A-H 67,667 8,836 ] 175 1547 191 1824 80311
Additions hE 13,500 14,683 - - 300 - - 28,483
Disposals & (962) (2,834) (21) (80) (310) - - (4,207)
At 31 May 2022 A

RA=t-B 80,205 20,735 - % 1537 191 1824 104,587
Additions HE 1876 13,110 - - 140 - 7975 23,101
Lease modification HEE - - - - - = 38 38
Disposals or early termination {t| & 312 741t (7,485) (22 - - = (191) (1,824) 9522)
At31 May 2023 S

BA=+-R 74,596 383 - % 1677 - 8013 118,204
Accumulated depreciation  EFtHERHE:

and impairment:

At 1 June 2021 RZZ--%

~A-H 16,171 5,590 ] 141 1,25 2 278 23,486
Charge for the year FRREY 7,205 2483 - u 209 64 608 10553
Written back on disposals (£ EE[ (485) (2834) 1) (80) (310) - - (3730)
At31 May 2022 S S

RA=t-B 2891 5,199 - 8 1,155 9% 886 30309
Charge for the year ERREY 8,099 5,204 - 10 29 64 1972 15,608
Exchange adjustment EiAE - - - - - = (22) (22
Written back on disposals or &SR E4 |-

early termination f (3831) (22) = = = (157) (1,495) (5,505)

Impairment loss recognised 2 A EEE 8,336 2607 - - 80 = 1759 12,802
At31 May 2023 =

EA=t-B 35495 13,048 = % 1454 - 3,100 53,192
Net book value: BEFE:
At31 May 2023 RZEZ=

FAZ+-R 39,101 20,775 - - m - 4913 65,012
At 31 May 2022 S

FA=1-A 57314 15,536 - 10 38 9% 938 74,278
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (Cont‘d)

With the operating loss before finance costs resulted from the
operations for the years ended 31 May 2023, the management
of the Group concluded there was indication for impairment on
the cash generating units. The recoverable amounts of the cash
generating units has been determined based on value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on the financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering the following years with a pre-tax discount
rate is 15.62%. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculated is the future revenue, which is determined based on
the cash generating units’ past performance and management
expectations for the market development.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units, marine construction and other civil
engineering works are lower than the carrying amounts. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets such
that the carrying amounts of the assets are not reduced below
the fair values less cost of disposal.

Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation,
impairment loss of HK$11,043,000 and HK$1,759,000 for the
year ended 31 May 2023 has been recognised against the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets, respectively.

13. 1% - BEREXE

(a)

FREE MR (&)
MREBE T =FHA=1t—HIF
[ B 48 & P LE Y AR 30 BR B A5 B AR Y 48
LBEE AEEEEEBESHAR B
SEABMNGERETR - REESE
BRI E SR8 IRREAEEE
BT  ZiBEFERERAEEETERE
FrbEZ RREE 2 M BRTEE(EL 23R
im%ﬁﬂ FRATHTIR K £15.62% °
FREETENS —BRELARKK
= ENERReELEEMNBAR
REERBEMBEREHNET -

ERNFEER  AEEEEERRR
TELEN  BFERETREREML
AIRWAKESBERKEE B
B OEREVE  BERKREN
MEREEESRN  UAHEEZK
EEY EHDR S ERE R FERHEX
K o

ANEREEFERE@AIR  #ZE
—E_ZFRAA=1+—H EBE®RY
¥ BELRBUARERAEEEZR
HE S Bl R R E &5 811,043,000 7T
21,759,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b)

The Group has obtained the right to use the properties as its
offices through tenancy agreement. The lease runs for an initial
period from 24 to 48 months (2022: 36 months) and it did not
include variable lease payments. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and certain different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

13. 1% - BB R axfE (48)

FREEE
AEBEEEAHERZEIENAZENY
HFERRE - Y ZVRER A24Z=48
BAA(ZE=-—%F :36f@A) - TERIEA
BHEMNK - HEKRTIBEERIE
EREEE @ WESZFETRMERK
KAEH - REE A E BRI L]
HEOHENERER  A£EBEAEYD
MEE @ WEESLAIATIHNITHE
R o

REEEERENSDNERREERT
FEDHTT

As at 31 May
RAEA=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-=F —B-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Properties leased for own use, carried at B A EWELITER AR -
depreciated cost, net of impairment MBRRERE
losses 4,913 938

The analysis of expenses items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

REEFREREREEEN Y HER S
Wranr

Year ended 31 May
BERA=1T—-HILFE

2023 2022
—ZE=-= S =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1% #8E8 & ELBRI D8R

by class of underlying asset: CHREEEREEM

Properties leased for own use EREEYE 1,972 608
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 7(a)) HEAEMNE (7)) 178 63
Expenses relating to short term leases H150 EATH SRR B R 2 6,365 13,669

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 18(d) and 20 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries. The class

14. RBARZRE
AT REEDEHBARNFE - R2HE

of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise state.

SN - TR BRI AT A -

Place and
date of Particulars of issued Principal
incorporation/ and paid-up capital/ country
Company name establishment registered capital ~ Group's effective interests Held by the Company Held by a subsidiary Principal activities of operation
BEfTR REEN -EHEAT iz
s ift/RINERESE BRRA/ARERHE BREH KAAfRA fsE  1EED L LE
03 00 03 0 03 0
ZECCE “E-CF CECTE CRCCF CECcE SRR
Yue Wang Investment Limited The Bitish Virgin slands Ordinary USS1 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Investment holding HK
("Yue Wang') 28 May 2018
Yue Wang Investment Limited AERAEE AT &R i
(T¥ue Wang ) 5
1AZTNA
Kat Yue Construction Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK5,800,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Marine construction HK
Limited (‘Kat Yue') 7 January 2005 works, other civil
engineering works
and vessel chartering
senvices
EHEETEARLA(EH)) &t SRS 8000005 T BERETR AfiA BE
Sl TRIMSHERT
Digital Future Investment Holding Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS! 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Ivestment holding HK/BV!
15 February 2022
Digital Future Investment Holding Limited  #ER XS Bz RERER &k/4B
o RARS
ZAtiA
Hong Kong Digital Future Investment ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding HK
Limited 22 March 2022
BEATHRRERRAT 53 Eakin REER B
=R=1zA
Shenzhen Tian Cheng Holdings PRC Registered capital 100% N/A - - 100% NA Scientific researchand ~ PRC
Company Limited 6 June 2022 (NY 5,000,000 online technical service
industry
RTARERERA e AR iR TER  BERGLEARA: 8
ZEICERRNE 5000000ARH T

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

RER - BEMBLRRCBTEMAELE

% o
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15. CONTRACT ASSETS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

15. SIS E

As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2023 2022
—ZE=-= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Contract assets EREE
Arising from performance under marine ~ FEBITEEEZETREMES
construction works 11,027 11,401
Arising from performance under other EHETHEM R TEMmES
civil engineering works 9,176 6,697
20,203 18,098

As at 1 June 2021, contract assets amounted to HK$37,469,000.

The Group’s service contracts for marine construction works and
other civil engineering works normally require payments within 30
to 60 days once the progress certificates were issued by customers.
These payment terms prevent the build-up of significant contract
assets. The Group also typically agrees to a retention period of three
months to one year (2022: three months to one year) for a maximum
limit of 1% to 10% (2022: 2.5% to 5%) of the contract value. This
amount is included in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is conditional
on the Group’s work satisfactorily passing inspection.

At 31 May 2023, the amounts of contract assets that are expected
to be recovered after more than one year are approximately
HK$4,809,000 (2022: HK$2,539,000), all of which relates to retentions.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set out in
note 23(b).
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RZEBE-_—FNA—H EHEBEER
37,469,000/8 7T °

AEBASERETRRHEMBEIARTRERS
BH—REREZFEBEEEEZEMNI0E
60 RN o ZEMNFUEKATB ILETER
BAAKWEE - ASEBESHE=—M@AZE
—F(ZE=F: ZAAE—F)NREE
R ZeREAGHNEENI%E10% (ZF
TTF 1 25%E5%) c R ASERTIER
BIRETERTFmER @ ASEH A ERK
B3 At AGNEEEZRSE
PR AR o

R-TE-_=FFA=+—H  BHER—F%
Bl & K& E S R4 44,809,000 T( =
T — — 4 :2,539,000/57T) 0 HFRFTAHIA
HERREER -

BREERRENEFFIBENHIFE230) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. REREMEKERE « W RAF

PREPAYMENTS B%IE
As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2023 2022
—=—= e
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Trade receivables Z 5 FE W RIE 4,164 21,642
Other receivables H b W FIR 4,118 392
Contract deposits (see note below) G HRe (R T XHEE) 10,410 10,410
Deposits and prepayments e MTEFRIE 9,233 17,767
27,925 50,211
Less: Allowances for credit losses W EEEBEEE
- Trade receivables — B S EUGRIA (744) -
- Other receivables and deposits —HEMERFIE KRS (96) -
(840) -
27,085 50,211
Less: Contract deposits classified as non- & : D BAIERBEEMNE LITFK
current assets (300) (410)
26,785 49,801

Note: Asat31May 2023, contract deposits of approximately HK$10,410,000 BiteE

(2022: HK$10,410,000) were placed to customers to guarantee for
the due and proper performance of the obligations undertaken by
the Group's subsidiary for certain projects, of which HK$300,000
(2022: approximately HK$410,000) will be recovered after one year
in accordance with the relevant contracts.

R-_ZE-_=FFA=+—8 BEEF
FEAS 4% 4910,410,00078 7T (
F 110,410,000/ 70) + LAERAS BB

NEIZEREITIE THE IAENEE -

E 300,000 70( ZF = =4 : £7410,000

BT RIRERRE & R —FRUKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

17.

PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)
Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

receivables, based on the date of progress certificate or the date of
billing and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

16. R R EMEWRE - BeRkFfT

MIA ()

BRiR o AT
RIBEHR - BIEBEEEERHREE B
WHRBEREBELNE 5 BKFIERR D
W

As at 31 May

REA=+-—H

2023 2022
—Eg== =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FA&TT
Within 1 month 118 A A 1,316 19,880
1 to 2 months 12218 A 1,290 1,465
2 to 3 months 2&3{8A 509 297
3 to 6 months 35616 A 305 -
3,420 21,642

Trade receivables are generally due within 30 to 60 days (2022: 60
days) from the date of progress certificate or the date of billing.

As at 31 May 2023, included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,577,000 (2022: HK$297,000) which are past due as at the
reporting date.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
are set out in note 23(b).

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 May 2022, the Group had deposits placed with a bank of
HK$10,000,000 for the surety bond issued by the bank in favour of
provision of marine construction works to one customer. As at 31
May 2023, the pledged deposits were being released and no other
pledged deposits are noted.

Pledged bank deposits carried a fixed-rate interest at 1% per annum
as at 31 May 2022.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 23(b).
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17.

BN ATE—RREEZEAEEH
HR#EET30260H (2= :600 ) AEH] ©

RZBE-_=FRA=1+—0 ' *5E£ENESH
FEURFRIE 45 o B R BR T 4B E 40 51,577,00078
Jo( == — £ : 297,000 7T) HYFE U FE -
ZFERREBSHE R -

B 5 I H At e W R IB A R B R B S A T
i+23(b) °

BEMERTER
RZE-_—FRA=1+—8 K&EEAM
—RERPRESERETIRMARITEA
10,000,000 TTIEARITH EMRES - B
—E-_=FRA=1+—0  DERERCE
iRk - BISRWEEMEEBTK o
RZE-_—_FHRA=+—8 ' BiRHFRTE
AR E EFFE1%:T B o

RERHE A BHEKEE23(b)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHERCASH 18. &R EFEMAHMRERTE

FLOW INFORMATION ®wH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated (a) HMEUMBRARREBEESRERTH
statements of financial position and cash flows ReERBASEEYWERE .
comprise:
As at 31 May
RAEA=+—8H
2023 2022
—EC-= T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deposit with a bank RITIFK - 30,192
Cash at bank BITIRE 33,687 44,989
33,687 75,181
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances RMmEHR  AEEUARETAR
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to ¥ DEHEMIE S RIRTTEE52 51,060,000
HK$1,060,000 (2022: HK$12,000). The RMB of HK$1,049,000 BA(ZFTEZZF :1200087T)°
(2022: HK$nil) is not freely convertible into other currencies. 1,049,000 L2 ARB(ZF = —4F :
However, under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations ERT) T MEEBRABRAREME - A
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign i - RR R BSNE E IR R0 R AEE -
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EERNETERT  AEEEES
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct PR EINEETE 2 RITHARE
foreign exchange business. HBRHMEE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from operations: B :

BHGGR)

(b) BR B A% R B2 L &

18. @ RASFRMRAMRAETE

FEREWY

Year ended 31 May
BELA=T-HLEE

2023 2022
—E=-= —FT-—F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(E1R), & (88,915) 20,174
Adjustments for: BUATEIBELFE -
Depreciation e 15,608 10,553
Finance costs B TSR ZAR 178 63
Bank interest income RITH EWA (994) (299)
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment  HEBE N REREE 177 472
Gain on termination of lease RIERE 7 W (36) -
Impairment losses under BEEEEEERETH
expected credit loss model REEE 1,611 -
Impairment losses of property, plantand ~ #1% - FiE KR EREEE
equipment 11,043 -
Impairment losses of right of use assets FREEEREREE 1,759 =
Changes in working capital: BEESE
Decrease in contract deposits, contract EHEE F BREBEENURES
assets and trade and other receivables, RE A EWGRIE - ek
deposits and prepayments TR FRIE R > 18,560 15,817
Decrease/(increase) in pledged EEMRITETORD,(3E0)
bank deposits 10,000 (10,000)
Increase/(decrease) in trade B 5 R EMER IR
and other payables =i, Omd) 3,799 (24,816)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &3E (i) FIEHNRE (27,210) 11,964
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

FLOW INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing ()

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. &
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash

flows from financing activities.

®WH(R)

18. e RBEEFERVERAMRLTE
BEEBRELERBENEER

TRFMAEEREEHAELNAR
CBRASKIFRSEY - BE
ABFIEENBBERARSRERRIR
ERENAEEGARSRERTOR
RBELHELENRENE -

Lease liabilities

HEAE
HK$’000
FET
(Note 20)
(FfzE20)
At 1 June 2022 N-—ZE-_—_F,xH—H 1,009
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRERE :
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREERE S (1,841)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEfNEERESFEE S (178)
Total changes from financing cash flows RARSAERDEE 2009
Other change: Hib &5 :
Interest expenses (see Note 7(a)) MBLZ L (RWE7@a) 178
Increase in lease liabilities from entering new lease  FRFIZFHER
during the year HEAELM 7,975
Termination of lease RIS (365)
Exchange adjustment Ve 54, e 22
Lease modification MEBET 38
Total other change Hioegppeet 7,848
At 31 May 2023 R=-ZB-=FHA=+—H 6,838
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH 18. RERRSER/YREMRERE
FLOW INFORMATION (Cont’d) BEHE(E)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () METEHRMESEBENHR(E)
activities (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities

HEEE
HK$'000
T
(Note 20)
(KizF20)
At June 2021 R=B——%Xp-B e
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRERD .
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEEHSERTS (614)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEERS TS (63)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERERERDAR )
Other changes: Hitr g :
Interest expenses (see Note 7(a)) FESZH (RME7@) 63
Totalotherchanges ... AeZeesr 8
At 31 May 2022 R-ZE-—fHA=+-H 1,009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH 18. AR EEMREMBRERS

FLOW INFORMATION (Cont’d) SHE(E)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HEHREHZHE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows E+Az*/\Eﬁﬁyﬂbgi‘EZEj@%(ﬁ%ﬁ@%u
for leases comprise the following: T&IE :
Year ended 31 May
BELA=T-HLEE
2023 2022
—E-= —F_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THET
Within financing cash outflows REREMEA 2,019 677
These amounts relate to the lease rentals paid during the years ESHEEE T ER T =
ended 31 May 2022 and 2023. i_ﬁﬁ =t+—HIEEHEHES S
B -
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. B S R EMEFFRIE
As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2023 2022
—EC=H —E-_—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt s FHET THT
Trade payables B EMNRRK <a> 7,824 18,785
Contract liabilities BHEE <b> 3,985 -
Retention payables ENRES 9,636 1,103
Accrued charges and other payables FEET & A R E b FET FUIE 5,748 3,548
27,193 23,436
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

At 31 May 2023 and 2022, the amount of retention payables
expected to be settled after more than one year was approximately
HK$2,718,000 and approximately HK$859,000 respectively. All of the
trade and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised
as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

a) As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade payables, based on invoice date, is as follows:

19. RS RAEMEMARR(E)

RZBZ=FR=FE-__FHA=1T—8 "
TEHERN —FAREERNENIREB 2R
7£52,718,000/%8 7T I 47859,000/8 7T ° FTE &
S REMBERRIEHN —FANLEELERE
WASKEIREKEE °

a) HERSHIR ERNBLERAHNESH
FENRRFRAREE DTN T

As at 31 May

REA=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —F-_—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month 6,070 10,412
1 to 2 months 1,711 4,236
3 to 6 months 43 4,137
7,824 18,785

The average credit period is 90 days.

b) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 May 2023 and 2022 are

FHEEHR/ATA -

b) RZE_=FR-_ZT-_—_FRA=1+—

as follows: AREHBREFBEEINNT -
As at 31 May
REA=+-—8
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&TT
Current
Arising from performance under marine ~ EBIT/HSZETIE
construction works 3,985 -

At 1 June 2021, contract liabilities amounted to HKSnil.
No revenue recognised in the current year was related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior years.

When the Group receives a deposit before the production
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

20. LEASE LIABILITIES 20. lHE&®
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRV AEBNTHER GRS S LE H
the Group’s lease liabilities: g :
31 May 2023 31 May 2022
“E-=HFHA=+—-H T _FhRHA=1T—H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

RIEESE REEE RIEHEE RIEHEE
TRBE et RERE R AERR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET TET TET

LG FR . 2505 .. 2810 i I S
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&{E2F A 2,169 2,325 364 368
After 2 years but within 5 years 2B E5FR 2,124 2,173 - -
e 4293 4498 A Sl

6,838 7,308 1,009 1,045
Less: total future interest expenses Ji : R 2A| S48 (470) (36)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaENRE 6,838 1,009
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease ERANREEaENINEFSIEEERFES
liabilities range from 3.97% to 5.75% (2022: 5%). 3.97%Z5.75%( — 5 — —4F : 5%) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)

financial position represents:

21. RS MBRARPHFRFR

R RN R P A ENEIBL IR TS

As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for ~ FRNEB ST B
the year = 1,732
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFRERBNGET R EEER
provision relating to prior years = 762
Tax payable JERTRIE = 2,494

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

Movement of deferred tax liabilities

The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

(b) EREFDELBIAKE
EEHER ERE

REEAEMRED

FARGE PR K P HERHELET
BHARRER D REFINT

2023 2022
—g=-= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Deferred tax arising from depreciation HHABATENITEREEEN
allowances in excess of the related RIETIE -
depreciation:
At the beginning of the year REH] 7,350 5,582
Charged to profit or loss (Note 8(a)) PRIBaE Ik (FTEE8(@)) (1,865) 1,768
At the end of the year RER 5,485 7,350

Tian Cheng Holdings Limited K 5% 1% 8% 5 BR 2 &)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As 31 May 2023 and 2022, the Group has no material
unrecognised deferred tax assets. As at 31 May 2023, the
Group had unrecognized tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$12,527,000 (2022: HKS$Nil) available
indefinitely for offsetting against future profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, they have arisen in a subsidiary that
have been loss making for current year and it is not certain that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilized.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$74,366 (2022: HKSNil) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit steams.

21. RS MBRARPIFRFR(E)

(c)

RERELEREEE

R =FR T - —FRA=1+—
B A£EETESAAERELTTHE
BE NR-E-_=FaA=+—080 "
AEBEREBEENRERRBEBERLY
125270008 L( Z 2= F : T8
Jo) - AIERHAEREEEBEZA
RIZARER - RAREZESBRA A
AZEEIEIRE AT EEERN — B
AFE  BRBITKAIBEEERFFE
AAEEEREERE  RYERZS
EIERRECRBERE -

RIMERR - AEBEAREBA 2HIE
E B H743668TL( Z T 2F « T
TC) A SR R AR FI o BRI A
PR LATER - MO ERERIEER B
BE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

22. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are
set out below:

22. BEX R
(a) HEZAKID BT

AEEGEE
KGR FREERHNERS

A KRS

B ER A b H
R

A e REMRFR - A B (E 5
AR DBV B E ST -

(Accumulated

losses)
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
(BitERB)
N R EE REER -
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz T T T T
Balance at 1 June 2021 RZBZ-ExXA-BM&EH 22,040 81,768 63 104,071
Changes in equity for 2021/22: “EC-/CCEENREEE:
Profit and total comprehensive income FRaflkzEkEESE
for the year
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FREE R 2 X A5 - = (2727) (2727)
Dividends declared in respect of the current year ~ SIAFEERIEE 11 - (24,998) - (24,998)
Balance at 31 May 2022 R-B--ERA=1—-AMLEH 22,240 56,770 (2,664) 76,346
Balance at 1 June 2022 RZBZZEXA-ANER 22,240 56,770 (2,664) 76,346
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREERYEE - - (14,288) (14,288)
Balance at 31 May 2023 W-B-=ERA=+-ANLS 22,240 56,770 (16952) 62,058
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

22, CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

22. BER G ()

Share capital (b) BRA
2023 2022
ZEC=F “B-F
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
RAEA 2 R EE Ex s
HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THL
Authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ SRAE0.01BTHEELER
At the beginning of year and RENERER
at the end of the year 3,000,000,000 30,000 3,000,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary BREBOETHERT
shares of HK$0.01 each RBREER
At the beginning of the year and RENRRER
at the end of the year 2,224,000,000 22,240  2,224,000,000 22,240
< The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. * HEERIED TN, 0008 TR R FE ©
Nature and purpose of reserve () REMEREN
Merger reserve =R A
The merger reserve represents the aggregate amount of the & HREREEE ATARA B R AN R
excess of the nominal value of shares of a company now DEEBHESNARRERARBR
comprising the Group over the nominal value of one share of TERCATH AN B E A — 300 M R HE) A
the Company exchanged as part of the group reorganisation NE—BRBROEENERE -
prior to the completion of the IPO of the Company.
Capital management (d) EXEHE

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

AEEEREANEEBRERRERE
EFEReme)  USHREEBHRE
FE R 7K P A on S RIS TE (B A & 32
RARGRE @ 58 BBRS KD H
R RS BB o

A EE G RN R B A AR
1+ DA f BOK T B W M B
R R B TR ER AR A AR B B TR 0
2R ARG MEVG T8 - 3 5hAE A
REVB B E AR B -
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22, CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Cont’d)
(d) Capital management (Cont’d)

22. BER G ()
(d) EXREE(E)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing
ratio as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt includes
lease liabilities only. Total equity comprises all components
of equity. The Group'’s strategy was to maintain the gearing
ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain the gearing
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or
sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group’s gearing ratio at 31 May 2023 and 2022 was as

AEBREEABLEERAEAR
BBl AERERTEEABLLE
REEGRARDSER - BEKER
RHEEAE RHOAEEEERNAA
BAKED - AREHORIESERE
EEBELEREEKE -BTHEE
ERELE  AREARRETK
ROBRE SR  BITHERND - UHE
BRERLEEEARDES -

RE_=FR-_TE-_—_FRA=+—

follows: A AEEHNEEAGBLERMOT
As at 31 May
RAEA=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current liability: mEALE
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,545 645
Non-current liability: ERBEBE
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,293 364
Total debt ERERE 6,838 1,009
Total equity R 106,471 193,479
Gearing ratio EESEBLE 6% 1%

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) requires contractors on the
list of approved contractors for public works (the “List”) to
maintain such minimum working capital as the Government
may from time to time determine (the “Required Minimum
Working Capital”). A subsidiary of the Company is subject to
the Required Minimum Working Capital as the subsidiary is a
contractor on the List. Except for this, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. @M IR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €T AER
2023 2022
—E-=F —=FE_—
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: HEERNATECERMEE ¢
- Contract assets —GHEE 20,203 18,098
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 REMBWHIERIZE
and deposits 19,645 22,226
- Pledged bank deposits — B EMIRITIER - 10,000
- Cash and cash equivalents - BekBeEEY 33,687 75,181
73,535 125,505
Financial liabilities Eaza=Li
At amortised cost: HEIEARTE
- Trade and other payables — B 5 R HAMENFKIE 23,208 23,436
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 6,838 1,009
30,046 24,445
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 R 3R it 5
23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. &M TH
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERREEREREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include contract
assets, trade and other receivables and deposits, pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables
and lease liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. Exposure to credit, liquidity,
interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course
of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks
and the financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks on a timely and effective
manner are described below.

(i) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to contract deposits, trade receivables and contract assets.
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from pledged
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
sound credit ratings, for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Contract deposits

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from refundable
contract deposits is considered to be low, taking into
account the relevant customers’ good payment record
and long established relationship with the Group.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 May 2023, 28% (2022: 10%) of
the total gross trade receivables and contract assets were
due from the Group's largest customer and 70% (2022:
66%) of the total gross trade receivables and contract
assets were due from the Group’s five largest customers.
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AEENIZCRTABREANE
E HESREMEURERES B
BERRTER ReMBRSFED
BENEMENRBUARBEEARS -
ERTANFHBERS BN ERE -
AEBNEREBBRETAZEES -
nBEE  MEREBER - ARHE
AR ZE R M AEE SR
EEZERMRAIFANERERERK
RRFHRENTX e

(i) EEmEE
EERBREEARZEH T AETE
TEHNEEMERAKRERZY
BEENRR  ARBENEERE
RIBEREGNRET  BEIHRK
RERANEE - AEERDK
BIBITEFRMBITEBAINGE
ERBRAER - DEAXZH T A
BREEEFRHRIT R H5H#
B AEERLEERBREKE -

7R 5% [ 3 48 2 A ] 68 A 5%
RIEERBRHER

BHNEE

Rt MR T P RAF O SRAS 8%
FEASERHZIMEER - K
SERTRESHNRESARZNGE
SRR /L FEKX -

ESRENFERANEE
AEEBMASNEERBREES
ERFPHERNSETE - mIIE
REBPHEENITESTED
BR AKEAEEAZERNE
FREREKRE  BSELSES
FREERR R-_ZTE_=FH
A=+—8 ESEKRERA
HEEREEN28% (ZE -
10%) HASEBBERARF MR
HIE - MBSHRBHKERENE
EAEENT0% (= — 4 : 66%)
DASEE A RAARRFHRKEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(cont’d)

(i)

Credit risk (Cont’d)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Cont’d)

Individual credit evaluations are performed as part of
the acceptance procedures for new contracts. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. The Group generally
requires customers to settle progress and final billings in
accordance with contracted terms. Trade receivables are
generally due within 30 to 60 days (2022: 60 days) from the
date of progress certificate or the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as the
general economic conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operate. For the year ended 31 May 2022,
the Group assessed the ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets are insignificant and thus loss allowance
is recognised while loss allowance of HK$1,515,000 has
been recognised for the year ended 31 May 2023.

23. @M TR (&)
(b) HEEERERERFERBEEGR)

(i)

=EmE (&)
BEZEUMERSHEE (&)
EBHEEENENERH—I
o AEEEETEBMNEE
%o WENZETREFBAEX
B HA FRIE A 50 8% SR IR B 1 3R AE
B WEEREFHBEER KL
& PTE D B B IRIBARR o A&
B—RERKBFIERENGEREE
EENRGENR - B EKRFIE
—RREEZEZAHEERH
HEET30E608 (T - —4F :60H)
WEIER - — M E  AEBETE
BEEFESEEGR -

& B 1R AR S 7 B (R 15 48 HA 78 AP
EEBESEN=E 2B KIE
MEWEENEEEE  HEREB
BEEMTE  WREBEBREEE
BELCEBARERAEKETT
EMEBRBLERETEHE o &
E-F-_—_FRAA=1+—HIHF
B AEEFHESEWIER
AREENTBHEEBBELTE
A WMERREERE  mMEZE
—E-_=FRA=t—"HIEE
B R E 1B #1,515,0008 7T ©
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(cont’d)

(i)  Credit risk (Cont’d)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 May 2023 and 2022,
the Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and
deposits are insignificant and thus no loss allowance is

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

23. @M T R (&)
(b)

MRk EE B RN B ()

(i) 1=EmEEE)
HAttEUHEREZEE

REMBRRERZEEME - F
BEEREELGERLE  BER
BUAREEAXFMHARIEE
TENEMHEER
A N iR & /9 R B 1 3 17 E HI(E
EEERS  BIATE
RUAK - ZEBENEERRY
BRERN  BAKERE12(E
AMBHREEBEBREE - &

BISF{ -

= — & —

E-FE_ZFR-_FT-__FHA
AIEFE @ AEBEFHE
o EWGRIE KM TEREEE

=+—

recognised while loss allowance of HK$96,000 has been
recognised for the year ended 31 May 2023.

B AEA - W R EE R
B mMBE-_E_=FRA=+
—H I B R E 18 196,000

BIT ©
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework rEEBREERRERIERES
comprises the following categories: FELAT R
Basis for recognising ECL
Category Description REHEE
il i BENE%E
Performing | For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not | 12-month ECL
RIF been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition | 1218 A BH{Z &8
and that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
BERARREIES B VRERAREEBBRARREEM
EEEERENEREE(RE—ER)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant Lifetime ECL -
Al &R increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired
not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2) AT EHATEH
B ¥ ERARE ERBREEL N - EEBE - BEERE
BIrREERENeREE(RE_HBR)
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or Lifetime ECL -
EH more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated credit impaired
future cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3) | Z{EAFEHAITEH
EES S EEHHZEENMARRB S REEETH EEBER—EERE
TER  TREERTAEERE(RE=FR)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial | Amount is written off
s difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery EEE
BRBRBRESA RN RS
B 7R £ E U5 Bl 5RIE HY A SOBSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 23. @M TR (&)
(a) Credit risk (Cont’d) (a) FERE(E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Cont’d) EBEZERMEARSHEE (&)
Other receivables and deposits (Cont’d) HEERFERZE (E)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group'’s TRHIAEESREENERER
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: R AXRREBEERETE -
2023 Gross 2023 Net 2022 Gross 2022 Net
12mor carrying  2023Loss  carrying carrying  2022Loss  carrying
Notes lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount amount  allowance amount
2EASEEFES TBIZH CBIZHE RIS ZEBICE CZBICE CZRICE
Wi RAGEER WEEAE HERER NREFE WEELE NERRE NRERE

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TEn  TER TEx  TER  TEx  TER

Financial assets at BEHENAGEL

amortised costs SREE

Bank balances BgH 18 12mECL 33,687 = 33,687 75,181 - 75,181
REARHEEER

Pledged bank deposits BRI 17 12mECL = = = 10,000 = 10,000
REARSBEEBR

Deposits and f2e REMEYGE 16 12mECL 16,321 (%) 16225 584 - 584

other receivables 12MEREHEESE

Trade receivables BHRzE 16 Lifetime ECL 4,164 (744) 3420 21,642 = 21,642
(not credit impaired)
PEFEHEHEEER
(BEERE)

Contract assets ANAE 15 Lifetime ECL - 20,974 (771) 20,203 18,098 = 18,098

(not credit impaired)
ERFERRSCERE
(BiEEHE)

75,146 (1,611) 73,535 125,505 = 125,505
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £/ 3% 3% 3% Fff &%
23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 23. @M T R (&)
(a) Credit risk (Cont’d) (a) FEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Cont’d) EZEUSERSHEE (B)
Other receivables and deposits (Cont’d) HEMERFERZE (E)
The following tables provide information about the Group’s TR A A S Bz 8 B B AT AE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables according EERRKE S EWHIBTEREEEE
to their past due dates: K& R}
Weighted
average Gross Net
expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
hnEF3g
Trade receivables B S EWRIE FEHEBEE IREAZE =k FREFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T FH&TT
As at 31 May 2023 R=ZZBZ=F
EA=+—H
Not past due AR 60 AP 0.22% 1,847 4 1,843
Less than 3 months past due  #HA 31 A 1.93% 1,297 25 1,272
More than 3 months past due #1512 5 3(E A 70.10% 1,020 715 305
4,164 744 3,420
As at 31 May 2022 R-_ZT——
HA=1+—H
Not past due A 461 B 0% 21,345 = 21,345
Less than 3 months past due #HA 31 A 0% 297 = 297
21,642 - 21,642
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 23. EMTIR(#E)
(a) Credit risk (Cont’d) (a) FERE(E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Cont’d) EZEUSERSHEE (B)
Other receivables and deposits (Cont’d) HEERFERZE (E)
The Group recognised ECL for contract assets and other N5 BRI FE YR IE A A BB 2 B AT AR Bt
receivables based on the internal credit rating of receivables BHEE R E M YR RIBERATERE
as follows: BEEOT
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
Contract assets ERNEE FEHEBEE FRE#AZE =B g REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TAET TAET TAET

As at 31 May 2023 R-B==F
HA=+—H
Not past due AR HR 3.68% 20,974 771 20,203
As at 31 May 2022 RZE—_—
AA=+—H
Not past due A 80 AP 0% 18,098 = 18,098
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
Deposits and BE&Rk
other receivables H i fE W FK 18 FEHEBEE FREAZE e RE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T T
As at 31 May 2023 R-B-=F
HA=+—H
Not past due E et 0.59% 16,321 96 16,225
As at 31 May 2022 RZE—_—
AA=+—H
Not past due AR 81 AP 0% 584 = 584
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} # 3R R KI5

23. @M T R (&)
(b) EEEFREERFERBEGR)

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(cont’d)

(ii) Liquidity risk (i) REBEZREBE

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover the expected cash demands.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed funding lines from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

BRH

AEEETENEFERS

BENEESERE  SBRERASAER
MERKREREEENR - AnE
BHREHER - AREOERS
THEEERDESTEREE
SEEZOMIBER - ARKREE
KEARCRHERBEIZTHH
BETARNERAZESEE -
UhRERREBRERNRBDE

A\ EE dh
Ermz= °

TRIEARNEEN B E BN R
THRNOBTEOBABR - 1t
DRBEAOARERASRE(BRE
BENME(mEZE - AIRER
HEBRNADHF ) FFERFE
3R R AN 5= B ] 4 22 SR R B B
ERHmMEL -

31 May 2023
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
“E-=FRA=1-H
BRARERRER
More than  More than Carrying
Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at
Tyearor lessthan  lessthan More than 31 May
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2023
i
—B-=F
BB1F  BBF iR
15R%  EFER ETEE =t-H
BRER 2% 56 BBsE B/ NEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET TET TET TEx TER TER
Trade and other payables BHREMENTKIE 23,208 - - - 23,208 23,208
Lease liabilities MEaE 2,810 2,325 2173 - 7,308 6,838
26,018 2,325 2,173 - 30,516 30,046
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

23. @M T ARE)
(b) EREREEEERBEE)

(cont’d)
(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (i) HEBE=ZmEME (&)
31 May 2022
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
T ZERA=T—H
BHARBRE SR
More than  More than Carrying
Within 1 yearbut 2 years but amount at
Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than 31 May
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2022
BRI BE iR
1R BTEA  ETHEB =t+-A
REX 21 S BBSF @it MEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET THET T TET
Trade and other payables BHREMENTIE 23,436 = = - 23,436 23,436
Lease liabilities MERE 677 368 - - 1,045 1,009
24,113 368 = = 24,481 24,445
(iii) Interest rate risk (ii) FIE 2z
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future xR AR T ENAFEX

cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. As at 31 May 2023
and 2022, the Group has no variable rates borrowing
that exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by the
management is set out below.

Interest expense derived therefrom is relatively
insignificant to the Group’s operations, and the Group's
income and operating cash flows are less dependent
on changes in market interest rates. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group does not have significant cash flow and fair value

interest rate risk, and no sensitivity analysis is performed.
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's total liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

23. @M TR (&)
(b) EEEFEEBFERBEGE)

(iii) 7 pz ()

FIEH R
TR N HERRAEEEE
RN BB -

31 May 2023 31 May 2022
—E-_=FFHA=t+-A ZE_=—FRH=+—H
Effective
Effective interest
interest rate Amount rate Amount
B = S EERMNE ©F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Fixed rate liabilities: BEEMEEE :
Lease liabilities HEAR g5 6,838 5F 1,009
3.97%~5.75% 5%
per annum per annum
Currency risk (iv) B¥EfE

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group’s currency risk primarily relates to the Group's
operating activities whose settlements and payments are
denominated in foreign currencies which are different
from the respective group entity’s functional currency.

The foreign currency assets and liabilities held by the
Group are not material compared to the total assets and
liabilities. In terms of the Group'’s operating structure, the
majority of the business transactions are denominated in
HKS, and the proportion of foreign currency transactions
is not significant to the Group. The Group considers that
the currency risk of the Group'’s operations is immaterial
due to the relatively low proportion of the Group's
foreign currency denominated assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, as compared to the Group's total assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Hence, no further analysis
is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 23. @MTR(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EREKREEBERBKR(E)
(cont’d)
(v) Fair value measurement (v) R-FlEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments RZEZ=FR-ZF-__FHA
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially =+—H @ NEBRKAEE
different from their fair values as at 31 May 2023 and 2022. BB BR A & @ T A A BRE (A R

HAFELRIEERAER -

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 24. ARAR
At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company RBEBAR - ARAREERATSETEME
do not consider it is probable that any claims will be made against PR ERE - BB REEEEGLRNER
the Group and the surety bonds are expected to be released in FERRIRE S o

accordance with the terms of the respective contracts.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25. ABA RS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in BRIZEMBMEEME D PTHBENR S R
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following ERON - AR - AN E IR B H R T 1T
transactions with its related parties during the year. AR5 °
Key management personnel remuneration FTEEBEASNEHMH
All members of key management personnel of the Group are the AEBETEZEEEEMBKEYAARRE
directors of the Company and their remuneration is disclosed in = BENHNRMTORE -
Note 9.
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26. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

26. AFIBEMBERAER

POSITION
As at 31 May
REA=1+—H
2023 2022
—B-=F —ZE-=
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
Bt FET T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI&E 14 —* —*
Amount due from a subsidiary FEW — I BB A RIFIE 59,378 =
59,378 -
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment TEfI IR = 9
Amounts due from subsidiaries e BB A Rl R IE 3,285 69,200
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 416 7,822
3,701 77,031
Accrued expenses THIRE M 1,021 685
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,680 76,346
NET ASSETS EEFE 62,058 76,346
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#E 22
Share capital &N 22,240 22,240
Reserves 1 39,818 54,106
TOTAL EQUITY R 62,058 76,346

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30

August 2023.

Ouyang Jianwen
BEEX

Director

EE
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R_E_=F \A=THREFSHERK
FEAT o

-\

Wong Yuk
/8
Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7 8 %= Mi &

27. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 27. BEHERES
There are no significant events affecting the Group which have REBEZZ_=FRA=T—"RIEFEERK
occurred after the year ended 31 May 2023 and up to the approval EEVBmERELE  SESETEREH
of the financial statements. WEMBAEIE -
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A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the NEBRSERABEATEENREE  BENEGE
last five financial years is as follows. BMEWT o
Year ended 31 May
BERA=T—-HLEFE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—F-=F T B —E-TF —_TAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET TET TET TET

RESULTS ¥E
Revenue Wz 198,025 212,285 345,618 313,650 297,302
Gross (loss)/profit (F8B) E7H (62,337) 30,212 56,012 51,034 52,837
(Loss)/profit before taxation ~ FRFiAT (F5HE)
Y ) (88,915) 20,174 45,435 34,870 36,123
Total FR
comprehensive (expenses)/ 2@ (AX) /
income for the year Wz 4858 (87,008) 16,684 37,635 28,113 28,752
As at 31 May
REA=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=F T B —F —_T_TF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT BT FHT FHIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BmEE 145,987 227,768 265,468 152,341 140,305
Total liabilities BAIE 39,516 34,289 63,675 52,191 58,268
Net assets EEFE 106,471 193,479 201,793 100,150 82,037
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